
ABABABAB    
SUSTAINABLE GROWTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

TUESDAY 9 NOVEMBER 2010 
7.00 PM 
 

Council Chamber - Town Hall 
 
 
 

AGENDA  

 Page No 

 
1. Apologies for Absence 

 
 

2. Declarations of Interest and Whipping Declarations 
 

 

3. Minutes of the Meeting held on 14 September 2010 
 

1 - 6 

4. Call In of any Cabinet, Cabinet Member or Key Officer Decisions 
 

 

5. Medium Term Financial Strategy 2011/12 to 2015/16 
 

7 - 92 

6. Scrutiny Review - Use of Consultancy 
 

93 - 106 

7. Forward Plan of Key Decisions 
 

107 - 120 

8. Work Programme 
 

121 - 122 

9. Date of Next Meeting 
 

 

 Thursday 6 January 2010 at 7pm (Budget Meeting) 

 
 

 
 

 

There is an induction hearing loop system available in all meeting rooms.  Some of the 
systems are infra-red operated, if you wish to use this system then please contact 
Louise Tyers on 01733 452284 as soon as possible. 
 

 
Emergency Evacuation Procedure – Outside Normal Office Hours 
 
In the event of the fire alarm sounding all persons should vacate the building by way of the nearest escape 
route and proceed directly to the assembly point in front of the Cathedral.  The duty Beadle will assume 
overall control during any evacuation, however in the unlikely event the Beadle is unavailable, this 
responsibility will be assumed by the Committee Chair. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Public Document Pack



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Committee Members: 
 

Councillors: M Dalton (Chairman), S Allen (Vice-Chairman), Arculus, D Day, J Peach, S Lane and 
G Murphy 

 
Substitutes: Councillors: D Morley, A Miners and S Goldspink 

 
Further information about this meeting can be obtained from Louise Tyers on telephone 01733 

452284 or by email – louise.tyers@peterborough.gov.uk 
 

 
 



ABABABAB    
 
MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE SUSTAINABLE GROWTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
HELD AT THE BOURGES/VIERSEN ROOM - TOWN HALL ON 14 SEPTEMBER 2010 

 
Present: Councillors M Dalton (Chairman), S Allen (Vice-Chairman), N Arculus, 

J Peach and B Saltmarsh 
 

Also Present: Councillor M Cereste, Leader of the Council 
Councillor N Sandford, Representing the Leader of the Liberal 
Democrat Group 
 

Officers Present: Paul Phillipson, Executive Director of Operations 
Jenny Harris, Lawyer 
Louise Tyers, Scrutiny Manager 

 
1. Apologies for Absence  

 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors D Day and Lane.  Councillor 
Saltmarsh was acting as substitute for Councillor Lane. 
 

2. Declarations of Interest and Whipping Declarations  
 
No declarations of interest were made. 
 

3. Minutes of the Meeting held on 20 July 2010  
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 20 July 2010 were accepted as an accurate record. 
 

4. Call In of any Cabinet, Cabinet Member or Key Officer Decisions  
 
There were no requests for call-in to consider. 
 

5. Progress on the Delivery of the Growth, Strategic Planning and Economic 
Development Portfolio  
 
We welcomed the Leader of the Council and Portfolio Holder for Growth, Strategic Planning 
and Economic Development to the meeting to discuss the progress made in the delivery of 
his portfolio. 
 
Councillor Cereste advised that a lot of work had happened around the areas of his portfolio, 
in particular he highlighted the following points: 
 

• The Council had a strategy to go for growth including bring jobs into the city 

• The city had a target to build 25,000 new homes by 2026 but this would probably not 
meet our needs 

• It was believed that councils would soon be able to keep all of the business rates 
collected and had been assured that legislation would be introduced by April 2011 to 
enable this to happen 

• There were currently 6500 people on the housing waiting list with approximately 400 in 
greatest need 

• Regional Development Agencies had been abolished and would be replaced with Local 
Enterprise Partnerships (LEP).  A proposal had been developed for an LEP with other 
authorities who had an economic stake in Peterborough 

1



• The Local Transport Plan was out for consultation, the key of which was infrastructure 

• Changes had been made in how we delivered growth, including Special Purpose 
Vehicles (SPV) 

• There was huge interest from developers to develop in the city  

• A developer was keen to build the North Westgate development and two other areas 
were also ready for SPV’s and had funding available 

• A new Skills Academy would be built as part of the Community Stadium 

• It was not clear if we would get the government grant to develop the Carbon Challenge 
site and it may be necessary to look for alternative funding 

• Following the change of government, the Station Quarter could now be one of the places 
where government departments could move to 

• The former Guild House building was being refurbished to become a new health campus 

• Changes to the senior management structure would happen as the budget was 
developed leading to savings 

 
Observations and questions were raised around the following areas: 
 

• Following the change in Government and the rescinding of a number of targets, when 
would a full review of the Peterborough Local Plan be undertaken?  Some aspects of 
the Local Plan were already out for consultation, including the provision for gypsies 
and travellers. When the regional structures were in place Peterborough had pitched 
for growth, but the planned growth was the minimum we would likely be able to cope 
with and the evidence was there that we still needed that growth. 

• Would funding for growth along the Cambridge Growth Corridor continue?  That 
particular funding stream was not expected to continue but there may be other 
sources of funding made available.  The Leader believed that money would be 
available for those areas prepared to grow. 

• What was being done about the imposed density of housing targets?  Those targets 
were being reviewed.  A paragraph had been added to the Core Strategy to enable 
large properties to be built on large plots of land.  It was important that we built what 
was needed for the city and not stick to targets that did not suit our ambitions.  We 
needed to specify in the Site Allocations where we would like to see low density 
housing. 

• How long did the Leader expect the work to take in bringing forward low density 
housing?  Some areas had already been identified but we needed to talk to parish 
councils and other interested groups. 

• Villages were not the only place for executive homes as they were also needed in the 
urban area.  Most of the residential land had been allocated so we may need to look 
at development on more sensitive areas such as the flood plain east of the city. 

• If the city was to encourage flexible density then greater amounts of land would be 
needed for development.  Technology was continually developing to enable building 
on flood plains, such as building on stilts.   

• The Planning Committee was allowing the building of new properties at existing 
properties which had large pieces of land including in conservation areas.  Planning 
did not support the Council’s other policies for growth. 

• Had guidance been issued by the government on Garden Grabbing?  The Leader 
believed that guidance had been issued but there was an automatic right for people 
to develop on their own land and the Planning Committee would consider each one 
on an individual basis. 

• South Kesteven Council prevented infilling through their planning policy. There had 
been no automatic right to build in gardens since 1948. The Leader did not agree with 
that statement and would send councillors a copy of a presentation given by planning 
officers. 

• What was the current position with the proposed developments at Great Haddon and 
North Westgate?  Great Haddon was currently on track and would be an ideal site for 
low density housing.  A developer had recently visited the Leader with £1.5 Billion to 

2



spend in the city who indicated that they would like to submit plans soon for North 
Westgate but they had been asked to look further at how it integrated with the 
existing shopping centre. 

• Would the Great Haddon and Hospital sites include affordable housing?  The Council 
was indicating that we would like to see 25% social housing and the city had a great 
need for affordable housing. 

• Why were the proposals for the Peterborough District Hospital site approved with 
nothing included about low density housing?  The Hospital Trust had to get a certain 
return on the land to meet the payments for the new Hospital. 

• There was concern that the hospital site did not mention education provision?  The 
developer of the site would have to make a big contribution towards education but the 
site would not be big enough for them to be asked to provide education provision 
directly. 

• Had any government departments given an indication that they would consider 
moving to Peterborough as developers would not build office accommodation if they 
had not been pre-let?  Very positive discussions had been held with the government. 

• How much would the Leader listen to local councils, councillors and people who did 
not want growth in their area?  The Leader confirmed that he fully believed in 
consultation and would always take notice of the views of local people and meet their 
aspirations if he was able to. 

• Who authorised the bid for the LEP and would further consultation be undertaken?  
Why were we joining up with Cambridge when we may have more in common with 
areas such as Northamptonshire?  When we knew more about the process we would 
talk to everybody.  The LEP had to tick certain boxes including the number of first tier 
authorities involved, the population and economic size.  The proposed LEP included 
Cambridgeshire, Peterborough, Rutland and included working relationships with 
Kings Lynn and West Norfolk. 

• Why did we have to have targets for affordable housing?  It should be looked at on a 
site by site basis.  The policy was for 25% affordable housing.  It was for the 
developers to demonstrate that this figure would not be viable and negotiations would 
start from there.  Developers could provide a contribution but the target was there so 
we could get a contribution from the developer.  If there was no target we would not 
be able to get affordable housing.  The target was also there so landowners knew 
how much of their land would be used for affordable housing. 

• How was the Council encouraging villages to develop Local Housing Trusts?  Trusts 
had been looked at but no detailed work had been done yet.  The Trusts needed to 
be economically viable and we needed to see if they were what villages wanted.  If 
they did then land needed to be allocated as Trusts worked when the land was 
allocated to them rather than them having to buy it.  We would develop a strategy and 
then go out to consultation with local parishes and councillors. 

 
We thanked the Leader for attending. 
 
ACTION AGREED 
 
To note the progress made on the delivery of the Growth, Strategic Planning and Economic 
Development portfolio. 
 

6. Census 2011  
 
The Executive Director of Operations gave a presentation on the preparations for the Census 
2011. 
 
Every 10 years the Office for National Statistics (ONS) carried out a census to find out more 
about the people who lived in England and Wales and about the make up of local 
neighbourhoods.  The Census asked about work, health, national identity, citizenship, ethnic 
background, education, second homes, language, religion, marital status etc. 

3



 
The next Census would take place on Sunday 27 March 2011 and its aim would be to ensure 
an accurate count of the people who lived in the city.   
 
The following key points were made: 
 

• Census forms would be sent out to households during mid/late February 2011 and 
the forms would also link into an online process 

• Households would have a ten day window in which to complete the forms 

• The forms had been translated into 58 different languages 

• There would be 350-400 jobs available for working on the census in Peterborough 

• Engagement Plans were being developed, including in Polish 

• Each person identified through the Census meant £600 on the area based grant 

• In 2001 there had been a 95% return rate and this was also the target for 2011 

• It was important the Census was accurate 

• Councillors were asked to support the process with their local knowledge 
 
Observations and questions were raised around the following areas: 
 

• How did we know that there had been a 95% return in 2001?  As it was based on the 
number of households we knew how many forms should have been returned. 

• Given the importance of the Census, should we not be aiming for more than 95%?  
We would be very pleased to get 95% as trials in the migrant areas of the city had 
proved low.  We would be looking at using innovative engagement methods. 

• Was there a way of identifying what languages people needed their Census form to 
be in?  We would be doing a lot of work at grass roots level with local communities 
including myth busting to try and stop the distrust the Census may have in certain 
communities.  We got our data on languages from Language Line and we currently 
had over 100 languages spoken in the city. 

• A number of councillors published ward newsletters which could be used as a way of 
getting the message out.  We would be happy to provide text for newsletters.  Mike 
Lennox in the Communications Team was leading on the communications and he 
would be using all of the opportunities available. 

• How many people had been prosecuted for not completing their Census form?  The 
Executive Director would find out and report back to the Committee. 

• Was the Census the most accurate way to measure the population?  The government 
would be looking at other possible ways of measuring but at the moment officers had 
not seen a better way. 

• How did you ensure that the information completed was accurate?  It was believed 
that most forms would be accurate and a percentage would also be checked. 

 
ACTION AGREED 
 
To note the presentation on the Census 2011. 
 

7. Forward Plan of Key Decisions  
 
The latest version of the Forward Plan, showing details of the key decisions that the Leader 
of the Council believed the Cabinet or individual Cabinet Members would be making over the 
next four months, was received. 
 
ACTION AGREED 
 
To note the latest version of the Forward Plan. 
 
 

4



 
8. Work Programme  

 
We considered the Work Programme for 2010/11. 
 
It was agreed to add the following to the work programme: 
 

• Local Enterprise Partnership (date to be confirmed) 

• Update on the Local Plan and Site Allocations Document (March 2011) 

• Managed ICT Service (move to February 2011) 
 
ACTION AGREED 
 
To confirm the work programme for 2010/11. 
 

9. Date of Next Meeting  
 
Tuesday 9 November 2010 at 7pm 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CHAIRMAN 
7.00  - 9.06 pm 

5



6

This page is intentionally left blank



SUSTAINABLE GROWTH SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 
 

Agenda Item No. 5 

9 NOVEMBER 2010 
 

Public Report 

 

Report of the Executive Director of Strategic Resources 
 
Contact Officer(s) – John Harrison, Executive Director of Strategic Resources 
 Steven Pilsworth, Head of Strategic Finance 
Contact Details -  (01733) 452398 or email john.harrison@peterborough.gov.uk 
 (01733) 384564 or email steven.pilsworth@peterborough.gov.uk 

 
MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL PLAN 2011/12 TO 2015/16 
 
1. PURPOSE 

 
1.1 This report comes to the Committee as part of the Council’s agreed process for budget setting and 

informs the Committee of the Cabinet’s initial proposals for the Medium Term Financial Plan to 
2015/16. 
 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

2.1 That the Committee consider the Medium Term Financial Plan to 2015/16 and makes any 
appropriate recommendations. 
 

3. BACKGROUND 
 

3.1 The Cabinet will be meeting on 8 November 2010 to agree their initial proposals for the Medium 
Term Financial Plan to 2015/16. 
 

3.2 The Cabinet Member for Resources and Executive Director for Strategic Resources will be attending 
the Committee’s meeting to present the proposals.  All scrutiny members have been invited to 
attend the meeting. 
 

3.3 A copy of the Cabinet’s report is attached at Appendix 1. 
 

4. KEY ISSUES 
 

4.1 The key issues are contained within the Cabinet’s report. 
 

5. IMPLICATIONS 
 

5.1 Implications are contained within the Cabinet’s report. 
 

6. NEXT STEPS 
 

6.1 Any recommendations and comments made by the Committee will be referred to the Cabinet for 
consideration at their meeting on 13 December 2010. 
 

7. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 
 

7.1 None 
 

8. APPENDICES 
 

8.1 Appendix 1 – Medium Term Financial Plan 2011/12 to 2015/16 – Report to Cabinet on 8 November 
2010 

 

7



8

This page is intentionally left blank



CMT Performance Reporting Pack

CABINET AGENDA ITEM No. 4

8 November 2010 PUBLIC REPORT

Cabinet Member(s) responsible: Cllr David Seaton 

Contact Officer(s): John Harrison, Executive Director Strategic Resources 

Steven Pilsworth, Head of Strategic Finance 

Tel. 452398 

Tel. 384564 

MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL PLAN 2011/12 TO 2015/16 

R E C O M M E N D A T I O N S 
FROM : Executive Director Strategic Resources Deadline date : Cabinet

1. That Cabinet note the impact of the state of national public finances on the Council’s grant 
settlements, as outlined in the emergency budget in June and Spending Review in October 
including the grant reductions notified for the current and the estimated impact for future 
financial years. 

2. That Cabinet note the position in the current financial year to the end of September and 
approve the actions to manage budgetary pressures in the current financial year that will 
ensure that the Council delivers a balanced budget position. 

3. That Cabinet notes the future financial position for the Council and approve the approach to 
delivering a financially sustainable budget for the next two years, with significant progress to 
delivering a balanced budget in the third year.

4. That Cabinet approve the budget proposals as the basis to consult with Scrutiny, Staff, 
Unions, Stakeholders and the public, and to approve this consultation starting one month 
earlier than previous years, reflecting Cabinets desire to be open, transparent and inclusive 
and give people a chance to put forward their suggestions and ideas 

5. That Cabinet approve that a further report is presented to the December Cabinet meeting on 
the impact of the provisional grant settlement, due in early December 

1. ORIGIN OF REPORT 

1.1 This report is submitted to Cabinet following approval by the Corporate Management Team.  

2. PURPOSE AND REASON FOR REPORT 

2.1 This report comes to Cabinet as part of the council’s agreed process for integrated finance and 
business planning. The report updates Cabinet on the financial position within the current financial 
year and presents budget proposals for 2011/12 through to 2015/16 to enable scrutiny, 
stakeholder and public consultation. 

1 of 24 

9



CMT Performance Reporting Pack
2.2 The council’s agreed Annual Budget Framework requires Cabinet to consider the council’s budget 

and financial strategy and to set provisional cash limits for the forthcoming year. 

2.3 This report is for Cabinet to consider under its Terms of Reference No. 3.2.7, To be responsible for 
the Council’s overall budget and determine action required to ensure that the overall budget 
remains within the total cash limit. 

3. TIMESCALE

Is this a Major Policy 
Item/Statutory Plan? 

Yes If Yes, date for relevant 
Cabinet Meeting 

8 November 
2010

Date for relevant Council Meeting 23
February
2011

Date for submission to 
Government 
department

March 2010 

4. IMPACT OF THE EMERGENCY BUDGET AND SPENDING REVIEW 

4.1 In the early days of the new coalition Government, the Prime Minister and the Chancellor of the 
Exchequer signalled the need to deal robustly with the nation’s financial deficit.  The first 
announcement in May 2010 reduced local government funding in this financial year (2010/11) by 
£1.2bn to contribute to addressing the deficit.  For this council it meant a loss of £2.4m of revenue 
grant and £2.3m of capital grant as shown in the table below.  This loss of nearly £5m has to be 
addressed by the proposals in this paper as they are in the current financial year. 

   

Loss of Grant – 
Revenue (£m) 

Loss of Grant – 
Capital (£m) 

Area Based Grant 1.8

Housing Planning and Delivery Grant 0.5

Local Area Business Growth Incentive 0.1

Transport 1.2

Children Services 1.1

TOTAL 2.4 2.3

5.2 This was followed by the Spending Review, where the Government announced its financial 
spending plans for the next 4 years on 20th October 2010.  As a result, councils will receive an 
overall reduction in Government funding of 28% in real terms over four years.  It was established 
that the cuts would be front-ended which means the council would face greater reductions the first 
year and therefore we expect to see a reduction of over 10% in real terms in that first year. Our 
view on the impact of this is that the Council will face the following grant reductions: 

2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2014-15

£k £k £k £k £k

grant reduction from Spending 
Review      12,159      17,815      18,893       23,399       23,399 

As the Spending Review covers four years, but our financial planning is based on five years, we 
are currently assuming a freeze in year five. It should be noted that it remains difficult to predict 
with certainty the eventual impact on the Council’s funding levels in future years. The financial 
settlement for Councils is expected in early December and will provide the Council’s actual grant 
levels. However, the council has refreshed likely funding scenarios based on the outcome of the 
Spending Review, and it is against this grant position that the proposals outlined in this paper are 
set.

2 of 24 

10



CMT Performance Reporting Pack
4.3 A summary of the other measures in the Spending Review that affect the Council are included in 

Appendix B. 

5. BUDGET 2010/11 AND CURRENT POSITION 

 Overview 

5.1 As outlined above the council has had grant reductions in the current year. Further pressures 
have also emerged within demand led budgets such as social care and look after children. The 
council has been proactive in managing the impact of the grant reductions and other pressures. In 
summary the following actions to date have been taken: 

i. Delivery of departmental savings plans; 
ii. Bringing forward savings proposals from future years; 
iii. Use of balances to smooth impact; 
iv. Review of reserves; and 
v. Review of the capital programme; 

Full detail of the budgetary control position is included in appendix A, with key issues outlined in 
the sections below. 

Revenue

5.2 The loss of £2.4m of grant during the financial year, along with additional budgetary pressures, 
has had a significant impact on the council’s financial position. So far, through actions in 
departments and a number of corporate solutions, it has been possible to absorb these pressures 
and around £700k of the grant loss. The Council is currently continuing with the approach outlined 
in 5.1 above to deliver the further savings required to ensure a balanced budget position is 
delivered. A crucial element in this will be seeing what savings outlined in the budget proposals for 
next year (some £26m) could be delivered early to gain maximum financial benefit. The Council is 
confident that this approach will deliver the remaining £1.7m and a balanced budget by year end. 

5.3 The following table provides a summary view of the revenue forecast for 2010/11. A departmental 
breakdown can be seen in appendix A.  

Current
budgetary 
position

Department £k

Chief Executive 152

Legal & Democratic Services -250

Children's Services 0

City Services 519

Operations 96

Strategic Resources -467

Adult Social Care 0

Corporate actions -773

Impact of £1.165bn cuts 2,433

TOTAL 1,710

3 of 24 

11



CMT Performance Reporting Pack
Reserves

5.4 The council’s projected key reserves position at 31 March 2011 is indicated in the next table. A full 
five year forecast of all reserves is included in appendix F. 

Reserves £k

General Balance 4,561

Capacity Fund 2,041

TOTAL 6,602

5.5 As approved in the current financial strategy, the general balance is below the minimum £6m 
balance the council maintains for risk purposes and is expected to be replenished by 2013 based 
on the latest estimates provided by Cross Keys Homes with regards to VAT shelter income 
projections due to the council.  

Capital

5.6 The overall position of the capital programme is outlined in appendix A. The capital programme 
has been reduced to £102.4m in the current year, mainly due to the net impact of slippage of 
schemes and incorporates the grant reduction of £2.3m as a result of the government’s 
emergency budget. Schemes have been reprofiled to meet the impact of this. Where this has not 
been possible, the issue has been addressed in the budget proposals. Actual spend to date 
remains low at £15m, but this is to be expected as the Council held back on spending due to the 
uncertainty over Government grants. Following the Spending Review and the review of the capital 
programme, schemes can now progress. 

6. FUTURE BUDGET PROSPECTS AND MTFP 2011/12 TO 2015/16

Priorities and approach 

6.1 The budget proposals put forward maintain our commitment to delivering the Sustainable 
Communities Strategy, including: 

  Improving educational attainment and skills for our children and young people.  A key part 
of this vision is bringing established universities to deliver courses to students in 
Peterborough in a multi-versity approach.  It will enable people to study a wider choice of 
higher education courses without having to leave the city. 

  Safeguarding children and vulnerable adults. 

  Growth, regeneration and economic development of the city to bring new investment and 
jobs.

  Environment Capital agenda including pursuing new income streams from solar energy 
and wind farm developments. 

  Delivering services at a neighbourhood level. 

  Supporting Peterborough’s Culture Trust, Vivacity, to continue to deliver arts and culture in 
the city. 

The Cabinet has been working on the budget proposals since June 2010.  It has based its work on 
the following principles, actions and priorities:- 

4 of 24 

12



CMT Performance Reporting Pack
  Continuing to reduce costs and bureaucracy by robustly pursuing its efficiency agenda 

through the business transformation programme and other council departments. 

  Further reducing its dependence on consultancy where it is appropriate to do so and 
upskilling its own workforce. 

  Considering other ways of delivering the best services to our residents that place less of a 
financial burden on the tax payer including working with voluntary organisations and 
businesses to secure value for money and improvements in performance. 

  Reducing the number of people employed by the organisation and reducing senior 
management costs. 

  Reviewing all the buildings the council owns and uses and ensuring they are being used as 
efficiently and effectively as possible and any that are no longer needed are disposed of. 

  Continuing to secure savings by ensuring services provide the best value for money for our 
residents.

  Only making reductions in services where there is still not enough money available to 
deliver them when other savings have been accounted for. 

Budget Proposals 

6.2 The detail of the budget proposals are included in the attached document, along with a full 
explanation of each proposal. If all proposals are accepted, the Council will face the following 
financial position:  

2011/12
£k

2012/13
£k

2013/14
£k

2014/15
£k

2015/16
£k

Budget Surplus (+) / Deficit (-) 3,347 -745 -6,414 -18,508 -23,842

The table above indicates that our plans deliver a surplus in 2011-12, but that we still have deficits 
to tackle in future years. The surplus that we intend to deliver next year will help support our 
position in future years as follows: 

£k

Surplus 2011-12 3,347

Deficit 2012-13 -745

Balance to support 2013-14 2,602

Deficit 2013-14 -6,414

Less Surplus 2011-12 and 2012-13 2,602

Gap to close 2013-14 -3,812

This approach means that the Council will deliver a financially sustainable budget for the next two 
years, and made significant progress in delivering a balanced budget in 2013-14. 

Whilst the Council models the position over five years to ensure we are aware of the financial 
horizon, at this stage we have not developed specific proposals to try and close the gap further in 
the last two years. Their remains considerable uncertainty over the financial position for a number 
of reasons. Including the following: 

  The Spending Review covers four years only (and indeed could be reviewed as part of the 
annual national budget process) 

  The Local Government finance settlement is likely to cover two years (possibly with a 
further two in outline). However the Government is intending to review the whole system of 
local government finance and will implement changes in 2013-14 

5 of 24 

13



CMT Performance Reporting Pack
  The new Census information will be fed through into financial settlements. We expected 

that this will see a more realistic estimate of the growing population of Peterborough used. 

  The impact of the new homes incentive will be clearer 

  The Council will benefit from its investment in renewable energy, through reduced energy 
bills and avoiding the carbon tax 

  The country is likely to be returning to a healthier economic position 

As these issues could well have a positive impact on Council finances, we do not want to consider 
additional savings at this stage. The Council will continue to refresh it’s medium term financial plan 
each year, including developing proposals to meet this financial position at the appropriate time. 

6.3 These budget proposals will form the basis of provisional cash limits for departments, as well as 
forming the basis for consultation. 

7. CONSULTATION 

7.1 This is a comprehensive document setting out, as far as is possible, the Cabinet’s proposals to 
meet a challenging Spending Review announcement by Government.  The council will not know 
the total impact of all the Government’s announcements until the Local Government Finance 
Settlement in December.  However, rather than wait for these announcements, the Cabinet has 
put together it’s proposals to meet the budget challenge a month earlier than it usually would.  By 
doing this, the Cabinet wants to give all our residents, partner organisations, businesses and other 
interested parties the chance to read and digest all of the savings, efficiencies, service reductions 
and investments they plan to make to enable the city to continue to grow and give residents the 
best quality of life.  

7.2 Formal consultation will begin once Cabinet have approved these proposals. This will include: 

  A web-based consultation 

  A special ‘Your Peterborough’ magazine, summarising proposals and inviting feedback, 
to be delivered to all households in Peterborough 

  Copies of proposal documents to be placed in all libraries and receptions at Council 
buildings

  A range of meetings with partners and stakeholders 

  Neighbourhood councils 

  Youth Council 

7.3 The Cabinet wants to be open, transparent and inclusive and give people a chance to put forward 
their suggestions and ideas. 

8. HUMAN RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

8.1 Our current best estimate of the staffing implications are included budget proposals document. 

9. ANTICIPATED OUTCOMES 

9.1 Provision of a balanced in year position and resultant actions is integral to the council’s financial 
management and future budget proposals. The medium term financial plan to be consulted upon 
is part of delivering a sustainable budget in future years. 

6 of 24 

14



CMT Performance Reporting Pack
10. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

10.1 The financial challenges facing the Council are especially acute in coming years. As such it is 
important that the Council develops proposals early to allow full consultation and engagement on 
those proposals. These steps will help to ensure that the Council achieves a balanced budget, 
aligned to corporate priorities.

10 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED

10.1 The Council could have waited until after the Local Government Finance Settlement in 
December, when it would have had greater certainty over its grant position. This however would 
not have allowed additional time for consultation, and so was rejected. 

7 of 24 

15



8 of 24 

CMT Performance Reporting Pack 
Appendix A – Budget Monitoring Report 

Budget 
Current

Forecast 
Outturn

Variance 

£k £k £k

CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S DEPARTMENT 

Chief Execs Department 463 463 0

Legal & Democratic Services 4,066 3,816 -250

Chief Executive Dept & Business Support 2,042 2,042 0

Delivery 2,200 2,307 107

Communications 986 963 -23

Strategic Improvement 468 468 0

Human Resources 619 567 -52

Westcombe Engineering 2 122 120

CHIEF EXECUTIVE DEPARTMENT TOTAL 10,846 10,748 -98

DIRECTOR OF CHILDREN'S SERVICES 

Resources, Commissioning and Performance 8,272 8,199 -73

Learning & Skills 10,368 10,162  -206

Children's Community Health 2,217 2,412 195

Safeguarding Families and Communities 19,740 19,824  84

CHILDREN'S SERVICE TOTAL 40,597 40,597 0

DIRECTOR OF CITY SERVICES 

Building & Technical -235 -235 0

Street Scene & Facilities 537 621 84

Property, Design and Maintenance -440 -690 -250

Other Trading Activities and Business Support 1,997 2,147 150

Maintenance General Fund 13,347 13,882 535

CITY SERVICES TOTAL 15,206 15,725 519

DIRECTOR OF OPERATIONS SERVICES 

Business Support 1,534 1,536 2

City Operations -791 -336 455

Cultural Services 4,981 4,981 0

Directors Office 214 69 -145

Planning, Environment, Transport & Engineering 13,682 13,152 -530

Neighbourhoods 9,597 9,911 314

OPERATIONS SERVICES TOTAL 29,217 29,313 96

DIRECTOR OF STRATEGIC RESOURCES 

Director's Office 262 262 0

Business Support 656 543 -113

Corporate Services 20,390 20,065 -325

Internal Audit 24 39 15

Transactional Services 1,017 1,021 4

Insurance 19 -12 -31

Customer Services 656 656 0

Strategic Property -4,375 -4,375 0

ICT 78 178 100

Procurement 562 542 -20

Business Transformation 2,635 2,477 -158

Waste Management -19 42 61

STRATEGIC RESOURCES TOTAL 21,905 21,438 -467

CORPORATE ITEMS 

Impact of £1.165bn Government Cuts 0 2,433 2,433

Corporate Pressures / Solutions 0 -773 -773

CORPORATE ITEMS TOTAL 0 1,660 1,660

ADULT SOCIAL CARE TOTAL* 40,546 40,546 0

GENERAL FUND TOTAL 158,317 160,027 1,710

DEDICATED SCHOOL GRANT TOTAL 117,291 117,291 0

* - Adult Social Care – NHS Peterborough has indicated that there are budgetary pressures in 
2010/11 in relation to adult social care. We are currently awaiting specific information on the size 
and nature of this pressure and the actions to address. 

16



 Pack

Capital Programme 2010/11 

MTFS 2010 
to 2014 

Budget as at 
01-04-10 

Revised 
budget at 

August 2010 

Profiled 
Budget 

Actual 
Expenditure 

Total 
Budget 
Spent

Anticipated 
Outturn**

Outturn
(under) / 

overspend 

% of 
anticipate
d variance Capital Programme by Directorate: 

£000 £000 £000 £000 % £000 £000 % 

Adult Social Care 921 921 921 0  0 0%   921 0 0% 

Chief Executives 10,696 12,530 7,826 0  78 1%   7,826 0 0% 

Children’s Services 41,219 52,507 40,982 3,691  4,524 11%   40,982 0 0% 

City Services 3,004 4,388 4,388 468  267 6%   4,492 104 2% 

Operations 29,103 36,274 27,681 4,887  4,535 13%   27,641 -40 0% 

Strategic Resources 22,308 27,391 21,304 693  5,104 25%   21,152 -152 -1% 

Contingency -927 -927 -658 0  0 0%   -658 0 0% 

Total Expenditure 106,324 133,084 102,444 9,739  14,508 13%   102,356 -88 0% 

Financed by: 

Grants & Contributions 47,831 60,345 43,155 3,721 8%   43,155 0 0% 

Capital Receipts 13,382 13,382 18,912 654 3%   18,912 0 0% 

Right To Buy Receipts 712 712 712 315 44%   712 0 0% 

Supported Borrowing 6,192 6,192 6,192 6,192 100%   6,192 0 0% 

Borrowing 38,207 52,453 33,473 3,626 8%   33,385 -88 0% 

Total Resources - required 106,324 133,084 102,444 14,508 13%   102,356 -88 -0

9 of 24 

1
7



10 of 24 

CMT Performance Reporting Pack 

Appendix B - Summary of Spending Review issues for Councils 

The Chancellor announced the Spending Review on 20th October, outlining plans for public 
expenditure for the next four years. Below is a summary of the key issues affecting the Council.  
You can also find a more detailed summary of the Spending Review proposals from the Local 
Government Association – on http://www.lga.gov.uk/lga/core/page.do?pageId=14461844

A number of further announcements from government departments are likely in the coming 
months, followed by the local government finance settlement in early December. It may not be until 
this stage that we have the full picture of how this is likely to affect the Council.  However, some 
key points are:- 

  The spending review sets out real terms reductions of 28% in local authority grants over the 
next four years.  

  There will be a real terms increases of 0.1% in each year of the Spending Review for the 5 to 
16s school budget, including a £2.5 billion pupil premium. Underlying per pupil funding will be 
maintained in cash terms. 

  There will be £15.8 billion of schools capital funding over the Spending Review period. The 
Government will rebuild or refurbish over 600 schools from the Building Schools for the Future 
(BSF) and Academies programme. It is not yet clear how this will affect Peterborough school. 

  There is new social care funding of £530m in 2011-12, rising to £1bn in 2013-14, and a further 
£1bn of additional funding through the NHS budget to support joint working between the NHS 
and councils. 

  A commission has been announced on the funding of long term care, due to report in July 
2011.

  Local authority capital funding is cut by the equivalent of 45% over the period, compared with 
29% over the whole of the public sector. Transport capital spend is being focused towards 
major road and rail schemes. (A11 dualling scheme was announced yesterday). 

  16 areas have been nominated to operate community budgets from April 2011, with the 
intention that all areas can take this approach from 2013.  Peterborough has not been 
nominated for this.

  Grants totalling £7bn have been freed up or unringfenced from 2011-12. Around £4bn of these 
will be distributed through Councils’ formula grant, so it remains unclear exactly how much will 
be allocated to each Council. 

  £700m has been set aside to allow councils to set a zero council tax increase for 2011-12. 
Funding will be built into grants for the next four years. However it is not clear if the grant will 
continue after this period. 

  The New Homes Incentive that will reward communities that build houses is confirmed, 
however details on how this will operate will not be released until November. 

  Regional Growth Fund (worth £1.4 billion) announced to create jobs and growth in places 
currently heavily dependent on the public sector - this could include support for activities such 
as housing growth and market renewal. 

  The Government will reduce spending on Council Tax Benefit by 10 per cent and give it to 
councils to control from 2013-14. In addition, the Government will consider providing greater 
flexibilities to local authorities to manage pressures on council tax from the same date. 

 Support for the low carbon economy, including up to £1 billion for one of the world’s first 
commercial scale carbon capture and storage demonstrations on an electricity generation 
plant, support for electric car charging infrastructure, £860 million of new support for 
households and businesses investing in renewable heat measures; and commitment to 
establish a UK-wide Green Investment Bank.

 Funding for adult apprenticeships will be increased by £250 million relative to the level inherited 
from the previous government.

 Some proposals will see increased costs for the Council, including the retention of the Carbon 
reduction commitment funding by Government, a proportion of which the Council was hoping to 
retain, plus the 1% levy on borrowing from the debt management office

18



11 of 24 

CMT Performance Reporting Pack 

Appendix C – Key Figures 

2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16

£k £k £k £k £k

Funding

Dedicated Schools Grant 118,113 118,113 118,113 118,113 118,113

Other School Grants 20,902 20,902 20,902 20,902 20,902

Formula Grant & NNDR 70,468 65,886 61,958 58,685 58,685

Area Based Grant 12,399 11,593 10,902 10,329 10,329

Other Grants 17,467 16,331 15,356 14,542 14,542

Benefit Grants 71,766 71,766 71,766 71,766 71,766

Parish Precepts 364 364 364 364 364

Council Tax Base 60,697 61,304 63,465 65,702 68,019

Council Tax Increase 0 1,533 1,587 1,643 1,700

Council Tax Growth 607 628 650 674 697

Collection Fund Surplus 0 0 0 0 0

Total Funding 372,783 368,420 365,063 362,720 365,117

Gross Departmental Control Totals 389,535 395,002 395,372 401,202 404,063

Less: Savings 2011/12

Service Reduction -8,780 -10,187 -10,005 -10,230 -10,229

Joint Venture / Outsource Proposals (2011/12) -1,400 -3,900 -3,900 -3,900 -3,900

Terms and Conditions -2,660 -3,514 -4,349 -5,121 -5,121

Council Tax Freeze (Grant) -1,517 -1,517 -1,517 -1,517 0

New Homes Incentive grant -1,182 0 0 0 0

Un ring fencing grants -4,209 -4,209 -4,209 -4,209 -4,209

Efficiencies -6,649 -9,579 -9,721 -7,436 -7,171

Sub Total -26,397 -32,906 -33,701 -32,413 -30,630

Capacity Bids 2011/12

Investment in Services 3,423 6,128 8,863 11,495 14,581

Cost of Change 2,875 941 941 941 941

Sub Total 6,298 7,070 9,806 12,439 15,526

Total Expenditure 369,436 369,165 371,477 381,228 388,959

Budget Surplus/Deficit(-) 3,347 -745 -6,414 -18,508 -23,842

Key Figures - Real terms decrease of 28%

The impact that proposals have on closing the budget deficit can also be seen in the table below: 

2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 

£k £k £k £k £k

Budget Surplus (+) / Deficit (-) -16,752 -26,582 -30,311 -38,485 -38,950

Saving
Proposals 

Efficiencies 6,649 9,579 9,721 7,436 7,171

Cost of Change -2,875 -941 -941 -941 -941

Joint venture/outsourcing proposals 1,400 3,900 3,900 3,900 3,900

Terms and Conditions 2,660 3,514 4,349 5,121 5,121

New Homes Incentive grant 1,182 0 0 0 0

Council Tax Freeze (Grant) 1,517 1,517 1,517 1,517 0

Un ring fencing grants 4,209 4,209 4,209 4,209 4,209

SUBTOTAL -2,010 -4,804 -7,556 -17,243 -19,490

Service Reductions 8,780 10,187 10,005 10,230 10,229

Budget surplus (+) / deficit (-) after saving proposals 6,770 5,383 2,449 -7,013 -9,261

Less Capacity Bids - Investment in services -3,423 -6,128 -8,863 -11,495 -14,581

Revised budget surplus (+) / Deficit (-) 3,347 -745 -6,414 -18,508 -23,842

19



12 of 24 

 Performance ReportinCMT g Pack Appendix D – Capacity Bids 

Capacity Bid - Investment in Services

2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16

Department Issue £k £k £k £k £k

Adult Social 
Care 

Learning Disability - growth in 
numbers (non-transition).  

632 1,325 2,091 2,857 3,622

Adult Social 
Care 

Older People (including older people's 
mental health services) - growth in 
numbers.  

189 389 601 814 1,026

Adult Social 
Care 

Learning Disability - transition cases 
from Children's Services 

205 486 640 794 948

Adult Social 
Care 

Physical Disability - growth in 
numbers (includes no residential 
increases). 

99 208 328 449 569

Adult Social 
Care 

Mental Health - growth in referrals and 
increases in statutory work. All growth 
has been contained within budgets for 
last 3/4 years. 

50 75 100 125 150

Chief
Executive
(PDP / 
Growth) 

Supporting growth on key sites (e.g. 
Fletton Quays, Northminster, City 
South, Station Quarter) 

450 0 0 0 0

Children
Services 

Adoption and Fostering 209 0 0 0 0

Children
Services 

Looked after children 250 250 250 250 250

Children
Services 

Cost of Care - unborn children 360 360 0 0 0

Corporate Commercial property rental income 0 0 0 0 450

Corporate Impact of Carbon Reduction 
Commitment following the 
announcement within the government 
Spending Review 2010 

500 500 500 500 500

Operations Traffic light maintenance.    20 20 20 20 20

Operations Investment required as a result of the 
Flood and Water Act (2010) 

95 98 101 104 107

Strategic
Resources 

Cost of rolled forward capital 
programme (a saving in year 1) 

-332 136 159 277 1,123

Strategic
Resources 

Costs of new capital projects and 
funding arrangements 

358 1,590 2,919 3,796 4,171

Strategic
Resources 

Costs of 1% borrowing premium 
introduced by government 

203 556 1,019 1,374 1,510

Strategic
Resources 

Coalition decision - Impact of policy 
decision to increase Insurance 
Premium Tax 

15 15 15 15 15

Strategic
Resources 

Grants Team 120 120 120 120 120

3,423 6,128 8,863 11,495 14,581

Capacity Bid - Cost of Change 

2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16

Department Issue £k £k £k £k £k

Corporate Cost of change 2,875 941 941 941 941

20



13 of 24 

rformance ReportinCMT Pe g Pack Appendix E – Saving Proposals

Efficiencies

2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16

Department Issue £k £k £k £k £k

Chief
Executive
(PDP / 
Growth) 

Reduce financial cost of support to 
Eco-Innovation centre 

50 75 100 100 100

Chief
Executive
(PDP / 
Growth) 

Further savings in cost of 
Peterborough Delivery Partnership 

22 40 100 100 100

Chief
Executive
(PDP / 
Growth) 

Reduction in revenue costs of 
Peterborough Delivery Partnership in 
line with funding constraints in MTFP 
from 2010/11 

200 200 200 200 200

Chief
Executive
(Support 
Services) 

Reduce funding to meet the proposals  
in Communications 

416 416 416 416 416

Chief
Executive
(Support 
Services) 

Reduction in costs of GPP in line with 
reduction in Comprehensive Area 
Assessment work 

50 50 50 50 50

Chief
Executive
(Support 
Services) 

Delete Deputy Chief Executive post 
and office support 

200 200 200 200 200

Chief
Executive
(Support 
Services) 

Reduce Chief Executive office support 30 30 30 30 30

Children
Services 

Deletion of vacant roles, back office 
rationalisation 

770 820 820 820 820

Children
Services 

Transport single contract 0 0 250 250 250

Children
Services 

Clare Lodge 150 150 150 150 150

City 
Services 

Fee income 20 20 25 30 30

Legal and 
Democratic 
Services 

Neighbourhood Councils reduced 
frequency 

6 6 6 6 6

Legal and 
Democratic 
Services 

Reduction in vacant posts in legal 
services 

150 150 150 150 150

Legal and 
Democratic 
Services 

Reduction in training budget 10 10 10 10 10

Legal and 
Democratic 
Services 

Regrading to align other posts  25 25 25 25 25

Legal and 
Democratic 
Services 

Reduction in subscriptions 15 15 15 15 15

Legal and 
Democratic 
Services 

Democratic Services 100 100 100 100 100

Operations New approach to Tourism 37 37 37 37 37

21



14 of 24 

CMT Performance Reporting Pack 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16

Department Issue £k £k £k £k £k

Operations Street lighting energy savings 0 211 211 211 211

Operations Reduce events costs by 2015 31 67 103 139 175

Operations Efficiency savings from Voluntary 
Sector Funding 

50 100 100 100 100

Operations New partnership domestic advocacy 
service 

59 59 59 59 59

Operations Combine the city council and police 
community safety teams 

50 50 50 50 50

Operations Staggered reduction in funding for the 
Women's Enterprise Centre over five 
years

273 300 350 400 424

Operations Creation of new head of planning, 
transport and engineering to replace 
two previous senior manager posts. 

80 80 80 80 80

Operations Reduction in support for Peterborough 
Environment City Trust (PECT) 

40 80 114 114 114

Strategic
Resources 

Customer Services: Training Officer 
post

30 30 30 30 30

Strategic
Resources 

Estimated government allocation to 
meet costs of change 

500 0 0 0 0

Strategic
Resources 

Resultant revenue budget saving 
following a review of the current 
capital programme 

1,110 3,884 3,574 1,205 885

Strategic
Resources 

External Audit Fees 0 20 20 20 20

Strategic
Resources 

Finance Savings 100 100 100 100 100

Strategic
Resources 

Savings following capital investment in 
culture and leisure assets 

0 179 171 164 159

Strategic
Resources 

Reduction in business support and 
departmental overheads 

150 150 150 150 150

Strategic
Resources 

Business Transformation savings 1,900 1,900 1,900 1,900 1,900

Strategic
Resources 

Client management 25 25 25 25 25

6,649 9,579 9,721 7,436 7,171

Joint Venture / Outsource Proposals 

2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16

Department Issue £k £k £k £k £k

Children
Services 

Review delivery options for Children's 
Services 

0 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500

City 
Services 

City Services 900 900 900 900 900

Strategic
Resources 

Outsource Manor Drive 500 500 500 500 500

1,400 3,900 3,900 3,900 3,900

22



15 of 24 

CMT Performance Reporting Pack 
Terms and Conditions

2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16

Department Issue £k £k £k £k £k

Corporate Terms and conditions 1,725 1,825 1,925 1,925 1,925

Corporate Updated estimate for pay award 935 1,689 2,424 3,196 3,196

2,660 3,514 4,349 5,121 5,121

New Homes Incentive

2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16

Department Issue £k £k £k £k £k

Corporate New Home Incentive - coalition 
government  proposal - Indicative 
figures 

1,182 0 0 0 0

1,182 0 0 0 0

Council tax freeze (grant) 

2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16

Department Issue £k £k £k £k £k

Corporate Assumed central government funding 
for council tax freeze in 2011/12 

1,517 1,517 1,517 1,517 0

1,517 1,517 1,517 1,517 0

Un ring fencing grants

2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16

Department Issue £k £k £k £k £k

Corporate Reduce expenditure in areas funded 
by previously ring fenced grant by 
30%

4,209 4,209 4,209 4,209 4,209

4,209 4,209 4,209 4,209 4,209

Service Reductions

2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16

Department Issue £k £k £k £k £k

Adult Social 
Care 

Reduce cost of Adult Social Care 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000

Adult Social 
Care 

Management cost reduction through 
partnership (NHS Peterborough) 

250 250 250 250 250

Adult Social 
Care 

Increase charges within community 
care services 

80 80 80 80 80

Adult Social 
Care 

Review Day Centres through delivery 
of more personalised services 

100 100 100 100 100

Children
Services 

Commissioning Services 350 350 350 350 350

Children
Services 

Restructuring of the 8 - 19 service 400 400 400 400 400

Children
Services 

Review of funding / success for Multi 
Systemic Therapy programme 

0 130 130 130 130

Children
Services 

Impact of Common Assessment 
Framework (CAF) 

25 50 50 50 50

Children
Services 

Review and streamline of delivery of 
Safeguarding function 

25 25 25 25 25

Children
Services 

Review Complaints Services in Social 
Care 

50 50 50 50 50

23



16 of 24 

CMT Performance Reporting Pack 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16

Department Issue £k £k £k £k £k

Children
Services 

Transforming Children's Services 
Phase 2 - delivering around Children's 
Centres / Schools 

50 200 200 200 200

Children
Services 

Safe Walking Routes 34 34 34 34 34

Children
Services 

Post 16 transport charges 12 20 20 20 20

Children
Services 

Limit post 16 transport to a 30 mile 
radius from home 

3 3 3 3 3

Children
Services 

Review of Bus Services to Arthur 
Mellows Village College 

120 120 120 120 120

Children
Services 

Removal of remaining denominational 
transport 

187 187 187 187 187

Children
Services 

Reduction in costs of external social 
care placements 

0 0 250 250 250

Children
Services 

Review of play and preventative 
services 

80 300 300 300 300

Children
Services 

PFI contract review 0 50 50 50 50

Children
Services 

Training and Development Centre 75 75 0 0 0

Children
Services 

Use of former Hereward Community 
College for Governor Services 

96 96 96 96 96

Children
Services 

Development of 'Services for Schools' 210 250 250 250 250

Children
Services 

Reduction in Services funded through 
the area based grant 

736 736 736 736 736

Children
Services 

Review of council children's home 
provision 

200 200 200 200 200

City 
Services 

Reduced Opening Hours of 2 manned 
public conveniences 

10 10 10 10 10

City 
Services 

Wheelie bins fee increase 35 35 40 40 40

City 
Services 

Allotment fee income 30 30 30 30 30

City 
Services 

Recreation income 5 5 5 5 5

Operations Reduction of in year funding 
(Cohesion and violent extremism 
funding) 

114 114 114 114 114

Operations Developing and restructuring 
neighbourhood services 

196 196 196 196 196

Operations Supporting people funding 1,404 1,404 1,404 1,404 1,404

Operations Changing the way housing services 
are delivered in the city 

603 603 603 603 603

Operations Revenue saving from not 
implementing Wi-Fi in city centre 

113 113 120 120 120

Operations Reduction in Community Association 
Grant

30 30 30 30 30

Operations Handover of Gladstone Park 
Community Centre 

46 62 69 67 66

Operations Reduction in Safety Camera 
Partnership Funding 

80 80 80 80 80

24



17 of 24 

CMT Performance Reporting Pack 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16

Department Issue £k £k £k £k £k

Operations Increased revenue from parking 
department 

161 161 161 161 161

Strategic
Resources 

Remove budget for food waste 
collection 

423 1,151 775 1,002 1,002

Strategic
Resources 

Customer Services 50 50 50 50 50

Strategic
Resources 

Reduce award of discretionary rate 
relief - figures include aiming for 25% 

47 47 47 47 47

Strategic
Resources 

Reduce speed of processing benefit 
claims - from 13 to 18 days 

100 100 100 100 100

Strategic
Resources 

Reduce Parish Council payments  0 40 40 40 40

Vivacity Saving on library costs 250 250 250 250 250

8,780 10,187 10,005 10,230 10,229

25



18 of 24 

CMT Performance Reporting Pack Appendix F - Reserves 

2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 

Estimated 
Balance 

at
31.03.11

£000

Estimated 
Balance 

at
31.03.12

£000

Estimated 
Balance 

at
31.03.13

£000

Estimated 
Balance 

at
31.03.14

£000

Estimated 
Balance 

at
31.03.15

£000

Estimated 
Balance 

at
31.03.16

£000

Commercial Property 
Portfolio Reserves 3,043 1,933 1,122 436 0 0

Parish Council Burial Ground 
Reserve 36 36 36 36 36 36

Insurance Reserve 2,308 2,208 2,108 2,008 1,908 1,808

Capacity Building Reserve 2,041 2,176 2,676 3,176 3,176 3,176

Schools Capital Expenditure 
Reserve 1,307 1,307 1,307 1,307 1,307 1,307

Corporate Reserves Total 5,692 5,727 6,127 6,527 6,427 6,327

General Fund Working 
Balance 4,561 5,609 6,000 6,000 6,000 6,000

Total Reserves 13,296 13,269 13,249 12,963 12,427 12,327

26



CMT Performance Reporting Pack 

Appendix G  - Capital programme 

CAPITAL PROGRAMME BUDGET & FUNDING SUMMARY 2010/11 - 2015/16
2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2010/16 

Total
Budget 
2010 - 
2015

Project
Budget  

£000
Budget 

£000
Budget 

£000
Budget 

£000
Budget 

£000

Corporate 
Resources   

£000

Third
Party 

Income
£000

Corporate 
Resources  

£000

Third
Party 

Income
£000

Corporate 
Resources  

£000

Third
Party 

Income
£000

Corporate 
Resources   

£000

Third
Party 

Income
£000

Corporate 
Resources  

£000

Third
Party 

Income
£000

ADULT SOCIAL CARE   
Improving Information 
Management 54 0 0 0 0 0 54 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 54

Aids & Adaptations 250 216 216 216 216 165 85 216 0 216 0 216 0 216 0 1,114

Minor Works Programme 60 36 36 36 36 60 0 36 0 36 0 36 0 36 0 204
Social Exclusion Unit (Mental 
Health) 102 0 0 0 0 0 102 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 102
Replacement of Two Residential 
Homes 3,000 3,000 0 0 0 3,000 0 3,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 6,000

  

Total Adult Social Care 3,466 3,252 252 252 252   3,225 241 3,252 0 252 0 252  0    252 0 7,474

    

CHIEF EXECUTIVES   

Affordable Housing 4,000 2,000 1,918 550 500 4,000 0 2,000 0 1,918 0 550  0  500 0 8,968
Peterborough Delivery 
Partnership Projects 500 500 500 500 0 500 0 500 0 500 0 500 0 0 0 2,000

STEM Centre 2,000 0 0 0 0 2,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2,000

CC Public Realm Works 500 500 500 500 500 500 0 500 0 500 0 500 0 500 0 2,500

Capital Costs of Disposals  1,300 1,200 500 500 500  1,300 0 1,200 0 500 0 500  0  500 0 4,000

  

Total Chief Executives 8,300 4,200 3,418  2,050 1,500 8,300 0 4,200 0 3,418 0 2,050 0 1,500 0 19,468

    

CITY SERVICES   

Asbestos Removal 75 75 75 75 75 75 0 75 0 75 0 75 0 75 0 375

Wheelie Bins 108 108 108 108 108 108 0 108 0 108 0 108 0 108 0 540
Play Areas Improvement 
Programme 185 185 185 185 185 185 0 185 0 185 0 185 0 185 0 925
Structural Maintenance Of 
Council Buildings 405 405 405 405 405 405 0 405 0 405 0 405 0 405 0 2,025

    

Total City Services 773 773 773 773 773 773 0 773 0 773 0 773 0 773 0 3,865

    

OPERATIONS   
Roads & Bridges (including 
Highways) 

3,665 3,665 3,665 3,665 3,665 1,410 2,255 3,665 0 3,665 0 3,665  0  3,665 0
18,325

Disabled Facility Grants 1,400 1,400 1,050 1,050 1,050  471 929 721 679 371 679 371  679  371 679 5,950
Repair Assistance 1,020 1,020 1,020 1,020 1,020 1,020 0 1,020 0 1,020 0 1,020 0 1,020 0 5,100
Implement a Joint Venture 
Partnership with Ringway / 
Atkins 

(1,400) (1,400) (1,400) (1,400) 0 (1,400) 0 (1,400) 0 (1,400) 0 (1,400) 0 0 0

(5,600)
Local & Integrated Transport 
Programme

1,813 1,813 1,813 1,813 1,813 1,615 198 1,615 198 1,615 198 1,615  198  1,615 198
9,065

Off Street Car Parks - Structural 
Works & Resurfacing 

100 100 100 100 100 100 0 100 0 100 0 100 0 100 0
500

Hampton Joint Service Centre  4,000 0 0 0 0 2,000 2,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4,000
Stafford Hall 0 50 0 0 0 0 0 50 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 50
Street Lighting Adaptations 2,375 0 0 0 0  2,375 0 0 0 0 0 0  0  0 0 2,375

19 of 24 

2
7



CMT Performance Reporting Pack 

2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2010/16 

Total
Budget 
2010 - 
2015

Project
Budget  

£000
Budget 

£000
Budget 

£000
Budget 

£000
Budget 

£000

Corporate 
Resources   

£000

Third
Party 

Income
£000

Corporate 
Resources  

£000

Third
Party 

Income
£000

Corporate 
Resources  

£000

Third
Party 

Income
£000

Corporate 
Resources   

£000

Third
Party 

Income
£000

Corporate 
Resources  

£000

Third
Party 

Income
£000

Peterborough City Centre 
Conservation 

70 70 60 0 0 0 70 0 70 0 60 0 0 0 0
200

Replacement of unserviceable 
CCTV cameras 

0 40 0 0 0 0 0 40 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
40

Lincoln Road Traffic Island near 
Alma Road 

30 0 0 0 0 30 0 0 0 0 0
30

Green Transport Funding 96 100 104 108 112 96 0 100 0 104 0 108 0 112 0 520
Thorpe Wood Footbridge  30 0 0 0 0 30 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 30
Bright Street traffic signal 
improvement 

200 0 0 0 0 200 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
200

Renewable Energy Projects 45 120 100 0 0 0 25 0 75 100 0 0 0 265
Junction 5 Boongate capacity 
and safety improvement 

700 0 0 0 0 700 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
700

Real time energy data for 5 sites 15 0 0 0 0 15 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 15
Traffic signals - upgrade of bulbs 
and fitments 

580 0 0 0 0 580 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
580

CCTV Enforcement of 
Parking/Waiting (on-street only) 

100 0 0 0 0 100 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
100

Introduce charging for blue 
badge holders within car parks 

30 0 0 0 0 30 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
30

Break Wirrina car park lease 
and bring inline with other PCC 
operated & managed car parks 

150 0 0 0 0 150 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

150
0   

Total Operations 14,119 7,878 6,512 6,356 7,760 8,622 5,477 6,811 1,022 5,475 1,037 5,479 877 6,883 877 42,625

    

CHILDREN'S SERVICES   

Schools   

Schools Direct Spend 3,634 3,634 3,634 3,634 3,634 0 3,634 0 3,634 0 3,634 0 3,634 0 3,634 18,170
Capital Maintenance On 
Schools 400 400 400 400 400 400 0 400 0 400 0 400 0 400 0 2,000

Secondary Schools Phase 2 1,794 5,754 30,092 1,880 0 1,794 0 5,754 0 30,092 0 1,880  0  0 0 39,520
Primary Capital Programme 11,930 10,581 8,047 5,047 9,000 4,415 7,515 9,581 1,000 7,047 1,000 4,047  1,000  9,000 0 44,605

Arthur Mellows Village College 3,000 0 0 0 0 0 3,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3,000

Modernisation 1,979 2,000 2,000 2,000 0 187 1,792 0 2,000 0 2,000 0  2,000  0 0 7,979
New School Places / Basic 
Need 7,353 1,353 1,353 1,353 0 7,353 0 1,353 0 1,353 0 1,353  0  0 0 11,412

Basic Need Safety Valve 2,612 0 0 0 0 325 2,287 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2,612

PFI Condition Works 1,000 0 0 0 0 1,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,000
Hereward Provision 0 5,000 0 0 0 0 0 5,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 5,000

Harnessing Technology 747 0 0 0 0 0 747 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 747
Capitalisation of School Spend 100 100 100 100 0 100 0 100 0 100 0 100 0 0 0 400

    

Subtotal Schools 34,549 28,822 45,626 14,414 13,034 15,574 18,975 22,188 6,634 38,992 6,634 7,780 6,634 9,400 3,634 136,445

    

Non Schools   

Youth Capital Fund 107 0 0 0 0 0 107 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 107

Extended Schools 173 0 0 0 0 0 173 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 173

    

Subtotal Non Schools 280 0 0 0 0 0 280 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 280

    

Total Children's Services 34,829 28,822 45,626 14,414 13,034     15,574 19,255 22,188 6,634 38,992 6,634 7,780  6,634  9,400 3,634 136,725 

20 of 24 

2
8



CMT Performance Reporting Pack 

2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2010/16 

Total
Budget 
2010 - 
2015

Project
Budget  

£000
Budget 

£000
Budget 

£000
Budget 

£000
Budget 

£000

Corporate 
Resources   

£000

Third
Party 

Income
£000

Corporate 
Resources  

£000

Third
Party 

Income
£000

Corporate 
Resources  

£000

Third
Party 

Income
£000

Corporate 
Resources   

£000

Third
Party 

Income
£000

Corporate 
Resources  

£000

Third
Party 

Income
£000

    

STRATEGIC RESOURCES   

Disabled Access 150 150 150 150 150 150 0 150 0 150 0 150 0 150 0 750
Strategic Property Portfolio - 
AMP 250 250 250 250 250 250 0 250 0 250 0 250 0 250 0 1,250

Accommodation Strategy 150 150 150 150 150 150 0 150 0 150 0 150 0 150 0 750

Cemetery Provision 340 349 340 0 0 340 0 349 0 340 0 0 0 0 0 1,029
Business Transformation Invest 
to Save 625 500 500 500 500 625 0 500 0 500 0 500 0 500 0 2,625
Customer Services 
Transformation 40 0 0 0 0 40 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 40

ICT Managed Service 1,011 597 575 444 250 1,011 0 597 0 575 0 444 0 250 0 2,877
Bayard Air Conditioning 
Refurbishment 1,000 200 0 0 0 1,000 0 200 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,200

Waste Management Strategy 4,955 18,648 16,758 17,928 2,768 4,955 0 18,648 0 16,758 0 17,928  0  2,768 0 61,057

Further Partnership with PCAE (100) (100) (100) (100) 0 (100) 0 (100) 0 (100) 0 (100) 0 0 0 (400)

Deliver Academy (350) (350) (350) (350) 0 (350) 0 (350) 0 (350) 0 (350) 0 0 0 (1,400)
City Services Facilities 
Management (100) (100) (100) (100) 0 (100) 0 (100) 0 (100) 0 (100) 0 0 0 (400)
Agile Working (150) (150) (150) (150) 0 (150) 0 (150) 0 (150) 0 (150) 0 0 0 (600)

Disaster Recovery 25 0 0 0 0 25 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 25
Riverside - Risk Reduction 
Project                                           200 0 0 0 0 200 0 0 0 0 0 200

PCT Properties Works 500 500 0 0 0 500 0 500 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,000
Capitalisation of Schools 
Reserve 500 500 500 0 0 500 0 500 0 500 0 0 0 0 0 1,500
Renewable Energy Projects 500 0 0 0 0 500 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 500

Support for Costs of Change 500 0 0 0 0 500 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 500

    

Sub Total Strategic Resources 10,046 21,144 18,523 18,722 4,068 10,046 0 21,144 0 18,523 0 18,722 0 4,068 0 72,503

    

Leisure Trust Scheme   

Leisure Trust - Property 449 460 377 408 0 449 0 460 0 377 0 408 0 0 0 1,694

Review of Key Theatre 375 375 0 0 0 375 0 375 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 750

Libraries Public Access PCs 50 0 0 0 0 50 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 50

Libraries (Invest to Save) 200 0 0 0 0 200 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 200
Werrington Sports & Recreation 
Centre 20 0 0 0 0 20 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 20

Museum Redevelopment 1,075 0 0 0 0 1,075 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,075

Regional Swimming Pool 75 50 0 0 0 75 0 50 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 125

Sub Total Leisure Trust 2,244 885 377 408 0 2,244 0 885 0 377 0 408 0 0 0 3,914

  

Total Strategic Resources 12,290 22,029 18,900 19,130 4,068   12,290 0 22,029 0 18,900 0 19,130  0    4,068 0 76,417

    

TOTAL CAPITAL 
PROGRAMME 73,777 66,954 75,481 42,975 27,387 48,784 24,973 59,253 7,656 67,810 7,671 35,464  7,511 22,876 4,511 286,574 

21 of 24 

2
9



 Pack

22 of 24 

3
0



 Pack

Capital Investment proposals (included in full capital programme above) 

2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Aids & Adaptions top up to £250k 0 51 51 51 51

Minor Works 0 36 36 36 36

Peterborough City Centre Conservation 35 35 30 0 0

Replacement of unserviceable CCTV cameras 0 40 0 0 0

Lincoln Road Traffic Island near Alma Road 30 0 0 0 0

Thorpe Wood Footbridge  30 0 0 0 0

Bright Street traffic signal improvement 200 0 0

Green Transport Funding 45 120 100 0 0

Junction 5 Boongate capacity and safety improvement 700 0 0

Real time energy data for 5 sites 15 0 0 0 0

Capitalisation of Schools Capital Reserve 500 500 500 0 0

Customer Services Transformation  40 0 0 0 0

Business Transformation Invest to Save 500 500 500 500

ICT Managed Service 250 250 250 250 250

Primary Schools Places - Additional 3,686 3,048 3,047 2,047 9,000

PFI Condition Fund 1,000 0 0 0 0

Wheelie Bins - additional years funding 0 108 108 108 108

Support for Highways Schemes 96 100 104 108 112

Traffic signals - upgrade of bulbs and fitments 580 0 0 0 0

Street Lighting Adaptations 2,375 0 0 0 0

CCTV Enforcement of Parking/Waiting (on-street only) 100 0 0 0 0

Introduce charging for blue badge holders within car parks 30 0 0 0 0

Break Wirrina car park lease and bring inline with other PCC car parks 150 0 0 0 0

Public Realm Phases 2 and 3 500 500 500 500 500

Riverside - Risk Reduction Project 200 0 0 0 0

PCT Properties Works 500 500 0 0 0

Capital Costs of Disposals 0 1,200 500 500 500

STEM Centre 2,000 0 0 0 0

Libraries (Invest to Save) 200 0 0 0 0

Capital Receipts - Remove Unidentified Receipts - Funding Change Revised 0 10,000 10,000 0 0

Capital Receipts - Remove Unidentified Receipts  -395 -2,367 -2,215 -346 0

Renewable Energy Projects 500 0 0 0 0

Support for Costs of Change 500 0 0 0 0

12,967 15,521 13,511 3,754 11,057

23 of 24 

3
1



 Pack

Capital Savings proposals (included in full capital programme above) 

2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Disabled Facility Grants 0 0 -350 -350 -350

Repair Assistance -680 -680 -680 -680 -680

Stafford Hall 0 -950 0 0 0

Works on Council Buildings -345 -345 -345 -345 -345

Reprofiling of Waste Programme -4,222 -3,413 1,858 3,028 1,500

Removal of AD - Waste Programme -6,000 0 0 0 0

Re-profiling Secondary Schools Phase II -23,869  -6,370 30,092 1,880 0

Remove Neighbourhoods Budgets -175 -175 -175 -175 0

Review of Key Theatre Build/Refurbishment -125 -125 0 0 0

Slip Affordable Housing Budget 2010/11 to future years -3,918 2,000 1,918 0 0

Affordable Housing Budget for 2012- 2014 0 -546 -567 0 0

-39,334  -10,604 31,751 3,358 125

24 of 24 

3
2



Medium-Term Financial Plan 
Proposals Document from Cabinet 

8 November 2010 

33



Medium-Term Financial Plan Proposals Document from Cabinet 
November 2010 

1. INTRODUCTION 

2. CONTEXT AND OVERVIEW 

3. OUR PRIORITIES AND APPROACH 
   

4. THE PROPOSALS  

 (a) Reducing Consultancy Costs 

 (b) Reducing Senior Management Costs

 (c)  Joint Partnership/Outsourcing Proposals 

(i) City Services 
   (ii) Manor Drive 

  (iii) New delivery options for Children’s Services 

 (d) Property Rationalisation

 (e) Efficiency Savings 

(f) Fees and Charges 

(g) Un-ringfenced Grants 

 (h) Service Implications (Investment/Reductions)

  Appendix 1 -  Children’s Services  
 Savings/Reductions 
 Investments 

  Appendix 2 -  Operations 
  Savings/Reductions 

  Investments 

  Appendix 3 -  Adult Social Care 
  Savings/Reductions 

  Investments 

  Appendix 4 -  Chief Executive’s 
  Savings/Reductions 

  Investments 

  Appendix 5 -  Strategic Resources  
  Savings/Reductions 

  Investments 

  Appendix 6 -  Culture Trust  
  Savings/Reductions 

  Investments 

  Appendix 7 -  Staff Implications 

  Appendix 8 -  Capital Programme Overview 

34



1

Medium-Term Financial Plan Proposals Document from Cabinet 
November 2010 

1.  INTRODUCTION 

 This is a comprehensive document setting out, as far as is possible, the Cabinet’s proposals 
to meet a challenging Spending Review announcement by Government.  The council will not 
know the total impact of all the Government’s announcements until the Local Government 
Finance Settlement in December.  However, rather than wait for these announcements, the 
Cabinet has put together it’s proposals to meet the budget challenge a month earlier than it 
usually would.  By doing this, the Cabinet wants to give all our residents, partner 
organisations, businesses and other interested parties the chance to read and digest all of the 
savings, efficiencies, service reductions and investments they plan to make to enable the city 
to continue to grow and give residents the best quality of life. 

 The Cabinet wants to be open, transparent and inclusive and give people a chance to put 
forward their suggestions and ideas. 

2. CONTEXT AND OVERVIEW 

 In the early days of the new coalition Government, the Prime Minister and the Chancellor of 
the Exchequer signalled the need to deal robustly with the nation’s financial deficit.  The first 
announcement in May 2010 reduced local government funding in this financial year (2010/11) 
by £1.2bn to contribute to addressing the deficit.  For this council it meant a loss of £2.4m of 
revenue grant and £2.3m of capital grant as shown in the table below.  A loss of nearly £5m 
of capital and revenue has to be addressed by the proposals in this paper as they are in the 
current financial year. 

   

 Loss of Grant – 
Revenue (£m) 

Loss of Grant – 
Capital (£m) 

Area Based Grant 1.8  

Housing Planning and Delivery Grant 0.5  

Local Area Business Growth Incentive 0.1  

Transport  1.2 

Children Services  1.1 

TOTAL 2.4 2.3 

 The next announcement concerned the Building Schools for the Future programme.  The 
council had been promised a contribution of £66m for three schools, Ormiston Bushfield 
Academy, Stanground College and Orton Longueville School.  Whilst the Government has 
continued the funding for Ormiston Bushfield Academy, it halted the spending for Orton 
Longueville and Stanground College. It is still not clear what capital funding may be available 
for these two schools. 

 An emergency budget was announced in June 2010 by the Chancellor and the key feature of 
the announcement was that Government departments should prepare themselves for a 25% 
real term reduction in grants over the next four years.  These departments in-turn provide the 
majority of funding to local government.  Information from Government suggested that 
departments were told to model the impact of 40% grant reductions to contribute to reducing 
the deficit.  Therefore, it became clear that the public sector, including this council, will face 
significant reductions in future years. Following the Spending Review announcement on 20 
October 2010 the council is now clearer as to the financial challenge it needs to address over 
the next five years which is set out at the end of section 3. 

35



2

 Since 2005, the council has continually improved the way that it manages its finances and 
has been working hard to continue to identify ways to make all services more efficient and 
effective and provide greater value for money to our communities.  This work has received 
national recognition from external auditors and the Audit Commission.  We have also won 
awards for the quality of our services including the LGC Finance Award 2010 for our 
efficiency programme and the Customer Service Excellence Award for our customer services 
delivered through Peterborough Direct. 

 Council tax rises over the past four years of 1.4%, 1.4%, 2.5% and 2.5% have been below 
inflation.  Our strategy has maintained future increases at no more than 2.5%.   

 Our strong financial management places the council in a strong position to deal with the 
national challenges.  Cabinet has been working on a range of options during 2010 to meet the 
challenges set out above.  This has involved detailed meetings to interrogate and discuss 
every line of expenditure in the council’s budget.  In addition, they paid particular regard to 
core expenditure which keeps the “business” going and statutory/discretionary spend. As a 
result, the Cabinet has prepared a range of proposals to be considered at its meeting on the 8 
November 2010, over a month earlier than proposals are normally put forward. This will 
enable our residents, partner organisations, businesses and other stakeholders to understand 
the proposals and suggest any better ideas or identify any areas the Cabinet has missed. 
This is a genuine invitation by the Cabinet for people who live, work and spend time in 
Peterborough to take part in a constructive debate on how we respond to the scale of 
reductions we face as well as identifying those areas we should continue to invest in the 
future.

3. OUR PRIORITIES AND APPROACH 

 The Cabinet has been working on these proposals since June 2010.  It has based its work on 
the following principles, actions and priorities:- 

  Continuing to reduce costs and bureaucracy by robustly pursuing its efficiency agenda 
through the business transformation programme and other council departments. 

  Further reducing its dependence on consultancy where it is appropriate to do so and 
upskilling its own workforce. 

  Considering other ways of delivering the best services to our residents that place less of a 
financial burden on the tax payer including working with voluntary organisations and 
businesses to secure value for money and improvements in performance. 

  Reducing the number of people employed by the organisation and reducing senior 
management costs. 

  Reviewing all the buildings the council owns and uses and ensuring they are being used 
as efficiently and effectively as possible and any that are no longer needed are disposed 
of.

  Continuing to secure savings by ensuring services provide the best value for money for 
our residents. 

  Only making reductions in services where there is still not enough money available to 
deliver them when other savings have been accounted for. 

36



3

 The proposals put forward in this paper maintain our commitment to:- 

  Improving educational attainment and skills for our children and young people.  A key part 
of this vision is bringing established universities to deliver courses to students in 
Peterborough in a multi-versity approach.  It will enable people to study a wider choice of 
higher education courses without having to leave the city. 

  Safeguarding children and vulnerable adults. 

  Growth, regeneration and economic development of the city to bring new investment and 
jobs.

  Environment Capital agenda including pursuing new income streams from solar energy 
and wind farm developments. 

  Delivering services at a neighbourhood level. 

  Supporting Peterborough’s Culture Trust, Vivacity, to continue to deliver arts and culture 
in the city. 

 Our finance team has carefully analysed the Spending Review announcements and below is 
a summary of the financial challenges the council has to address and how the proposals meet 
those challenges. 

 As previously stated, the Government announced its financial spending plans for the next 4 
years on the 20 October 2010.  As a result, councils will receive an overall reduction in 
Government funding of 28.4% over 4 years.  It was established that the cuts would be front-
ended which means the council would face greater reductions the first year and therefore we 
expect to see a reduction of over 10% in that first year. 

 The Government announced increased flexibility on how much we can spend on previously 
ring-fenced grants of some £14m per annum, as set out in section 4(g) on page 9.  The 
Government also announced a grant to be paid to prudent councils who keep their budget 
proposals at a level where they do not need to increase tax by more than 2.5% next year.  If 
councils achieve this then residents will have no increase in their council tax.  Other 
announcements in the Spending Review include:- 

  A carbon tax to be paid on the council’s power consumption costs – estimated cost £500k 
per annum. 

  A surcharge on the cost of borrowing by the council – this extra 1% cost will be £200k 
next year and the amount will increase to about £1.5m in 5 years time. 

  Extra money for Adult Social Care - £2bn available nationally. 

  A new council tax benefit scheme in 2 years’ time which councils can design for 
themselves locally – it is anticipated that 10% less money will be available for this. 

 Education received a “good” settlement relative to other services – although we still await 
further details on what this will mean for Peterborough. 

 Whilst capital funding is generally likely to be cut, for example on transport schemes, it would 
appear there is a good chance that the two Building Schools for the Future schemes for 
Stanground College and Orton Longueville School may receive funding. However, the level of 
funding and the timescale on which it may be available remains uncertain. 

The Government is committed to rewarding councils that build homes in their area. As a result 
they have introduced a new grant that will pay councils a sum of money equivalent to the 
council tax applicable to that size of property on each new home completed. The actual 
details of the scheme will not be published for consultation until later in November.  The 

37



4

amount forecast for next year is based on the actual new homes completed in the last 12 
months. The Spending Review has made £190m available nationally for this next year. In 
future years the amount payable will be taken from the overall national pot before each 
council’s overall Government funding is calculated. Whilst we believe that the council may 
gain from the new arrangements it would be unwise to rely on any income from 2012/13 
onwards.

All of the figures and estimations we have made on this page, and in the following table, are 
based upon the most recent available information at the time this document was published. 
The actual figures for our grant settlement will not be known until the Government announces 
the Local Government Finance Settlement in December 2011. 

 Below is a table which details the financial gap the council faces from the reductions in 
funding announcements made by the Government in the Spending Review.  The proposals in 
section 4 set out efficiency and other savings before any service reductions are proposed.  
The proposals also set out new investments to be made in services and facilities.  The table 
below is a high-level summary of all of the proposals set out in this document and the 
council’s predicted overall financial position for the next 5 years and therefore it is important 
that the document is read as a whole, so that the table can be fully understood. 

2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16

£k £k £k £k £k

Budget deficit after grant reductions -16,752 -26,582 -30,311 -38,485 -38,950

           

Efficiencies 6,649 9,579 9,721 7,436 7,171

Costs of change -2,875 -941 -941 -941 -941

joint venture/outsourcing proposals 1,400 3,900 3,900 3,900 3,900

Terms and Conditions 2,660 3,514 4,349 5,121 5,121

New Homes Incentive grant 1,182 0 0 0 0

Council Tax Freeze (Grant) 1,517 1,517 1,517 1,517 0

Un ring fencing grants 4,209 4,209 4,209 4,209 4,209

Budget position after savings listed above -2,010 -4,804 -7,556 -17,243 -19,490

      

Service Reductions 8,780 10,187 10,005 10,230 10,229

Budget surplus (+) / deficit (-) after all saving 
proposals 6,770 5,383 2,449 -7,013 -9,261

      

Investments in services -3,423 -6,128 -8,863 -11,495 -14,581

Overall budget position - surplus (+) / Deficit (-) 3,347 -745 -6,414 -18,508 -23,842

The table above indicates that our plans deliver a surplus in 2011-12, but that we still have deficits 
to tackle in future years. The surplus that we intend to deliver next year will help support our 
position in future years as follows: 

£k

Surplus 2011-12 3,347

Deficit 2012-13 -745

Balance to support 2013-14 2,602

Deficit 2013-14 -6,414

Less Surplus 2011-12 and 2012-13 2,602

Gap to close 2013-14 -3,812

This approach means that the Council will deliver a financially sustainable budget for the next two 
years, and made significant progress in delivering a balanced budget in 2013-14. 

38



5

4. THE PROPOSALS 

 These proposals demonstrate the Cabinet’s commitment to the principles, actions and 
priorities set out in section 2 which are to protect, as far as possible, front-line services and its 
vision for the city through reduced bureaucracy, reduced cost and improve efficiency to 
ensure value for money. 

 (a) Reducing Consultancy Costs 

 Like many councils across the country, the cost of consultancy has attracted 
considerable attention.  Members of our sustainable growth scrutiny committee are 
currently reviewing the council’s use of consultants.  Consultants are generally used 
where a specific expertise is needed on a project or piece of work for a short period of 
time and for which it would not be appropriate to employ a member of staff.  Consultants 
are also used as interim managers to plug gaps in critical posts until a recruitment 
exercise is completed. 

 Since the business transformation programme was launched in October 2006, we have 
bought in the expertise of a professional services partnership to provide the council with 
a resource to manage its efficiency drive.  The use of this consultant resource is very 
carefully managed through an IT system which enables the council to tap into the 
expertise it needs rapidly and monitor this work to ensure this expertise is being used 
effectively.

 The council has also sought to use the expertise of consultants to pass on their skills to 
the organisation as a whole.  Consultancy roles have reduced significantly over the past 
two years and internal roles have been created instead.  The following projects are now 
led by employees of the council:- 

  The transformation and improvement of our customer services. 

  Front to back office integration. 

  Central funding unit which looks to attract additional external funding for the council. 

  Our project management and business analysts are all council employees after the 
transfer of expertise from former consultants. 

  The council’s Manor Drive business support which has helped reduce the council’s 
reliance on employment agencies through running it’s own mini employment agency 
that recruits staff to work across the council in administrative roles as and when they 
are needed. 

  The council has very carefully monitored the return on its investment in consultancy 
services. The overall return on investment on consultancy spend has continued to 
increase with savings doubling in the last financial year.   

  Specific examples of savings achieved by reducing consultancy spend are: 

  We no longer pay consultants to examine and improve the way we run our day-to-
day business and have instead created internal business process improvement 
posts saving £95,500. 

  We no longer have consultants overseeing how we buy in goods and services for 
the council saving £161,650. 

  We have reduced the amount we pay the consultants we do employ – we have 
generally reduced day rates by between 5% and 10% saving £119,451. 

  The Cabinet is looking forward to receiving the outcome of the scrutiny review to further 
improve its use and monitoring of consultants. 

39



6

 (b) Reducing Senior Management Costs

  Since the Chief Executive’s management review 18 months ago and over the period 
from then until now, we have reduced spending on chief officer, head of service and 
other management roles, to streamline the organisation.  Proposals in this paper will 
continue that work. Further work will also look at this band of managers generally, and 
in particular how many people report to a manager or senior manager.  The savings 
identified will reduce costs by over £1.3m. This does not include the partnership 
arrangements outlined in section (c) below, that will see further reductions in 
management and cost. 

 (c)  Joint Partnership/Outsourcing Proposals 

(i) City Services

  In January 2008, Councillor Peach, the then Leader of the council, made a decision 
which effectively asked the Chief Executive to explore opportunities for a private sector 
partner to manage the services within Peterborough City Services.  In October 2009, the 
Cabinet made a further decision to include within the procurement process for waste 
management, the procurement of a private sector partner to run Peterborough City 
Services.  The services within this remit are:- 

  Refuse and recycling. 

  Street cleansing. 

  Parks, trees and open spaces. 

  Property design and maintenance. 

  Passenger/school transport. 

  Catering. 

  Travellers site management. 

  Fleet management. 

  Courier service. 

  The aim for the procurement was to provide an opportunity for Peterborough City 
Services to grow whilst still offering value for money to the council and to free those 
services from the constraints of the council.  The procurement process is at its final 
stages and has produced a strong field of bidders which are looking to deliver 
innovation as well as savings to the council.  It is expected to be able to finalise the 
procurement process in late Autumn of this year and place the contract for the provision 
of these services in early 2011.  Financial projections show that the council can expect 
to make savings of £1m for this procurement process and these savings have been 
projected into the Medium-Term Financial Plan. 

(ii) Manor Drive

Manor Drive was established by the Executive Director of Strategic Resources to create 
a commercially-focused organisation to deliver the back office functions including 
administrative roles within his department. In 2009/10 this project saved the council £2m 
on the original cost of providing these services. The aim was to create an organisation 
that provides quality services that could compete with those in the private sector and 
sell these services to other councils to generate income for the organisation. 

We are now considering which other back office functions should be delivered under a 
similar commercial model including the business support functions for the Operations 
and Children’s Services Departments  

Peterborough and the Manor Drive brand is already building a strong reputation 
nationally and as a result: 

40



7

  We have received external accreditation through awards such as the Government 
award for procurement. 

  We have been asked to speak at seminars and conferences. 

  We have been able to sell our services to other organisations after appearing at 
major exhibitions and conferences. 

  We have generated income for the council by selling the services of interim 
managers to other councils. 

  We have sold our expertise to other councils on how to improve their buying and 
selling processes and efficiency work. 

  We have developed an ICT system with the private sector leading to rebate income 
from further sales. 

  We have helped build the city’s reputation by hosting visits from 60 other 
organisations to explain the ‘Peterborough’ way. 

  The successes of Manor Drive has featured in national publications spreading the 
word about the innovation going on within this council. 

We are committed to continuing and building upon Manor Drive’s success. To do this 
we recognise we now need to look further afield than our current market place and seek 
a private sector provider to further develop Manor Drive and most importantly reduce 
council costs and generate further income for the council to pay for vital services. 

Peterborough and Manor Drive are ideally placed to attract major interest from the 
private sector as a result of: 

  The commercial nature of our operations. 

  Our excellent transport links. 

  The strategic nature of our location on the edge of the major English regions. 

  The accommodation and natural shared service centre environment. 

  Quality ICT infrastructure through our contract with SERCO. 

  Skills and products that we have developed that would add value to a private sector 
supplier.

We have already achieved a great deal and many other councils now visit Peterborough 
to see how we have re-organised our back office services to reduce the unit cost of 
processing individual transactions such as council tax payments and benefit claims.  

However scale is important in this service area, in general terms the more transactions 
that are processed the lower the unit value can be achieved and so we are looking for a 
private sector partner to invest in Peterborough and to make the area a centre for 
transactional and process management – a service which our geography and wider 
economic profile suits.   

The savings to be made in attracting private sector interest are set out in Appendix 5. 

The services in scope of the Manor Drive proposals are as follows:- 

  Business support  
 (legal, HR admin, children’s services, operations and strategic resources) 

  Business transformation 

  Customer services including Beadles 

  Financial systems 

  Transactional HR 

  Parking back office 

  Procurement operations 

  Strategic improvement 

  Transactional services 

41



8

(iii) New delivery options for Children’s Services 

 A review is currently underway to look at options for operating Children’s Services as an 
arms-length management organisation, the details of which are set out in Appendix 1. 

 (d) Property Rationalisation

  The council owns a number of properties from which it runs its services.  The council 
continually reviews its properties which sometimes leads to property being sold or 
acquired where the council can gain uplift in property values by owning a property. 

  As part of the budget-making process, we have evaluated all the building we use and 
own, to reduce the number of buildings our own staff utilise and council costs.  At 
present, the council is moving many of its services into our main offices at Bayard Place 
and Manor Drive.

  We are also investigating how we can make money from our buildings and make better 
use of them by letting out space, making green investment in areas such as solar 
panels, combined heating and power plants and other energy saving measures. 

  The Medium-Term Financial Plan aims to save £631,000 through this project. 

  The council also utilises the proceeds from property sales to support its capital 
investment. This enables the council to reduce its level of borrowing, and the costs 
associated with this. This year, and over the duration of the Medium-Term Financial 
Plan, the council is aiming to earn £36m from sales of surplus assets. This will reduce 
costs by £2.5m by the end of the MTFP period. 

 (e) Efficiency Savings 

The council’s business transformation team together with service departments have 
delivered year-on-year annual cashable savings.  In summary, savings and investment 
are set out below:- 

2007/08 - The savings achieved in this year were £3.5m against an invest to save 
budget of £1.6m, giving a return on investment of £2 to every pound spent recurring. 

2008/09 - The savings achieved in 2008/09 were £3.68m against an invest to save 
budget of £3.4m, giving a return on investment of £1 to every pound spent recurring. 

2009/10 - The savings achieved in this year were £6.2m against an invest to save 
budget of £2.4m, giving a return on investment of £2.50 for every pound spent recurring. 

2010/11 - The saving targets was £12.4m against an invest to save budget of £2.6m, 
giving a return on investment of £4.70 to every pound spent recurring. 

The projects for the pipeline in the future include:  

  Greenshoots – this is a programme of work with other agencies, public, private and 
not-for-profit organisations to combine common services, deliver efficiency savings 
and provide more simple, accessible, front-line services.  So for example it is hoped 
that we can unite assessment processes into a single model which will prevent 
people being seen by two or three different professionals who provide a range of 
health, social care or other public services.  

42



9

  The council also continued to deliver its very successful commercial and 
procurement programme.  Supply and negotiation for the future has identified a 
spend of £26m for the remainder of the financial year which can be addressed 
through negotiation with potential savings of up to £1.2m.   For example, this year 
has seen a complete review of purchasing services within children services with a 
saving of 5% having already been delivered. 

(f) Fees and Charges 

 We have outlined some of the larger and more sensitive increases in fees and charges 
later in this document in the appendices, under the individual service areas. 

 These include charges for car parking, new charges to replace wheelie bins and the 
introduction of charges for new bins for new houses, charges for bereavement and 
registration services, allotment charges, charges for adult social care services and 
charges for those recreation services that have not transferred to Peterborough’s culture 
and leisure trust, Vivacity, such as bowling and putting greens. Other changes to fees 
and charges will be outlined in detailed proposals in the December Cabinet papers 

 (g) Unring-fenced Grants 

  In the past, Government gave pots of money to councils for spending on services 
specified by the Government.  These pots of money were ring-fenced and could only be 
spent on the specific purpose for which they were given. 

  In the Spending Review, the Government announced it’s intention to “unring-fence” 
some of these pots of money, enabling councils to spend them on their local priorities. 

  For this council, we estimate this approximately affects £14m of our funding in what 
would have been more than 30 specific pots of money. We believe an example of a 
grant that may no longer be ring-fenced would be the £65k we receive for citizenship 
ceremonies. However, we will not know for certain which pots of money are affected 
until the Government makes its Local Government Finance Settlement in December. 

   
  If our estimates of £14m are correct, it is proposed to save 30% of this £14m  per year – 

about £4m.  Over the next month we will be working up the proposals for how his 
unring-fenced money will be spent and how £4m will be saved and this will be reported 
to the December Cabinet. 

 (h) Service Implications (Investment/Reductions)

  Children’s Services – see Appendix 1 

  Operations – see Appendix 2 

  Adult Social Care – see Appendix 3 

  Chief Executive’s – see Appendix 4 

  Strategic Resources – see Appendix 5 

  Culture Trust – see Appendix 6 

  Staff Implications – see Appendix 7 

  Capital Programme Overview – see Appendix 8 

 In each appendix we will outline the proposed investments and savings in each area of the 
council.

5. IMPLICATIONS FOR COUNCIL TAX 

 The council’s MTFP published in September 2010 assumed annual council tax increases of 
2.5%.

43



10

 As already set out, the Spending Review announced a new grant that would enable the 
council not to increase next year’s council tax. The Government is, in effect, paying prudent 
council’s extra grant for keeping their council tax rises at 2.5% or below. 

The impact is that for: 

 2011/12 – NO INCREASE IN COUNCIL TAX.
 2012/13 – an increase of no more than 2.5% but the council would work with the 

Government to see if this headline figure could be reduced over the next 12 months. 
 2013/14 to 2015/16 – a maximum increase of 2.5%. 

 Council tax bills are not only made up of council charges but also charges from other public 
bodies to fund their services.The remainder of the council tax bill is made up from charges 
from:

      Police and fire – they have been offered a similar incentive grant enabling them to 
potentially levy no increase in council tax if they can contain expenditure. 

  Parish Councils – they do not receive any direct funding from the Government so no 
grant is available for them. 

 To give parish councils the opportunity to re-look at their own charges over the longer-term, 
the council is protecting their funding for 2011/12.  No reduction in parish council funding is 
proposed. It is hoped that this will encourage them to consider no increase in council tax. If 
police, fire and parish councils do not decide to increase their charges, overall council tax bills 
will not increase at all from 2010/11 to 2011/12. 

   

44



11

APPENDIX 1 -  
SERVICE IMPLICATIONS (INVESTMENTS / REDUCTIONS) – CHILDREN’S SERVICES

Children’s Services is responsible for overseeing and providing services for families and children in 
Peterborough to ensure all our children are given the best possible start in life, access to good 
education and other support to help them thrive and reach their full potential.  

The department is divided into four service areas responsible for education and learning, children’s 
social care, providing heath and community care and managing our schools and other buildings in 
which these services are based. The senior managers responsible for each of these key areas also 
have overall responsibility for different geographical areas of the city and the children’s services 
those areas provide. 

(i) Learning and skills and the south of Peterborough  

The learning and skills division is the service that works to improve the standard of 
education in Peterborough as well as those services provided for families, children and 
young people outside of school. These include children’s centres, pre-schools, the 8 to 19- 
year-olds service which runs our play centres and youth centres, our ‘before and after 
school’ activities and the school governor service. This division also works to ensure all 
school-age children in Peterborough receive an education. 

(ii) Safeguarding, family and communities and the central and east area of Peterborough 

This division is responsible for protecting Peterborough’s most vulnerable children, including 
those who need protection from significant harm and children in care.  

(iii) Children’s community health and the north west and rural areas 

In recent years we have worked hard to bring together those services which ensures the 
healthcare needs are met for all children in Peterborough. The development of the 
children’s community health service has enabled us to bring together children’s services 
across health, social care and education. The senior manager in charge of this area is 
jointly accountable to NHS Peterborough, Peterborough Community Services and the city 
council. The role is responsible for providing a wide range of services from nurses in 
schools, children’s centres, pregnancy clinics and respite care and other services for 
children with complex health needs and disabilities.  

(iv) Resources, commissioning and performance with overall responsibility for 
overseeing how children’s services are delivered in the different areas

The resources, commissioning and performance division is responsible for overseeing the 
management of the schools funding – the largest part of the Children’s Services budget. It 
provides a range of support and advice to schools and the rest of the children’s services 
department including managing their finances, buying services for children not provided by 
the council, providing training and ensuring those professionals who work with children are 
properly trained, ensuring Peterborough has enough school places for all school age 
children both now and in the future, and looking after all of the council-run schools in the 
city.

The overall cost of the Children’s Services Department to the council is £37m.

The proposals below reduce that spend by £3.6m. 

45



12

SAVINGS - REVENUE 

Review of Play Services 
Current budget = £669k 

We provide play centres for children who are between their 5th and 14th birthdays. There is a 
varied programme of activities available and we provide access to materials and equipment. They 
are open to everyone, all year round.  There are currently eight centres across the city supporting 
different communities.  We are proposing to review all play services across the city to ensure we 
are providing play opportunities where they are most needed, for the largest number of children, 
and represent the best value for money for tax payers.  

This review may result in some play centres closing, we may start to charge for some sessions, or it 
may lead to some of the centres being run by voluntary organisations. It may also result in play 
services being moved into some of our children’s centres that already provide a number of 
successful services for families. 

Issue

2011/12
£k

2012/13
£k

2013/14
£k

2014/15
£k

2015/16
£k

Review of play and preventative 
services 

80 300 300 300 300

Reviewing the children’s services we buy from other organisations 
Current budget = £3.3m (less grant income) 

Not all of the services for children in the city are directly provided by the city council. The council 
pays, or commissions, other organisations to deliver some of these services, for city children.  
Examples include support for disabled children, preventing teenage pregnancy with a focus on 
young fathers and the emotional wellbeing of children in care. 

In this challenging financial climate we need to make sure the services we provide or buy from 
other organisations make a really positive difference to the lives of children, their parents, families 
and carers in Peterborough and give city tax payers the best value for money. 

As part of this review our commissioning team will also seek new external funding, to continue to 
grow and improve services.

There are currently two commissioning teams in children’s services and we will be amalgamating 
these teams to enable us to reduce any duplication. 

Issue

2011/12
£k

2012/13
£k

2013/14
£k

2014/15
£k

2015/16
£k

Commissioning Services 350 350 350 350 350

Area Based Grant 
Current budget = £5.8m 

Previously the council received much of its funding from the Government to provide services for 
children in specific pots of money that had to be spent on specific services. However, in 2010/11, 
and increasingly in the future, the Government is giving councils greater flexibility to decide how it 
spends the money it receives on services for children and families in a larger pot of general money 
called the Area Based Grant to be spent on educational services. 

46



13

The 2010/11 grant was reduced in year by 25% which meant that Children’s Services had a quarter 
less of the money to spend than it had originally budgeted for. We are therefore anticipating the 
need to continue to make 25% savings over the next five years to reflect the expected ongoing 
reduction in funding available to the council.   

This grant pays for services including:- 

  Supporting parents and carers applying for children’s school places. 

  Supporting children in care through education in the city. 

  Before and after school activities. 

  Vocational courses such as construction and engineering. 

  Helping schools to develop travel plans to encourage more of their staff and parents and pupils 
to walk, cycle, or use public transport to get to school to reduce congestion on our roads and 
make our city greener for all our residents. 

  The careers advice service. 

  Support for schools to improve their pupils’ reading and writing skills. 

  Schemes to help reduce teenage pregnancies in the city and substance misuse.  

  The Children’s Fund (which provides preventative services for children, young people and 
families such as family mediation and services to prevent young people mis-using drugs and 
alcohol).

  A programme to recruit and keep more social workers to work with some of the city’s most 
vulnerable children and families. 

We will be reviewing all of these areas to reduce any costly processes, red tape, and expensive 
bureaucracy to reduce the impact of this reduction in funding on services however inevitably it will 
result in the reduction in services in some areas.   

Issue

2011/12
£k

2012/13
£k

2013/14
£k

2014/15
£k

2015/16
£k

Reduction in Services funded 
through the area based grant 

736 736 736 736 736

Restructuring the 8 to 19 year-olds service 
Current budget = £3.6m (less grant income) 

The 8 to 19 year-olds service is responsible for ensuring that all our children and young people 
successfully move from primary to secondary schools and seeks to encourage more of our young 
people to go onto university, further training or find jobs. 

To enable us to tailor these services to the specific needs of the communities in different areas of 
the city, this service is divided into three geographical areas serving the south of the city, the 
central and east area and the north west and rural areas. 

Each of these teams: 

  Provide activities for young people after school and during the holidays.  

  Work with the most vulnerable young people in schools and youth centres to encourage 
them to continue to participate in education and training and youth activities. 

  Work with those young people who may be at risk of entering the downward spiral into a life 
of crime. 

Although these are not services the council is legally required to provide by the Government we 
recognise the important role they play in building our communities and ensuring our children and 
young people are encouraged to reach their full potential, do not commit crimes and anti-social 
behaviour and use their time in a positive way. 

47



14

Budget pressures mean we do not believe we can continue to provide the same level of funding in 
this area in future years, however we are proposing to continue to target these activities to the most 
vulnerable 8 to 19-year-olds living in the city.  

To achieve this we are proposing to continue to employ the same numbers of personal advisors, 
youth workers and key workers who work directly with these young people while reducing the 
number of managers and back office services that are common across all three areas. 

Issue

2011/12
£k

2012/13
£k

2013/14
£k

2014/15
£k

2015/16
£k

Restructuring of the 8 – 19 service 400 400 400 400 400

Review of in-house children’s homes   
Current Budget = £2.3m 

The council currently runs three residential children’s homes including two of which that provide 
respite care for children with disabilities. Analysis has shown that Peterborough tax payers are 
paying more for these services than in other local authority areas. 

We are therefore proposing to review the services provided by these homes and look at alternative 
ways we could provide support, care and homes for these children while at the same time reducing 
the burden on the public purse.

Providing residential respite care is the most expensive form of respite and we believe that there 
are equally good and less expensive alternatives.  

Issue

2011/12
£k

2012/13
£k

2013/14
£k

2014/15
£k

2015/16
£k

Review of council children’s home 
provision

200 200 200 200 200

Review of support to reduce children coming into care and offending (Multi-Systemic 
Therapy) 
Current budget = £352k. 2011/12 last year grant contribution £150k 

In 2007, Peterborough was selected as one of 10 pilot areas to trial a scheme to reduce the 
number of children being taken into care or getting involved in crime by offering their families 
intensive support from trained professionals. 

The Multi Systemic Therapy (MST) project employs a team of psychologists, social workers and 
family therapists to  work directly with those families who have young people with complex clinical, 
social and educational problems, and who may have previously been violent, used drugs or had 
been excluded from school.

It aims to help those young people who may be at risk of developing early personality disorders, 
chronic offending and anti-social behaviour and could be taken into care, to remain with their 
families in the community. 

The MST programme was funded by the Department of Health for four years and the council 
currently provides £130,000 towards the overall £352,000 cost of the project.  We are now 
reviewing how successful this pilot has been on turning around the lives of these families and any 
resulting savings that will have been made to society by having to take less of these young people 
into care or through the youth offending system. If the benefits cannot be identified, the pilot will 
end and the £130,000 funding from children’s services will be a saving.  Department of Health 
analysis on MST worldwide has shown that £5 is saved for every £1 invested.   

48



15

Issue

2011/12
£k

2012/13
£k

2013/14
£k

2014/15
£k

2015/16
£k

Review of funding / success for 
Multi Systemic Therapy 
programme 

0 130 130 130 130

Reduction in cost of external placements 
Current budget = £4.2m 

The council is currently improving its adoption and fostering services to enable us to recruit more of 
our own foster carers rather than having to pay for external placements that can cost the council 
three times as much. We are also striving to reduce the number of children within the council’s care 
overall by working more closely with at risk families to prevent their children being taken into care in 
the first place. 

Issue

2011/12
£k

2012/13
£k

2013/14
£k

2014/15
£k

2015/16
£k

Reduction in costs of external 
social care placements

0 0 250 250 250

Impact of the Common Assessment Framework (CAF) 
Current budget = £123k  

Previously children with additional needs would have been assessed by a number of different 
experts to build up a picture of the support they needed. However the introduction of the Common 
Assessment Framework (CAF) has meant that now families will only see one professional who will 
carry out one detailed assessment making the process much better for those families involved and 
making savings for all agencies who provide children’s services. 

The increase of the use of CAF in Peterborough has enabled us to cut out many of the costly 
processes and duplication across services and target our funding to providing the hands-on front-
line services that are making a difference to children’s lives in individual neighbourhoods.  

Issue

2011/12
£k

2012/13
£k

2013/14
£k

2014/15
£k

2015/16
£k

Impact of Common Assessment 
Framework (CAF)  

25 50 50 50 50

Review complaints services in social care 
Current budget = £74k 

As we strive to provide the most efficient and effective services across the council we have now 
changed the way we deal with complaints about children’s social care services. The complaints 
team within children’s social care is being amalgamated with the council’s corporate complaints 
team.  We will buy in the expertise to deal with more complex complaints as and when required.  

Issue

2011/12
£k

2012/13
£k

2013/14
£k

2014/15
£k

2015/16
£k

Review Complaints Services in 
Social Care 

50 50 50 50 50

49



16

Private Finance Initiative (PFI) Contract Review 
Current budget = £8.5m  

In September 2005, IIC Bouygues Education was appointed to design, build and manage the 
buildings and facilities for three Peterborough schools for the next 30 years (Voyager School, Jack 
Hunt and Ken Stimpson.) The council and the schools pay an annual contribution to the company 
over the life of the contract.  The contract is due for review in 2012/13 and we propose to look at 
ways of changing the way these services are run to reduce the cost to the council including a full 
review of energy costs.   

Issue

2011/12
£k

2012/13
£k

2013/14
£k

2014/15
£k

2015/16
£k

PFI contract review 0 50 50 50 50

Transforming Children’s Services Phase 2 

The council is committed to ensuring that a wide range of children’s services are available within 
the neighbourhood in which you live to give all young people the best chances in life.  By bringing 
together a range of professionals, from healthcare workers to youth workers, to work together in 
one area, it enables us to provide better services for you at less cost. Working out in the 
communities also enables us to respond to issues at the earliest stage in the most appropriate way. 
We believe that by working closer with our children’s centres and schools we can improve services 
and make considerably more savings while continuing to make it easier for you to access the 
services you need, when you need them. 

Issue

2011/12
£k

2012/13
£k

2013/14
£k

2014/15
£k

2015/16
£k

Transforming Children's Services 
Phase 2 - delivering through 
Children's Centres / Schools 

50 200 200 200 200

Transport
Current budget = £1.5m 

The provision of free transport for children is outlined in the Children’s Services Transport policy.  
We are currently reviewing this policy to ensure all of these services are providing the best value for 
money for tax payers while ensuring all our children have a safe journey to school. 
Measures include:

  Reviewing the bus services to Arthur Mellows Village College. We currently spend £575k 
providing these services - more than for any other school in Peterborough.  We are therefore 
reviewing all routes and considering introducing a staggered start and end to the school day to 
enable us to make cost savings by using the same bus and driver to make two journeys instead 
of two buses with two drivers.  This would enable us to save taxpayers’ money. 

  Safe Walking routes – where a route is currently considered to be unsafe, free transport has 
been provided.  It is proposed to review all of the routes where we know we have improved 
highway safety and where appropriate, withdraw the free transport currently provided. 

  Denominational transport – Peterborough is one of the only council’s in the country to still 
provide free transport to allow children to access faith schools.  We no longer offer this 
discretionary free service to pupils who started at faith schools in September 2010. This 
proposal seeks to remove free transport from those existing children who still receive it.  
However those parents on low incomes will still qualify for support under other provision within 
the transport policy. 

50



17

  Post 16 charges – We are one of the only council’s who still provides free transport to children 
over 16 in education on medical grounds or with statements of special educational needs 
costing the taxpayer £20,000. All other families are charged £300 for this service.  We are 
proposing to introduce this charge for all families which brings us in line with other neighbouring 
councils.  We also intend to charge per child rather than per family.  However, families receiving 
benefits who currently get free transport will only pay half of this charge ensuring we continue to 
support those on the lowest incomes. 

  Limit post 16 transport to a 30 mile radius from home - Currently we provide free transport to 
the nearest educational establishment when particular courses are not offered within five miles 
of a family’s home.  This has meant we have previously paid for young people to attend courses 
in London.  We are proposing to place a limit on the travelling distance to 30 miles from home, 
as the crow flies, for post-16 students.  This would mean that we would still transport young 
people to Peterborough Regional College, New College Stamford, College of West Anglia 
Wisbech and Huntingdon Regional College. 

  Change to primary transport provision - In line with legislation, it is proposed to change the 
policy so the qualifying safe “home to school” walking distance is raised from two to three miles, 
for those in Years 5 and 6 (age 9 to 11) who are not on specific low incomes or on an unsafe 
route to school.  For those on low incomes, Government guidance states the distance should 
stay at two miles until the end of Year 6.  There are no immediate savings but it would limit 
further requests for transport from this age group. 

  We will offer cycles instead of bus passes to those eligible students who can access school by 
a safe cycling route - A cycle, safety helmet and road safety training would cost about £200.  
Compared to a public bus pass, this would save £200 per child, per year and up to £500 per 
child, per year on a specific school bus route.  Savings are unknown until the scheme is up and 
running.

Full consultation on these changes will be held with those children affected by the change.   

Issue

2011/12
£k

2012/13
£k

2013/14
£k

2014/15
£k

2015/16
£k

Review of Bus Services to Arthur 
Mellows Village College 

120 120 120 120 120

Safe Walking Routes 34 34 34 34 34

Removal of remaining 
denominational transport 

187 187 187 187 187

Post 16 transport charges 12 20 20 20 20

Limit post 16 transport to a 30 mile 
radius from home 

3 3 3 3 3

Removal of discretion on primary 
transport

0 0 0 0 0

Offering Cycles instead of bus 
passes

0 0 0 0 0

51



18

Review delivery options for Children’s Services 

A feasibility study is under way to review options for operating Children’s Services as an arms- 
length management organisation.  Several models of delivery exist including social enterprise, trust 
arrangements or partnership with an external organisation.  Savings will come through a reduced 
cost base due to flexible employment terms and procurement.  Such a transfer will ensure a 
sustainable and full children service delivery model will be protected.  All services will be reviewed 
but are expected to transfer into the new organisation.  A commissioning/review team will remain as 
part of the council to manage the relationship with the new organisation.   

Issue

2011/12
£k

2012/13
£k

2013/14
£k

2014/15
£k

2015/16
£k

Review delivery options for 
Children’s Services. 

0 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500

Deletion of Vacant Roles, back office rationalisation and voluntary redundancy exercise 

A number of vacant posts have remained unfilled in Children’s Services whilst national funding has 
remained uncertain.  Posts have also been held vacant in our back office services.  These posts 
have been reviewed against how critical they are to support key services and whether they impact 
upon the level of services the public receives.  From this list, £320,000 of posts, many of which are 
either back office roles or have not been filled in the past 12 months, will be deleted from the 
structure.  In addition, we are reviewing all management posts in Children’s Services which adds to 
the overall saving. We will also seek volunteers for redundancy to reduce our headcount and costs. 

  2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16

  £k £k £k £k £k

Deletion of Vacant Roles, back 
office rationalisation 770 820 820 820 820

Transport Single Contract 
Current budget = £1.5m  

Currently we have contracts with many different companies to provide transport for those accessing 
children’s services including home-to-school transport.  We believe we can save taxpayers’ money 
and put together an attractive proposition to travel providers by putting all these services out to 
tender as part of one joined-up contract. We estimate this could save more than £250,000 per year.   

Issue

2011/12
£k

2012/13
£k

2013/14
£k

2014/15
£k

2015/16
£k

Transport single contract 0 0 250 250 250

Additional Income 

As the council continues to face budget pressures in coming years it is more important than ever 
that we find ways to generate income in order to protect services. We have identified four key areas 
in which we believe we could achieve this: 

  Clare Lodge is the leading national provider of secure placements for young women in the UK.  
By setting up an arms-length organisation to run this home on behalf of the council, we could 
make cost savings, and re-invest the money we made into providing better services. 

52



19

  Training and Development centre – A significant amount of staff time, and public money is 
currently spent on rooms across the city for meetings and training.  We are therefore hoping to 
make substantial savings by using the former Hereward Community College as a training and 
development centre until the school re-opens in 2012. We propose to hold all children’s 
services’ meetings at these premises and make them available to other council departments 
too.

  Governor Services - The governor development service provides advice, support and training 
opportunities to Peterborough school governors, clerks and headteachers.  The service helps 
them effectively fulfil their legal responsibilities and supports improvements in the quality of 
education and the standards of achievement in our schools. Currently this service costs the 
council £96,000. We are proposing to fully recover these costs by selling these services to 
schools and offering services to other councils. 

  A number of services which we previously received specific pots of Government money to fund 
for schools have continued as free services even though the grants have stopped.  These 
services, for example, literacy and numeracy support, costs the tax payer about £100,000. We 
are one of the only councils in the country that has continued to offer these services for free. 
Therefore we are going to review these services and where appropriate charge schools to 
access them. If schools do not wish to buy these activities, services will be reduced accordingly.  
This will enable us to extend existing popular services such as curriculum support around 
literacy and numeracy and review opportunities for new support services to be sold to schools 
both within and outside Peterborough.  

Issue

2011/12
£k

2012/13
£k

2013/14
£k

2014/15
£k

2015/16
£k

Clare Lodge 150 150 150 150 150

Training and Development Centre 75 75 0 0 0

Use of former Hereward Community 
Collegel for Governor Services 

96 96 96 96 96

Development of ‘Services for Schools’  210 250 250 250 250

Review of Peterborough Safeguarding Board Function 
Current budget = £208k

The role of Peterborough Safeguarding Children Board (SCB) is to coordinate local work to 
safeguard and promote the welfare of children and to ensure the various agencies that protect 
children including our own children services, Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Foundation Trust, 
the Strategic Health Authority and NHS Peterborough; the police and Probation Service, work 
together effectively. 

The city council currently provides half of the board’s funding.  We are already working much closer 
with Cambridgeshire Safeguarding Children Board following the appointment of a joint chair in the 
summer. We are now looking at ways to reduce further duplication and share services between the 
two boards to save money for all the agencies that fund it, including the city council. 

Issue

2011/12
£k

2012/13
£k

2013/14
£k

2014/15
£k

2015/16
£k

Review and streamline of delivery 
of Safeguarding function 

25 25 25 25 25

53



20

INVESTMENTS - CAPITAL 

Building Schools for the Future (BSF) 

On the 5 July 2010, the Government’s Building Schools For The Future programme was stopped 
and the new coalition Government started a full review of capital spending on schools.  As a result, 
the schemes to re-build Ormiston Bushfield Academy, Stanground College and Orton Longueville 
Schools (OLS) were shelved.

The city council worked hard to ensure the city did not lose out and on the 6 August 2010, following 
an early review of capital schemes, the Government announced the re-building of the Ormiston 
Bushfield Academy will go ahead and work will start on site in December 2010.  At the current time, 
the schemes for Stanground and Orton Longueville remain shelved. The funding for the planned 
£27m investment in school computers and special schools was also removed. 

The council had committed £34m to support the redevelopment of the two schools but this will only 
be possible with the additional funding of £39m from the Government.   

We recognise that the two schools need updating. Both were built in the 1960s, are in poor 
condition and do not have the high-tech facilities available in the rest of our modern secondary 
schools. Stanground College closed for three days in 2009 after its drainage systems failed.   

There has been no significant investment in either site for several years because they were 
expected to be re-built as part of this Government programme.  Investing in either existing schools 
now would not represent good value for money for taxpayers. 

We are currently in discussion with ministers over what type of funding may be available in the 
future.  From early discussions, the key factors the Government will base spending decisions upon 
are:-

  Condition of buildings. 

  Pressure on school places in the authority. 

  The willingness of local authorities to contribute to the projects. 

Peterborough is likely to score highly on these measures.  A full case is currently being developed 
ready to present to the Government once the consultation on funding is concluded and a new 
scheme starts.   

As the timetable for delivering these projects is changing, we have also slipped the budget for the 
council’s contribution in line with the revised timescales. 

Additional School Places 

Much of the money the council receives to fund education in the city is based upon the number of 
pupils registered at individual schools. In January 2003, 15% or about 2,612 of the primary school 
places and 12.75% or 2,212 of secondary school places were left unused in the city.  

This was above the level deemed acceptable by the Government, which could have led to 
reductions in the amount of education funding we received. That is why we launched a review of 
secondary schools in 2003 to reduce the number of surplus places and closed Honeyhill School 
and used classrooms in other primary schools for children’s centres, nurseries and pre-schools to 
reduce the number of unused primary school places. 

The impact of migration and the city’s growth ambitions have meant that since 2003 this trend has 
reversed and now demand for secondary school places has slowly risen and continues to rise. The 
demand for primary school places has also continued to rise since 2007. 

54



21

We predict that by 2019 there will be 12% more pupils in our secondary schools than in 2009 
without taking into account the city’s expected growth in population or the effects of increased 
numbers of young people staying on at school after GCSEs. 

We also predict that by 2012 there will be no surplus primary school places for children starting 
school.  The Government requires the council to have a minimum of 5% of surplus school places to 
deal with in-year movements and support parental choice. 

This funding will enable a further 4,200 pupils to start at city primary schools creating 600 additional 
classes and a further 2,600 students to start at city secondary schools creating 520 additional 
classes by 2017. 

Issue

2011/12
£k

2012/13
£k

2013/14
£k

2014/15
£k

2015/16
£k

Additional School Places 3,686 3,048 3,047 2,047 9,000

PFI Condition Fund 

As part of our long term strategy to ensure all of our secondary schools in Peterborough were 
providing first class facilities for pupils in the city we built one new school (The Voyager) and 
refurbished and extended two other schools (Ken Stimpson and Jack Hunt) in the first phase of our 
secondary schools review. The company which carried out this now manages the upkeep of these 
new buildings and the city council is responsible for maintaining the older parts of the building that 
were retained at the two extended schools.

However, if the council invests in these buildings to bring them up to the same standard as the new 
parts of the building by 2013 then the developers will take over the responsibility for the upkeep and 
development of all three entire school sites for the next 25 years.  Investment now would therefore 
enable the council to make substantial savings in the future.   

Issue

2011/12
£k

2012/13
£k

2013/14
£k

2014/15
£k

2015/16
£k

PFI Condition Fund 1,000 0 0 0 0

55



22

INVESTMENTS - REVENUE 

Adoption and Fostering Service 
Current budget = £4.2m 

Following this year’s Government Ofsted inspection, specific weaknesses were identified in 
adoption and fostering services.  Short term investment is required to develop these services. This 
will enable the council to increase the number of staff working in these teams to recruit families to 
foster or adopt to provide stables homes for children in care. If the council does not recruit enough 
of its own foster carers then it has to place children with families outside of the city which is far 
more costly. 

Issue

2011/12
£k

2012/13
£k

2013/14
£k

2014/15
£k

2015/16
£k

Adoption and Fostering 209 0 0 0 0

Looked After Children 
Current budget = £7.2m (including fostering) 

We had previously predicted that the numbers of children in care would fall in the future, however 
following Government guidance and a change in the way children are assessed before they are 
taken into care, this number has remained static at around 300.  The needs of the children in this 
group are often complex requiring expensive specialist support.  This investment reflects the 
increasing needs of this group of children. 

Issue

2011/12
£k

2012/13
£k

2013/14
£k

2014/15
£k

2015/16
£k

Looked after children 250 250 250 250 250

Unborn Children 
Current budget = £155k 

Our social care teams not only assess children deemed to be at risk but also those who have not 
even been born yet. Our social care teams have identified up to 20 families who may need 
additional support from our social care teams and up to eight additional babies that may need to be 
placed with foster carers or be adopted after they have been born. The investment will help to pay 
for short-term placements for these children and enable us to carry out further work with this group 
of expectant parents to prevent the need for the children to be taken into care.  

Issue

2011/12
£k

2012/13
£k

2013/14
£k

2014/15
£k

2015/16
£k

Cost of Care – unborn children 360 360 0 0 0

56



23

APPENDIX 2 –   
SERVICE IMPLICATIONS (INVESTMENT/REDUCTIONS) - OPERATIONS

The operations directorate oversees most of the council’s front-line services from building and 
maintaining the city’s roads to running major events such as the annual Great Eastern Run.  
Services include:- 

(i) Transport and engineering service

 From repairing and maintaining existing roads to building new ones and overseeing bus 
services, this department is responsible for planning the future of transport in Peterborough 
and its surrounding villages.    

(ii) Planning services 

Whether you are an individual wanting to build an extension on your home or a multi-million 
pound developer, our surveyors, planners and other technical teams will work with you to turn 
your plans into reality. 

(iii) Neighbourhood services 

 Brings together all of those services who are working down your street to improve the whole 
of our community.  From the neighbourhood managers who deal with resolving issues such 
as anti-social behaviour to our licensing enforcement staff who make sure businesses are 
operating within the law. 

(iv) City operations

 Looks after your city centre from CCTV cameras and car parks to running events such as the 
annual half marathon, music events including last summer’s JLS concert, the annual 
Christmas lights switch on and a wide variety of street markets.  They also ensure that the city 
is ready and able to deal with a major emergency and support city-wide business and tourism. 

The overall revenue cost of the operations directorate is £21m.  
The proposals below reduces that spend by £4.019m by 2015/16. 

SAVINGS - REVENUE 

Amalgamation of Transport and Engineering and Planning Services
Current budget = £208k 

Peterborough aims to build a minimum of 25,500 new homes and create 20,000 new jobs within the 
next 20 years. It is vital that our future transport systems meet the needs of our city’s growth to 
ensure a bigger Peterborough is a place where we can walk, cycle, use public transport and is as 
congestion-free as possible. By bringing together the transport and engineering and planning teams 
we will ensure that Peterborough grows in the right way to benefit us all. By bringing together our 
planners, transport engineers and other staff in these areas to be managed by one senior manager 
the council will save £80k. 

2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16

Issue £k £k £k £k £k

Creation of new head of planning, 
transport and engineering to replace 
two previous senior manager posts 

80 80 80 80 80

57



24

Changing the way we deliver services down your street and cracking down on neighbourhood 
issues

The neighbourhood services teams work out in the community to get to the heart of the issues 
facing that area. We are proposing to build upon this successful work by creating a new 
neighbourhood and environmental service that will work with residents to tackle problems within 
communities and prevent them from reoccurring.  We are currently consulting with staff and unions 
but this could combine a new regulation and enforcement service with our neighbourhood 
management and preventative teams to work with individual neighbourhoods to tackle anti-social 
behaviour, parking, and environmental issues, take strong enforcement action against persistent 
offenders, and help communities to plan and prepare effectively for the future. We will also focus 
more heavily on enforcement to ensure that businesses, landlords and residents, and other 
organisations are complying with required laws and standards and are not having a detrimental 
effect on the lives of those who live, work and visit our city. 

2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16

Issue £k £k £k £k £k

Developing and restructuring 
neighbourhood services 

196 196 196 196 196

A new approach to housing services 
Current budget = £653k 

We are also looking at delivering our housing services differently. The choice-based lettings service 
currently run by the council’s neighbourhoods team is a discretionary service and costs the council 
£603,000 to run each year. We are working with the registered social landlords in the city such as 
Cross Key Homes, Axiom and Minster to look at how these services can be delivered without 
putting such a financial burden on the council.  

2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16

Issue £k £k £k £k £k

Changing the way housing services 
are delivered in the city 

603 603 603 603 603

Combining services that improve community safety 
Current budget = £508k  

Currently the city council and the police both have their own community safety teams that work 
under the umbrella of the Safer Peterborough partnership to make Peterborough a safer place to 
live, work and visit. By combining the two teams we can save £100,000 tax payers’ money. 
Tackling domestic abuse remains a priority for the partnership and there are very good support 
services provided in this area by voluntary organisations. It is therefore proposed to work with the 
police and organisations such as Victim Support, Rape Crisis and Women’s Aid to provide a 
different support service for those affected by domestic abuse saving £59,000 a year. 

2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16

Issue £k £k £k £k £k

Combine the city council and police 
community safety teams 

50 50 50 50 50

New partnership domestic advocacy 
service 

59 59 59 59 59

58



25

Supporting Women’s Enterprise Centre to become self-sufficient in five years  
Current budget = £424k 

Only a year after it opened Peterborough Women’s Enterprise Centre is already receiving national 
and European recognition for its work to support women in the city to develop their business 
ventures. As its success grows it is anticipated that it will generate further income and need to rely 
far less on public funds. It is therefore proposed to reduce its funding over the next five years 
saving the council from £273,000 in 2011/12 up to £424,000 in 2015/16. 

2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16

Issue £k £k £k £k £k

Staggered reduction in funding for the 
Women’s Enterprise Centre over five 
years

273 300 350 400 424

Reducing our impact on the environment
Current budget - Street light and traffic signal maintenance = £1.7m 

Peterborough is already in the national and international spotlight for our innovative forward-
thinking approach to tackling environment issues and has a growing reputation as home of 
environment capital. Next year we are proposing to make a major investment in our 24,000 strong 
network of street lights and our traffic light systems to enable us to make annual savings of 
£211,000 while also reducing our impact on the environment as set out below. 

We are proposing to invest in energy saving LED bulbs for our street lighting and use the latest 
technology to dim lights in locations and at times where it is appropriate. A new state-of-the-art 
system would allow us to instantly see why lights are out and to respond much more effectively to 
faults. This investment is included in the capital section under the heading “street lights and traffic 
signals” on page 33. 

2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16

Issue £k £k £k £k £k

Street lighting energy savings 0 211 211 211 211

Changing the way services are provided for vulnerable people in the city - Supporting 
people funding 
Current budget = £4.3m 

The council used to receive a pot of money worth £5.021m specifically for supporting vulnerable 
people to remain at home. This money has been used to pay for support and advice provided to 
residents by organisations such as the NHS, social landlords and the voluntary sector. 

The council no longer receives a specific pot of money to pay for these services and any funding 
used to pay for them is now part of the overall grant the council receives from the Government. 
Therefore, along with many other services, the council needs to decide how to spend the reduced 
funding it receives. 

We will be consulting with those organisations who currently provide these services for residents to 
change the way this support is provided. We will work closely together to remove as much 
bureaucracy, red tape and costly processes as possible and enable residents to still benefit from 
similar services that are not as costly to the public purse. We will base our final decisions on the 
needs of the community. This will mean changes and reductions to some services but at this stage 
it is too early to say exactly which these will be.  It is also important that we avoid increasing 
financial pressure on adult social care. 

59



26

2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16

Issue £k £k £k £k £k

Supporting people funding 1,404 1,404 1,404 1,404 1,404

Parking
Current income budget:  £3.4M 

We are proposing to make significant improvements to our car parks to give better disabled access, 
introduce pay-on-exit machines to enable enforcement officers to monitor parking on our streets.   

We will be changing the way we charge you to park in the city. Rather than the current system of 
charging the same rate across all of our car parks, we will seek to competitively price each of our 
car parks. This will make sure we fill our car parks and make best use of the space available across 
the city. This will mean some prices will go up and some will go down and the council will be aiming 
to compete with private operators in the city.  

To improve safety outside of our schools and close to pedestrian crossings we are proposing to 
introduce state-of-the-art technology to crackdown on inconsiderate motorists. 

We will install CCTV cameras into our council vehicles so as they patrol the city they will capture, 
through automatic number plate recognition, parking on hazard markings on the approach to 
pedestrian crossings and outside schools.  This will generate automatic fines in the same way as 
speed cameras.  This will seek to address a considerable number of complaints we receive from 
members of the public.   

2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16

Issue £k £k £k £k £k

Increased revenue from parking 
department

161 161 161 161 161

Wi-Fi in City Centre 
Current budget = £105k revenue, £269k capital for 10/11 

Due to the difficult budget decisions the council is having to make, we are proposing to put this 
project on hold.  This will save £269k on this year’s capital budget, £105k on this year’s revenue 
budget (part year) and £113k each year after that. 

2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16

Issue £k £k £k £k £k

Revenue saving from not 
implementing.

113 113 120 120 120

Community association grants 
Current budget = £65k Gladstone Park £67k  

The council currently provides small sums of money to a large number of community and resident 
association regardless of their individual circumstances. Most community associations receive 
£1,250. The total budget for this grant is £65,000. We intend to devise a system to enable each 
association, if it wishes to do so, to bid for a sum of money to support its work in bringing together 
communities to become more actively involved in their neighbourhoods. 

60



27

While we are proposing to reduce the overall pot of money by £30,000, each group will be expected 
to become actively involved with the neighbourhood councils which will have access to additional 
funding through the development pot.   

We have been working with the community in the Gladstone area for some time with the aim of 
transferring the Gladstone Park Community Centre to community control from April 2011 which 
would in turn save the council £46,000 in the first year rising to £66,000 by 2015/16.  

2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16

Issue £k £k £k £k £k

Reduction in Community Association 
Grant

30 30 30 30 30

Handover of Gladstone Park 
Community Centre 

46 62 69 67 66

Road safety 
Current budget = £210k 

We currently invest £210,000 into Cambridgeshire Safety Camera Partnership which is responsible 
for managing all of the speed cameras across Cambridgeshire. As a result of the overall reduction 
in the funding the council receives from the Government we are proposing to reduce our 
contribution to this partnership. 

2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16

Issue £k £k £k £k £k

Reduction in Safety Camera 
Partnership Funding 

80 80 80 80 80

PECT
Current budget = £114k 

Peterborough Environment City Trust (PECT) was set up in 1993 to support the city’s work to 
reduce our impact on the environment. As the organisation has grown both as a business and a 
charity, the council has seen the need to change the way it supports its activities.  Therefore rather 
than providing direct funding to the organisation we are proposing to purchase services from the 
organisation as and when required and work jointly on any bids for additional money. As a charity 
organisation PECT may be able to bid for funding that a council, as a public service could not, but 
the council could support this bid.  In order to support this change we plan to reduce the funding to 
PECT over the next two financial years. 

2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16

Issue £k £k £k £k £k

Reduction in support for PECT 40 80 114 114 114

Cohesion and preventing violent extremism funding 
Current budget = £431k 

There has been a grant reduction of £114,000 in this area and we are planning to reduce spend 
accordingly. 

61



28

2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16

Issue £k £k £k £k £k

Reduction of in year funding 114 114 114 114 114

New approach to tourism 
Current budget = £303k 

Since the successful opening of our new destination centre last year, we have been working to 
modernise our entire approach to tourism. We are proposing to expand the services offered by the 
centre to include a conference booking facility and building upon our international links with cities 
such as Bourges, Viersen and Alcala de Henares. 

2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16

Issue £k £k £k £k £k

New approach to Tourism 37 37 37 37 37

Events
Current budget = £198k 

The city currently has a varied programme of events throughout the year to cater for residents of all 
ages.   Major events also bring thousands of people to our city who also spend money here and 
improve the economy of our city centre.  We currently provide large scale events such as the Great 
Eastern Run at no cost to the tax payer. This is not possible in all areas, however, by increasing 
sponsorship and charging businesses over the next five years to run events in our city, we expect 
to increase our programme of events and reduce our overall costs to £23,000.   

2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16

Issue £k £k £k £k £k

Reduce events costs by 2015 31 67 103 139 175

Voluntary sector funding 
Current budget = £550,000 

Voluntary sector organisations play a key role in supporting communities in Peterborough and 
surrounding areas. We recognise the vital contribution they make but with budget pressures, like all 
areas of the council we need to ensure the funding we provide is having the largest impact on 
improving the lives of our residents.  We have a commitment to help and support the voluntary 
sector to become more efficient and we have a project to start to look at supporting them to make 
efficiencies in their operations.  Within the existing budget for 2011/12 there is a savings target of 
£100k, and further savings identified are limited to £50,000 in 2011/12 to allow these changes to be 
phased in without affecting the level of grant for the provision of frontline services. 

2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16

Issue £k £k £k £k £k

Efficiency savings from Voluntary 
Sector Funding 

50 100 100 100 100

62



29

SAVINGS - CAPITAL 

Repairs assistance funding 

The council has previously spent about £1.9m a year on repairs assistance grants to pay for 
improvements to private housing that are in need of urgent work because they are unsafe or 
unhealthy for their occupants. The grants are means-tested and fund a range of works including 
improvements to kitchens and bathrooms, damp proofing and drainage repairs. 

We will continue to deliver a repairs assistance programme, but are proposing to reduce this sum of 
money by 40% whilst still ensuring that it is targeted at those most in need or who are most 
vulnerable in our city. 

2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16

Issue £k £k £k £k £k

Repair assistance funding  680 680 680 680 680

Disabled facilities funding 

We currently provide about £1.9m a year to help adapt the homes of vulnerable people to enable 
them to continue to live independently. The funding is means-tested and can pay for equipment 
such as stair lifts, back hoists or improving heating systems.  

This is vital work that the council considers a priority and therefore we are not proposing to make 
any cuts in the next two years. 

However, as the council continues to face greater budget pressures in later years we will have to 
consider cutting this funding by 25% after that. 

2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16

Issue £k £k £k £k £k

Disabled facility funding 0 0 350 350 350

Stafford Hall 
Current budget:  £1m in 2012/13 

Stafford Hall was built in the 1970s for the community in Hampton Court, Westwood. It provides 
rooms for local residents groups, and is a vibrant, well-used facility at the heart of the community. 

It was intended to rebuild this facility, however we are working with Cross Keys Homes to bring 
forward a comprehensive development of the shopping area to include reprovision of community 
facilities. In the meantime we will spend £50,000 to refurbish Stafford Hall until that development 
comes forward.  

2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16

Issue £k £k £k £k £k

Refurbish rather than re-build Stafford 
Hall

0 950 0 0 0

63



30

Neighbourhood Council Capital spend 
Current budget = £175k 

The council initially provided £25k for each of the seven neighbourhood councils, a total of £175k 
per year. It is proposed that this budget is removed. The reduction is anticipated to be replaced by 
monies coming into neighbourhoods (to be allocated by individual neighbourhood councils) from 
developers as a result of new buildings in the area. The budgets for 2010/11 will remain, enabling 
councils to kick-start projects identified in their neighbourhood plans. At this stage there is no 
specific provision in 2015/16 for this area, so the savings only apply in four years. 

 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16

Issue £k £k £k £k £k

Reduction of Neighbourhood Council 
Capital investment 

175 175 175 175 0

64



31

INVESTMENT - CAPITAL 

John Mansfield Centre 
Current budget = £90k revenue, £1.5m Capital project including contributions 

Since the John Mansfield Centre opened in Eastfield in the summer of 2007 we have been 
successfully working with City College Peterborough (formerly Peterborough College of Adult 
Education) to deliver apprenticeships, education and training to 16 to 18-year-olds in the city who 
may have left school without qualifications. This excellent centre also provides a valued community 
facility for people in the area. The council is committed to continuing to invest in this centre.  

Focus Community Centre 

The Focus Community Centre has been at the heart of the Dogsthorpe community for many years. 
The council recognises the important contribution it makes to residents living in this area and is 
therefore committed to ensuring that money received from developers for community facilities in 
this area is invested in refurbishing this centre. The council is currently investigating the 
refurbishment requirements and also the ability to utilise Section 106 monies (the funding from 
developers to pay for community facilities). 

Lincoln Road parking 

To improve parking in the Lincoln Road/Alma Road area we are proposing to install new parking 
bays and safety measures to prevent double parking.

2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16

Issue £k £k £k £k £k

Investment into safety measures at 
Lincoln Road 

30 0 0 0 0

City centre conservation 

For the past year we have been improving the vibrancy of the city centre by demolishing the Corn 
Exchange, installing water fountains and creating the new St John’s Square. We are now proposing 
to further improve this area by investing in our historic buildings and shopfronts in Cowgate. The 
newly created St John’s Square will be improved as a result of the city council joining with English 
Heritage in a 'Partnership in Conservation Areas Scheme'.  We will be investing £100k over three 
years into a match-funded scheme with English Heritage and supplemented by contributions from 
property owners in the area.  The total investment is estimated to be in the order of £350k.  The 
work will include the reinstatement of traditional shopfronts and sash windows, brick cleaning, re-
pointing and re-painting facades.  This work will assist in the regeneration of the area 
by supporting the current public realm works and the rehabilitation and reuse of vacant and under-
used upper floors. 

2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16

Issue £k £k £k £k £k

Investment into improving the visual 
impact of Cowgate and St John’s 
Square

35 35 30 0 0

65



32

Thorpe Wood footbridge 

The current footbridge had to be closed for health and safety reasons and this additional funding 
will allow us to make the required improvements to re-open it. 

2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16

Issue £k £k £k £k £k

Investment to allow the footbridge to 
reopen

30 0 0 0 0

Bright street traffic lights 

These are among the oldest traffic lights in the city and need to be replaced. This investment will 
enable us to link these lights to our existing network of lights that are electronically managed and 
will help to further improve traffic flow in the city. 

2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16

Issue £k £k £k £k £k

Investment to enable an old set of 
traffic lights to be replaced before they 
fail

0 200 0 0 0

Green transport funding 

As part of our commitment to being the home of environment capital we are increasingly looking for 
innovative ways to make it easier for those who live and work in the city to leave their cars at home 
and cycle, or share transport. 

We are proposing to invest £265,000 over three years in cycling facilities, parking bays specifically 
allocated to people who share cars, and energy-efficient employee pool cars. 

2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16

Issue £k £k £k £k £k

Investment to encourage use of green 
transport

45 120 100 0 0

66



33

Boongate roundabout 

Minor works to improve traffic flow on this already busy roundabout by widening the exit route into 
the city centre. 

2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16

Issue £k £k £k £k £k

To improve traffic flow at Boongate 
roundabout

0 700 0 0 0

Real-time energy data 

To help the council reduce its energy costs we intend to fit high-tech energy monitors which will 
help our staff see exactly how much energy different equipment uses, and the difference made by 
turning off lights and computer screens on a day-to-day basis on our bills. 

2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16

Issue £k £k £k £k £k

Investment into energy monitors 15 0 0 0 0

CCTV cameras 

We are proposing to replace old cameras that are coming to the end of their lives, with new and 
more modern technology. 

2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16

Issue £k £k £k £k £k

Investment in unserviceable CCTV 
cameras 

0 40 0 0 0

Street Lights and Traffic Signals 

Next year we are proposing to make a major investment in our 24,000 strong network of street 
lights and our traffic light systems. We are proposing to invest in energy-saving LED bulbs for our 
street lighting and use the latest technology to dim lights in locations and at times where it is 
appropriate. A new state-of-the-art system would allow us to instantly see why lights are out and to 
respond much more effectively to faults. We are also investing in our traffic lights to keep traffic 
moving in Peterborough.  The revenue implications are set out on page 25. 

This investment will help generate the savings outlined in the earlier section.

2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16

Issue £k £k £k £k £k

Investment in Street Lights and Traffic 
Signals to reduce consumption of 
energy

2,955 0 0 0 0

67



34

Parking infrastructure 
(CCTV enforcement cameras on vehicles/charging for blue badge holders) 

We are proposing to make significant improvements to our car parks to give better disabled access, 
introduce pay-on-exit machines to enable enforcement officers to monitor parking on our streets.   

To improve safety we are proposing to invest in state-of-the-art technology to crackdown on 
inconsiderate motorists by installing CCTV cameras into our council vehicles so as they patrol the 
city they will capture, through automatic number plate recognition, parking on hazard markings on 
the approach to pedestrian crossings and outside schools.  This will generate automatic fines in the 
same way as speed cameras.  It will also address a considerable number of complaints we receive 
from members of the public.   

We will be increasing and improving the number of disabled badge parking spaces within our car 
parks.

2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16

Issue £k £k £k £k £k

Additional Investment in Parking 
infrastructure 

280 0 0 0 0

Support for Highways schemes 

The main local transport plan funding for highways schemes is already included in the capital 
programme. It is intended to top this up each year to make sure that the size of the pot does not 
diminish over time.

2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16

Issue £k £k £k £k £k

Support for Highways schemes 96 100 104  108 112 

INVESTMENT - REVENUE 

Traffic lights maintenance 

We are proposing to invest £20,000 in maintaining our traffic lights to keep the city as congestion-
free as possible. 

2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16

Issue £k £k £k £k £k

Traffic light maintenance 20 20 20 20 20

Impact of Floods and Water Act (2010) 

Under the Floods and Water Act (2010) we are responsible for mapping out the areas that are at 
risk of flooding across the city. We will then work with the Environment Agency, Anglian Water and 
our drainage boards to reduce these risks.  This investment of £95,000 in 2011/12 rising to 
£107,000 in 2015/16 will increase the maintenance work on our drainage systems. 

2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16

Issue £k £k £k £k £k

Investment required as a result of the 
Floods and Water Act (2010) 

95 98 101 104 107

68



35

APPENDIX 3 - 
SERVICE IMPLICATIONS (INVESTMENT/REDUCTIONS) – ADULT SOCIAL CARE

Adult Social Care Services include: 

(i) Community Care Assessments, Support Planning and Reviews 

We assess care needs and support people to complete self-assessments.  We calculate 
how much money is available to meet people’s needs using a “Resource Allocation System” 
and help people develop a plan to meet their needs.  We carry out regular reviews of 
people’s needs.  We also assess the needs of carers and support them with services which 
give them a break from caring. 

(ii) Safeguarding 

We work to prevent the abuse of vulnerable adults and we investigate when there are 
concerns that someone has been abused or harmed.  We then work with them to protect 
them from further abuse. 

(iii) Learning Disability Services 

We work with people with learning disabilities to support them to live independently 
whenever possible.  We provide some day care services which aim to give people 
opportunities for social activities, training and support them to use services in the 
community.  We also help people obtain employment and support them in their working life. 

(iv) Services for Older People 

We provide services to help older people remain independent.  We buy in many of these 
services from voluntary organisations such as Age Concern Peterborough.  We provide 
some day care services and also some residential homes. 

(v) Mental Health Services 

We help people with mental health problems to live independently whenever possible and 
we also provide support around employment.  We also have approved mental health 
practitioners who are social workers who work with people with very serious mental illness 
and who can, if absolutely necessary, support people who need to be admitted to hospital or 
who need other very intensive mental health services. 

(vi) Services for people with physical disabilities and sensory needs 

We provide services to help people remain independent and get on with their lives.  Some 
services are provided by voluntary organisations.  We also provide some day care.  We 
have a specialist team that supports people with sight and hearing disabilities.   

(vii) Other specialist services 

We provide other specialist services including the hospital social work service and a team 
which supports people who are living with HIV. 

The overall cost of the Adult Social Care department to the council is £40.5m. 

The savings proposals below reduces that spend by £2.4m.  

Adult social care services are delivered through a partnership with NHS Peterborough.  We have a 
legal duty to meet the needs of those who are eligible for these services.  However, there is 
considerable flexibility in how needs may be met.   

69



36

We have reviewed the budget using the following key principles: 

 Early intervention and prevention – in order to reduce cost pressures, we will do all we can to 
prevent people needing our services in the first place.  We will continue to invest in services that 
enable people to continue living independently in their own homes. 

 Re-ablement – these are very intensive services which last for around six weeks and help 
people get ‘back on their feet’ after a fall or illness.  There is very good evidence that these 
services work and about half of people will not need ongoing services after receiving them.  We 
will invest in this area and aim to have services for all those people who would benefit from 
them.

 Personalised services – if people do need ongoing social care services, for example some 
people with learning disabilities who may require life-time care, we will ensure that we allocate 
funding in a fair and clear way by allocating them individual budgets.  People will then have 
choice and control over the services they receive – a personalised approach.  Because people 
who continue to live in their own homes tend to do better, we will only fund residential care 
when absolutely necessary. 

SAVINGS - REVENUE 

Reducing the cost of adult social care 

We are already investing in re-ablement services which we expect will achieve significant savings.  
People will receive re-ablement services before any assessment of their ongoing needs is 
concluded.  We will also look carefully at how resources are allocated and ensure that the 
“Resource Allocation System” (the system which calculates how much money is available to meet 
an individual’s needs) properly takes account of needs, the costs of services and the overall 
resources that are available.   

2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16

Issue £k £k £k £k £k

Reduce cost of Adult Social Care 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000

Management Cost Reductions through Partnership 

NHS Peterborough is in the process of making changes to community services which will in future 
be delivered by independent NHS trusts.  The council still needs to consider the detailed proposals 
but would expect to achieve savings if and when services are transferred to Cambridge Community 
Services as currently proposed.  All NHS organisations have to reduce management costs by about 
45% and it is anticipated there could be further savings for the council once this process is 
complete.

2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16

Issue £k £k £k £k £k

Management cost reduction 250 250 250 250 250

70



37

Review Day Centres 

We will deliver more personalised services out in the community and within people’s homes. 
Services based in buildings which the council and NHS Peterborough run themselves can be very 
expensive and are increasingly not the sorts of services which people choose.  We will review day 
care services for both older people and people with learning disabilities and look to only continue 
those services that are making a real difference to improving those people’s lives. Because some 
people do choose day care, we expect some services to remain in place. 

2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16

Issue £k £k £k £k £k

Review Day Centres through delivery 
of more personalised services 

100 100 100 100 100

ADDITIONAL INCOME 

Community Care Services 

We will increase charges for some community care services for example day care services, respite 
care services and home care services.  In general we will make charges which reflect the true costs 
of these services.  This is an area we know people find difficult but we believe it is fair at a time 
when we face funding reductions.  People on low incomes will continue to pay lower charges or 
none at all where it is appropriate.   

2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16

Issue £k £k £k £k £k

Increase charges within community 
care services 

80 80 80 80 80

71



38

INVESTMENT - REVENUE 

Growing numbers of people and more complex needs 

Each year there are growing numbers of people who need to use social care services. This is 
especially so for people aged 65 and over and for those people with learning disabilities. As people 
are living longer the number of our residents with complex disabilities and long-term conditions 
continues to grow.  We have projected the likely increases in the numbers of people who will need 
our services and have developed the adult social care budget on this basis.  Financial pressures 
from these rising numbers of people and more complex needs are significant.  Projections of social 
care need remain difficult to forecast, especially over the longer time periods that the Council 
undertakes its financial modelling. As such we have used recent trends, and then provided for 50% 
of this sum in the budget proposals. The remaining 50% is flagged as a risk, and will be reviewed 
each year when the budget is refreshed. This for all items except transitional cases, where full 
provision is made. 

2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16

Issue £k £k £k £k £k

Learning Disability - growth in numbers 
(non-transition) 

632 1,325 2,091 2,857 3,622

Older People (including older people's 
mental health services) - growth in 
numbers. 

189 389 601 814 1,026

Learning Disability - transition cases from 
Children's Services 

205 486 640 794 948

Physical Disability - growth in numbers 
(includes no residential increases). 

99 208 328 449 569

Mental Health - growth in referrals and 
increases in statutory work. All growth has 
been contained within budgets for last 3/4 
years.

50 75 100 125 150

1,175 2,482 3,760 5,038 6,315

INVESTMENT - CAPITAL 

The following additional capital investment is proposed (sums are already included in the current 
capital programme for 2011/12, so no additional sums are proposed in that year): 

2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16

Issue £k £k £k £k £k

Aids & Adaptions 0 51 51 51 51

Minor Works 0 36 36 36 36

72



39

APPENDIX 4 –   
SERVICE IMPLICATIONS (INVESTMENT/REDUCTIONS) - CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S

The Chief Executive’s Department consists of the following:- 

(i) Growth Delivery Team

 This team supports the council’s agenda to grow the city by 20,000 jobs and 25,500 houses 
by the year 2026.  The team supports key projects, such as the Carbon Challenge site, 
Fletton Quays (also knows as South Bank) and the development on the Station Quarter 
through the Peterborough Delivery Partnership. 

(ii) Human Resources 

This team provides human resource services to all departments, such as support on 
recruitment, advice on disciplinary matters, redundancy and professional development. 

(iii) Legal and Democratic Services 

 This team provides legal services to all council departments, democratic services to support 
Council, Cabinet and committee meetings, civic services to the Mayor and support services to 
councillors.

(iv) Communications Team

 The communications team supports all council departments in providing internal and external 
communications advice.  Their role includes promoting the council through the media 
including television, radio, magazines, internet sites, staff communications for up to 2,000 
people,  producing communications strategies for major initiatives, producing press releases, 
delivering marketing campaigns, the production of Your Peterborough and the management 
of the council’s website. 

The overall cost of the Chief Executive’s Department to the council is £9m. 
The proposals below reduces that spend by £1.3m by 2013/14 (net £0.7m in 2011/12). 

SAVINGS - REVENUE 

Delete Deputy Chief Executive post 

The post of Deputy Chief Executive has been held vacant subject to review, with the workload 
shared among the Chief Executive and Executive Director of Resources.  The Chief Executive has 
proposed that these arrangements now continue and this post be deleted. 

2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16

Issue £k £k £k £k £k

Delete Deputy Chief Executive post 
and office support 

200 200 200 200 200

73



40

Reduce Chief Executive’s office support 
Current budget = £159k 

The council continually reviews the cost and performance of its support function and has already 
delivered cost savings in the current budget.  Further efficiences enable additional savings to be 
made in this area, 

2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16

Issue £k £k £k £k £k

Reduce Chief Executive’s office 
support

30 30 30 30 30

Reduction in costs of supporting the Greater Peterborough Partnership   
Current budget = £230k 

The Greater Peterborough Partnership (GPP) is the organisation that oversees how the city is run 
and the contribution all public services, voluntary organisations and businesses make to improving 
life in Peterborough. It brings together the city council, police, health, fire and other organisations in 
the city to work on a set of priorities to improve Peterborough for all those who choose to live, work 
and visit here. These priorities are outlined in the Sustainable Community Strategy and focus on 
the environment, growing the city, reducing crime and improving the health of the population of 
Peterborough.

The previous Government required the GPP to pull together information to assess how the city was 
performing against a set of national targets and locally-set targets which enable Peterborough to 
achieve the priorities set out in the Sustainable Community Strategy. These targets are outlined in 
the Local Area Agreement (LAA) and the assessment on how the city was performing against these 
targets was called the Comprehensive Area Assessment (CAA) and was carried out by the Audit 
Commission. 

Whilst this strategy is still required to be produced the Government has abolished the 
Comprehensive Area Assessment which was conducted by the Audit Commission (also abolished).  
As a result of this, there will be a reduction in the level of work undertaken by GPP which is 
reflected below. 

2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16

Issue £k £k £k £k £k

Reduction in costs of GPP in line with 
reduction in CAA work 

50 50 50 50 50

Communications
Current budget = £999k 

The council needs a strong and focused communications function to ensure our residents, staff, 
businesses, partner organisations, understand the direction we are taking and where to access 
council services. 
These proposals are designed to continue that but in a streamlined form.  Proposals include:- 

  A new Director of Communications, which will be shared between the Peterborough and 
Stamford Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust and the council, which will have a resultant saving 
from the council’s budget. 

  Marketing budget will be reviewed and marketing will be continued with a reduced number. 

74



41

  The council will seek opportunities to collaborate with partner organisations across 
Peterborough to market city-wide initiatives. 

  The council will seek private sector sponsorship and increasing sponsorship and advertising 
income.

  The council will work with its partner, Peterborough and Stamford Hospitals NHS Foundation 
Trust to amalgamate its resources into a focused team to handle staff communications, media 
inquiries, press releases and media campaigns around a newly formed communications 
strategy.

  The council will reduce its sponsorship budget by half and use that budget to sponsor business 
related events. 

  The council will join forces with local newspaper publishers to promote city-wide events, 
enabling the council to reduce the frequency or stop the production of Your Peterborough and 
use other opportunities such as its website and other publications to promote its services to its 
citizens.  It will be important when implementing any change to ensure that everyone has 
access to information which they need about council services, e.g. older people. 

  The new Communication’s Director, when in post, will be responsible for shaping the proposals 
above and consulting on them. 

2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16

Issue £k £k £k £k £k

Reduce funding to meet the above 
proposals

416 416 416 416 416

Reduce financial cost of support to Eco-Innovation Centre 
Current budget = £100k 

Working with the Eco-Innovation Centre (EIC) we have been able to identify ways in which savings 
can be made that will allow the centre to become self supporting by 2013/14.  This will allow the 
EIC to fully explore the options available to them and to expand on the delivery of service in this 
key market sector.  

2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16

Issue £k £k £k £k £k

Reduce financial cost of support to 
Eco-Innovation centre 

50 75 100 100 100

Savings in cost of Peterborough Delivery Partnership (PDP) 
Current budget = £1.3m 

The Peterborough Development Partnership was set up by the council to deliver schemes and 
projects in the city associated with the growth agenda. 

Whilst the PDP is essential to support the growth agenda of the city, it, like all areas of council 
business needs to contribute to our overall savings. Given the progress that the Growth agenda 
has made there is confidence that a proportion of the costs can be met within the individual projects 
taken forward thereby reducing pressure on the core budget and allowing us to achieve savings. 

75



42

2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16

Issue £k £k £k £k £k

Reduction in revenue costs in line with 
funding constraints in MTFP from 
2010/11

200 200 200 200 200

Further savings in cost of 
Peterborough Delivery Partnership 

22 40 100 100 100

Total 222 240 300 300 300

Reduction in salary costs in Legal and Democratic Services 
Current staff budget for Legal Services = £1.4m 

Over the past few months there has been a deliberate reduction in posts in Legal Services, and 
where posts have become vacant they have not been filled. In September 2010 one of the two 
Heads of Legal accepted voluntary redundancy, and the service is being restructured under the one 
remaining Head of Service. Some of the posts currently vacant will need to be filled once we 
understand the shape of the council following budget cuts, and the legal services that we will need 
to provide. A saving of £150,000 is our target reduction against current budget. This will mean a 
reduced legal service, but one that is targeted to the remaining needs of the council.  

We can make further savings by re-grading some posts which are similar but currently graded 
differently to colleagues.  

2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16

Issue £k £k £k £k £k

Reduction in vacant posts in legal 
services

150 150 150 150 150

Re-grading to align other posts 25 25 25 25 25

Democratic Services 100 100 100 100 100

Total 275 275 275 275 275

Reduction in training budget for Legal and Democratic Services 
Current training budget for Legal and Democratic Services = £65k 

A number of staff, particularly in Legal Services, are required by their professional body to achieve 
16 hours training per year to retain their professional qualifications. Traditionally such training has 
been acquired from external training courses. We have changed our approach so that as much as 
possible is provided in-house; for example, if one person attends an externally accredited course, 
they then provide an in house session which gives colleagues required credits. We are also 
working with colleagues in other authorities to share training, which we are able to do our Legal 
Services is an accredited training provider.  

76



43

2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16

Issue £k £k £k £k £k

Reduction in training budget 10 10 10 10 10

Neighbourhood Councils 
Current budget: £17k 

The Neighbourhood councils are crucial in delivering the localism agenda and fit with the 
Government’s ‘Big Society’ initiative. 

We have reviewed the number of meetings with the chairs and the current 28 meetings can reduce 
to 14 (7 meetings twice a year). This will still enable us to manage the capital spend and use these 
valuable meetings to link the Section 106 monies (from developers to spend on community 
facilities) to local needs. 

 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16

Issue £k £k £k £k £k

Neighbourhood Councils reduced 
frequency

6 6 6 6 6

Reduction in subscriptions  
Current budget: £111k 

Legal and Democratic Services makes payments for various subscriptions that the council makes, 
to organisations such as the Local Government Association. These are for the benefit of the whole 
council, not just Legal and Democratic Services, and are considered to be beneficial. Following the 
demise of EERA, these payments have reduced by £15,000 and the budget can be reduced 
accordingly.  

2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16

Issue £k £k £k £k £k

Reduction in subscriptions 15 15 15 15 15

SAVINGS – CAPITAL 

Affordable housing 

The council originally intended to spend £7.9m in 2011/12 on affordable housing. Current 
commitments mean we will not need to spend that much, so the remainder is being moved to the 
next 2 years for use when required. As a result of this, the budgets originally set on those years will 
not be  required. 

2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 

£k £k £k £k £k 
Slip Affordable Housing Budget to future 
years (negative figure shows money 
coming out – positive figure is money 
being put back in later years) -3,918 2,000 1,918 0 0
Remove current budget 2012/13 and 
2013/14 0 -546 -567 0 0

77



44

INVESTMENT - REVENUE 

Supporting growth on key sites  

This budget growth is essential to support ‘pump priming’ work necessary to start growth.  Key 
projects within the city centre need an element of investment to take forward their development.  
This work will involve identifying the risks thereby giving potential investors the confidence to invest 
within the city.  Spending this money now will bring significant investment which will far outweigh 
the cost. 

2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16

Issue £k £k £k £k £k

Supporting growth on key sites (e.g. 
Fletton Quays, Northminster, City 
South, Station Quarter) 

450 0 0 0 0

INVESTMENT – CAPITAL 

The capital investments outlined in the table below, principally to support growth, are planned. 

The STEM centre is a project to develop an educational centre to support learning in science, 
technology, engineering and maths. It was planned to include this development within a 
redevelopment of the Moyes End stand at the football ground, enabling us to deliver our 
regeneration aspirations in that area, as well as delivering this new educational establishment. 

The majority of funding for this scheme is coming from a Government grant, which has already 
been cut in year. Also currently the overall scheme relies on income in the future from letting the 
facility to meet the full cost. This £2m investment is proposed to bridge these initial gaps in funding 
to enable the centre to go ahead. However, more work still needs to be undertaken on the design 
and finances of this project. Every effort will be made to use as little of the £2m as possible until the 
future of this centre has been secured, and it will not be released until the project business case 
has been fully assessed to ensure value for money. 

2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16

Issue £k £k £k £k £k

Public Realm Phases 2 and 3 500 500 500 500 500

Riverside - Risk Reduction Project 200 0 0 0 0

Capital Costs of Disposals 0 1,200 500 500 500

Stem Centre - Further funding 
required due to grant cuts 2,000 0 0 0 0

78



45

APPENDIX 5 –   
SERVICE IMPLICATIONS (INVESTMENT/REDUCTIONS) – STRATEGIC RESOURCES

Strategic Resources consists of the following:- 

  Payroll 

  Processing invoices 

  Collection of tax and debt 

  Management of discretionary rate relief scheme 

  Internal Audit 

  Financial Management 

  Asset Management 

  Cemeteries and Crematorium 

  Performance Management and Improvement 

  Management of the waste project including City Services Partnership 

  Peterborough Direct 

  Registrars 

  Business Support 

  ICT 

  Business Transformation 

  Procurement 

  Programme and Project Management 

The cost of Strategic Resources to the council is £22.8m 
The proposals below reduce that spending by £2.9m 

SAVINGS - REVENUE 

Further efficiencies and cost reduction 
Overall budget = £22.8m 

The Department’s proposals are focused around generating further efficiencies and lowering the 
cost of the overheads to the organisation.   The proposals are set out below and are summarised 
as follows:- 

  Continuing to invest in business transformation to deliver further efficiency savings for the 
organisation 

  Seeking to outsource the council’s back office functions through Manor Drive (see paragraph 3 
above)

 Reductions in back office costs in customer services, finance and external audit fees (as a 
result of the abolition of the Audit Commission).

2011/12
£k

2012/13
£k

2013/14
£k

2014/15
£k

2015/16
£k

Customer Services: Training Officer post 30 30 30 30 30

External Audit Fees 0 20 20 20 20

Finance Savings 100 100 100 100 100

Outsource Manor Drive 500 500 500 500 500

Reduction in business support and 
departmental overheads 150 150 150 150 150

Business Transformation savings 1,900 1,900 1,900 1,900 1,900

Total 2,680 2,700 2,700 2,700 2,700

79



46

Reducing speed of processing benefit claims
Current budget = £950k 

It is proposed to increase the amount of time we take to process benefit claims from 13 to 18 days.   
By reducing the number of payment processing staff by 4 a saving of approx £100k can be made 
but this will have an adverse impact on the speed of processing both new benefit claims and 
revisions to benefits due to changing circumstances.  

For those in real need, the express claims process for assessing new claims within 2 working days 
would still be in place for claimants that produce all necessary documents at the time of submitting 
a claim but ensuring the turn-around time for express claims would have an impact on other claims 
and delay determination and payment of these by an average of one week. 

Assessment of changes to benefit entitlement would also be affected by the reduction in staffing 
and would reduce the average speed of processing changes from 11 days to 14 days. 

Issue

2011/12
£k

2012/13
£k

2013/14
£k

2014/15
£k

2015/16
£k

Reduce speed of processing benefit claims 
- from 13 to 18 days 100 100 100 100 100

Call Centre Reduction 
Current budget = £676k 

A £50k reduction in resources at the call centre leading to an increase in abandoned calls of 
between 100 to 200 per day and longer in answering calls. 

Issue
2011/12

£k
2012/13

£k
2013/14

£k
2014/15

£k
2015/16

£k

Customer Services 50 50 50 50 50

Reduce budget for award of discretionary rate relief by approx 25% (£47k)  
Current budget = £188k 

The majority of organisations receiving rate relief are registered charities and therefore receive 80% 
mandatory relief from business rates which is wholly funded by the Government. 

In addition there is a policy of considering applications for discretionary rate relief up to the 
remaining amount of their rates liability. Any monies approved are paid for by the council at ¾ of 
the money granted and the remaining ¼ paid for by the Government. 

Discretionary rate relief applications are reviewed every 3 years with the next review being due on 
1 April 2011. This gives the council the opportunity to revise the current policy for granting relief 
which will see current recipients of relief receiving reduced relief on their business rate bill from 
2011/12.

We will review  our policy with the aim of reducing the amount of money paid for by the council by 
25%.

Issue

2011/12
£k

2012/13
£k

2013/14
£k

2014/15
£k

2015/16
£k

Reduce award of discretionary rate relief - 
figures include aiming for 25% 47 47 47 47 47

80



47

Parish council payments reduced by £40k per annum (20%)  
Current budget = £200k 

The council currently pays a grant to each parish council. This is paid on the basis of a fixed sum 
per head of population in that Parish. This payment currently happens automatically, regardless of 
whether the budget plans for the parish indicate that it is needed, and is increased by inflation each 
year. This approach effectively sees money being shifted from non-parished areas to those that 
have parishes. 

The proposal would see these grants reduced, roughly in line with the expected reduction in grants 
that the council itself is facing. It would be down to each parish council to consider in their own 
budget planning how this impacts them. 

This proposal does not affect payment of sums for service provided by parish councils on behalf of 
the city council, or the payment of council tax sums that the city council collects as the billing 
authority.

The council recognises the short period of time between now and when parish councils have to set 
their budgets for the 2011/12 financial year. To allow parish councils sufficient time to plan for the 
introduction of this, the proposal will not be implemented until 2012/13 financial year. 

Issue

2011/12
£k

2012/13
£k

2013/14
£k

2014/15
£k

2015/16
£k

Reduce Parish Council payments (20% 
reduction) 0 40 40 40 40

Food Waste Collection 

It is proposed to remove these monies from the council’s budget and work with the successful 
tenderer for City Services under LOT3 to deliver this outcome. 

Issue

2011/12
£k

2012/13
£k

2013/14
£k

2014/15
£k

2015/16
£k

Delete budget for food waste collection 423 1,151 775 1,002 1,002

Bereavement service fee increases 

It is proposed to increase the cremation fee and interment fee by 15%.  The current environmental 
surcharge that is added to the cremation fee will increase by 10% from £50 to £55 and the cost of 
memorials and other fees will increase by between 3% and 5%.  It is proposed that 2.5% of the 
cremation and interment fee will be retained to fund essential maintenance to cemeteries and 
closed churchyards.   

The increased cremation fee will also offset the projected loss of business following  the opening of 
a new private crematorium this year in the nearby town of March. Other crematoria have yet to 
announce 2011 increases but it is very likely Peterborough’s fees will remain outside of the top 
25%.  The new fees will apply from 1 January 2011 as last year. 

As the income received will be re-invested into the service to offset pressures, no figure for total 
income received is included. 

81



48

Registration service fee increases 

The following fee increases are proposed for the services provided from the Register Office:- 

  Ceremonies conducted at approved premises – 9.9% 

  Private citizenship ceremonies – 4.8% 

  Nationality checking service – 9.9% 

  Baby naming and renewal of vows – 8.2% 

  Express certificate request service – 12% 

  Statutory fees (to be confirmed by the Home Office) 

The new fees will apply from 1 April 2011 as last year.      

Wheelie bins fee increases 

The council is proposing to introduce charges to replace wheelie bins that have been lost or stolen 
and for new bins for any new homes.  Residents will pay £36 each for new bins and £18 each for 
refurbished bins. 

Issue

2011/12
£k

2012/13
£k

2013/14
£k

2014/15
£k

2015/16
£k

Wheelie bins fee increases 35 35 35 35 35

Allotment fee increases 

Charges for allotments have been historically kept at very low levels as concessions have been 
applied. The Council is planning to cease these concessions. As a result charges will now be £52 
per year for full size allotment, or £1 per week for their use, and £39 per year for smaller plots. 

2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16

Issue £k £k £k £k £k

Allotment fee increases 30 30 30 30 30

Recreation fees 

The Council intends to raise a modest sum through increasing fees for recreation activities - eg 
bowling greens, putting greens etc 

2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16

Issue £k £k £k £k £k

Recreation fee increases 30 30 30 30 30

Support for the costs of change 

In the Spending Review, the Government announced that it would provide support for councils to 
meet the costs of change. This effectively allows Councils to spread the cost of these changes over 
a number of years. We currently estimate that we may be able to spread £500k of cost in this 
manner. The costs incurred in future years are included in the capital programme figures in 
appendix 8. 

82



49

2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16

£k £k £k £k £k

Estimated government allocation to 
meet costs of change 500 0 0 0 0

83



50

SAVINGS – CAPITAL 

The following savings are proposed in the capital programme. 

Expenditure on the waste programme will be moved in line with revised timescales on that projects. 
The costs of the anaerobic digester will be removed in line with plans for the food waste collection 
outlined earlier. 

2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16

£k £k £k £k £k

Works on council buildings 345 345 345 345 345

Reprofiling of waste programme 
(negative figure shows money coming out 
– positive figure is money being put back 
in later years) -4,222 -3,413 1,858 3,028 1,500

Removal of anaerobic digester 6,000 0 0 0 0

INVESTMENTS – REVENUE 

Grants Team 

The council has established a grants team to seek and bid for additional external funding. Initially it 
was intended to charge the cost of the team to the grants received. However the conditions 
attached to many of the grants mean this is not possible. In light of the success of the team in 
attracting funding, and given that this is more crucial than ever, it is proposed to directly fund the 
team to enable it to continue. 

2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16

£k £k £k £k £k

Grants Team 120 120 120 120 120

Costs of delivering change 

The scale of change required in the Council must be properly resourced to ensure that it is 
delivered effectively and achieves the savings required. These costs include the upfront investment 
needed to deliver these savings, such as invest to save project costs, redundancy costs and 
associated pension. 

2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16

£k £k £k £k £k

Costs of change 2.875 941 941 941 941

INVESTMENTS – CAPITAL 

Renewable energy projects 

The Council needs to invest in projects to generate renewable energy, such as solar power from 
photovoltaic cells. As well as reducing the Councils Carbon footprint, this will reduce energy costs 
and costs of the carbon tax. It is intended to use £500k in 2010-11, and another £500k in 2011-12. 
The full revenue costs of this £1m total are included in the budget proposals. 

84



51

2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16

Issue £k £k £k £k £k

Renewable energy projects 500   

The capital investments outlined in the table below are principally investments to make savings or 
efficiencies. 

2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16

£k £k £k £k £k

Capitalisation of Schools Capital Reserve 500 500 500 0 0

Customer Services Transformation  40 0 0 0 0

Business Transformation Invest to Save  0 500 500 500 500

ICT investment 250 250 250 250 250

Properties Works – properties used in 
delivering adult social care 500 500 0 0 0

85



52

APPENDIX 6 –   
SERVICE IMPLICATIONS (INVESTMENT/REDUCTIONS) – CULTURE TRUST

The council has a contract with Vivacity, which commenced in May 2010 to provide its Leisure, 
Sports and Cultural Services.  The proposals below have to be discussed with the Trust under the 
contractual arrangements and this will be done during the course of the consultation period on the 
budget.

The cost of this contract to the council is £3.5m. 
The proposal below reduce this cost by £300k in 2011/12 and by £634k by 2015/16 

SAVINGS - REVENUE 
Use of more volunteers 

The Trust wishes to recruit volunteers to help deliver some of its services.  This will have a resulting  
saving of £137k per year. It is proposed to allow the trust to retain this money to create a reserve as 
required by the Charity Commission. 

Reduction in Library Services 
Current budget = £1.9 million 

The library service remains a significant area of the council’s discretionary spend, and must be 
considered as part of the budget proposals. The council does recognise the value of this service to 
communities but recognises the need to review all library provision across the city. The savings 
identified can be achieved through the following measures:- 

  Library opening hours – The opening hours of Central Library will remain the same.  District 
libraries such as Bretton, Dogsthorpe, Orton and Werrington will see a reduction in their hours 
to 29 hours per week. 

  All of our smaller libraries will be open for 21 hours per week.  This will mean some libraries will 
see a reduction in opening hours as a result and one library will see an increase in its opening 
hours.

  Review the provision of mobile libraries in line with current usage, ensuring that communities 
that use the service still receive it. 

  Reviewing the library services provided in Orton and the location they could be provided in the 
future.

Again it will be considered whether the use of volunteers could expand services beyond levels 
outlined above. 

2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16

Issue £k £k £k £k £k

Saving on library costs 250 250 250 250 250

Revenue savings from Capital investment 

The council has made provision in its capital budget for a number of schemes over the life of the 
MTFP that support culture and leisure. It is considered that this investment will generate revenue 
savings e.g. new boilers saving on fuel costs and the carbon tax. The council has set a target for 
these savings. There is no target for 2011/12 as there needs to be the lead time for the investment 
to happen. 

86



53

2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16

Issue £k £k £k £k £k

Savings from culture and leisure following 
Capital investment 

0 179 171 164 159

Reduction in client management 

We are reducing the resources the council puts into managing the contract with Peterborough’s 
culture and leisure trust, Vivacity. 

2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16

£k £k £k £k £k

Client Management 25 25 25 25 25

87



54

SAVINGS – CAPITAL 

2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16

Issue £k £k £k £k £k

Review of Key Theatre 
Build/Refurbishment - 25% reduction +125 +125 0 0 0

INVESTMENT - REVENUE 

Flag Fen 

The council maintains its committed to investing in Flag Fen (£100k per annum for 3 years).  Flag 
Fen is of international importance and this initial investment will guarantee its future by integrating 
this site into Vivacity’s museum functions. 

2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16

Issue £k £k £k £k £k

Flag Fen 100 100 100 0 0

INVESTMENT - CAPITAL 

2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16

Issue £k £k £k £k £k

Libraries (Invest to Save) 200 0 0 0 0

88



55

APPENDIX 7 –   
SERVICE IMPLICATIONS (INVESTMENT/REDUCTIONS) – STAFF IMPLICATIONS

The proposals below represent changes to policies and terms and conditions for staff.  The 
proposals do not include, at this stage, any reduction in redundancy provisions, reduction in 
overtime/shift allowance or moving out of the national negotiation framework.  It also summarises 
the impact on staff numbers and vacancies. 

1. Policy Changes 

(a) Sick Pay 

 We believe our ability to influence the level of sick pay paid out is most effectively achieved 
through focussing on reducing absence levels through more effective attendance 
management practices rather than reducing benefit levels. It is therefore proposed that we 
introduce an Attendance Improvement Programme which will include a review of our 
policies/procedures to ensure that absence issues are handled professionally, consistently 
and sensitively. 

 Reducing absence levels from 5% (average 11 days) per year to 4% (average 9 days) would 
provide a saving of £350,000 per year. 

(b) Childcare  

 The proposal is to remove the additional benefit currently provided to some staff. It is 
proposed to continue with the more recently introduced salary sacrifice childcare voucher 
scheme which is cost neutral to the council, but we are proposing to withdraw the enhanced 
benefit.

 This would save £44,000 per year and would affect 42 employees. 

2. Terms and Conditions 

(a) Removal of Essential Car User Allowance and introduction of one standard mileage rate to 
40p per mile for all car users 

 The proposal is to remove the essential car user allowance from existing staff and 
standardise the mileage rate for all staff to 40p per mile (the current HMRC advisory rate for 
business mileage) irrespective of whether the user is currently classed as “essential” or 
“casual”.

 This would save £600,000 per year. Currently 430 people receive the essential car user 
allowance and a similar number will be adversely affected by the change in the mileage rate. 

(b) Charging all staff for Car Parking 

 The proposal is to introduce an annual car parking fee of £500 per annum, for all users. 
Currently the cheapest day rate for parking is £3.50, roughly equating to an annual charge of 
£770, hence the level has been set below this. Charges in the car parks available to staff 
would be higher than this, so the rate would represent a discount compared to the rate for a 
season ticket for a member of the public.  

 Part of the arrangements could include options for staff to share a pass to encourage car 
sharing, and arrangements for part-time staff to adopt a scratch card. 

 We may wish to explore the option of introducing salary sacrifice to effectively “cushion” the 
financial impact for staff by benefitting from available tax relief. 

89



56

 This would generate an income of £750,000 per year and would affect 1600 people. 

(c) Vacancy and Redundancy 

Anticipated Headcount Reductions (2011/12) 
Subject to Confirmation

Headcount reduction implications of MTFP 
(excludes redundancies in progress/imminent restructures NOT included in 
MTFP – for example, business support) 

241

Reduction in redundancies linked to T&C savings - 60

Reduction through Voluntary Redundancy Programme TBC

Deletion of vacancies TBC

TOTAL 181

(d) Pay Awards 

 The pay arrangements for the majority of council staff are subject to terms and conditions that 
are agreed at a national level. This includes any pay awards. In previous Medium Term 
Financial Plans, the council has made provision for the estimated pay awards in future years. 
Each year this is revisited and the estimate updated to reflect our best intelligence as to what 
that pay award might be. We have again undertaken this exercise, and in light of recent 
announcements on a public sector pay freeze, we can reduce this provision by the following 
amounts:

 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16

 £k £k £k £k £k

Updated estimate for pay award 935 1,689 2,424 3,196 3,196

(e) Voluntary Redundancy Programme 

 In order to minimise the impact of compulsory redundancies it is intended to launch a 
voluntary redundancy programme following consultation with the trade unions.  This is likely 
to be announced mid-November. 

90



57

APPENDIX 8 –   
SERVICE IMPLICATIONS (INVESTMENT/REDUCTIONS) – CAPITAL PROGRAMME OVERVIEW

The council’s capital investment strategy has been reviewed as a result of lower expectations of external 
funding from Government and related agencies. In addition there are reduced revenue monies available 
to fund costs of new borrowing. 

As a result the funding of the capital programme has been focused around maximising external income 
from section 106 agreements (the agreement the council has with developers to fund community 
facilities), reviewing asset disposal opportunities (including those arising from the property 
rationalisation) and seeking new forms of private sector funding for regeneration projects. 

The latter will include the ability to raise income from: 

  new homes incentives schemes 

  tax incremental funding 

  examine with the business community the potential to use a supplementary business rate  

The capital programme has been reviewed to ensure that schemes are more accurately  profiled in the 
years that spend will take place; in addition some schemes have been reduced by between 25 and 40%. 
Some schemes have been removed. 

We have also reviewed where investment is needed to deliver our priorities, especially in regard to 
delivering growth and meeting the educational needs of our children. These changes are included in the 
relevant Directorate appendix. 

The Spending Review announced that the Government will place a 1% premium on local authority 
borrowing, increasing costs to the Council. 

The costs of the updated capital programme are summarised below: 

Issue
2011/12

£k
2012/13

£k
2013/14

£k
2014/15

£k
2015/16

£k

Costs of rolling forward current capital 
programme (a saving in year 1) 

-332 136 159 277 1,123

Costs of new capital projects and funding 
arrangements 

358 1,590 2,919 3,796 4,171

Costs of 1% borrowing premium 
introduced by Government 

203 556 1,019 1,374 1,510

The majority of these costs in the early years are offset by savings from re-phasing schemes and  some 
saving. These are summarised below: 

Issue
2011/12

£k
2012/13

£k
2013/14

£k
2014/15

£k
2015/16

£k

Resultant revenue budget saving from 
these proposals 1,110 3,884 3,547 1,205  885

91



92

This page is intentionally left blank



SUSTAINABLE GROWTH SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 
 

Agenda Item No. 6 

9 NOVEMBER 2010 
 

Public Report 

 

Report of Councillors Lane, North and Sandford 
 
Contact Officer(s)  –  Karen Whatley, Project Manager 
Contact Details  –  Email: karen.whatley@peterborough.gov.uk 

Tel: 01733 864086 
    

SCRUTINY REVIEW - USE OF CONSULTANCY 
  
1. PURPOSE AND BACKGROUND 

 
1.1 At their meeting of 15 March 2010, the Sustainable Growth Scrutiny Committee requested a 

review into the Council’s use of consultancy.  
 

1.2 Before this review, the Best Value and Corporate Resources Policy Overview Committee 
undertook a review of the council’s use of consultants and agency staff. It produced a number 
of recommendations, which are set out in Appendix 1.  
 

1.3 In November 2006 a monitoring report was provided to the Committee in respect of the 
recommendations. This is attached as Appendix 2. 
 

1.4 The purpose of this report is to provide an interim update on the work undertaken by the current 
review group. 
 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

2.1 The panel are asked to acknowledge the content of this report. 
 

3. INTERIM REPORT 
 

3.1 At a meeting of the Environment Capital Scrutiny Committee on 14 January 2010, to discuss 
the proposed Council budget, the subject of use of consultants arose.  It was agreed that the 
Sustainable Growth Scrutiny Committee be recommended to undertake an in-depth scrutiny 
review into the cost and effectiveness of the Council’s use of consultants and to make 
recommendations on the future use of consultants by the Council to inform the development of 
budgets in future years. At its meeting of the 18 January 2010, the Sustainable Growth Scrutiny 
Committee produced a list of questions which it asked to be answered, and they are included at 
Appendix 3. 
 

3.2 On the 15 March 2010, the Cabinet Member for Resources delivered a report on the use of 
consultants to the Sustainable Growth Scrutiny Committee.  Following this report and 
subsequent discussion, the Panel requested a task and finish group to be established to review 
the council’s use of consultants and report back on its findings and recommendations.  
 

3.3 In line with protocol, the Scrutiny Manager wrote to the Group Secretaries seeking nomination 
for the review.  Councillors Lane, North, Sandford and Murphy were put forward by their 
relevant parties. 
 

3.4 The group have met a regularly, firstly to agree the definition of consultancy and to agree a 
Terms of Reference, which is attached as Appendix 4.    
 
 

93



3.5 Officers from Children’s Services, Strategic Resources, City Services, Peterborough Delivery 
Partnership and the Operations Directorate have been interviewed to assess: 
 

(i) The impact that consultants have had upon their service areas, at a programme, 
project and individual level in terms of benefit realisation, knowledge transfer and 
cost; and  

(ii) The measures in place for identifying staff potential as a route to reducing reliance 
on consultants. 

 
3.6 The group have reviewed invoices, relevant contracts and have been provided with and have 

received training in order to be able to review information through the Verto project 
management system. 
 

3.7 The next step for the group will be to meet to discuss the large volume of information that has 
been provided to assist the review process, and to report findings to the Scrutiny Committee on 
1 February 2011. 
 

4. KEY ISSUES 
 

5.1 The use of consultants is an accepted business practice in many sectors, including the public 
sector, which is regulated by the Office of Government Commerce (OGC). The group have 
found at this interim stage that the use of consultants by many local authorities, including 
Peterborough City Council has increased in recent years.  
 
The group has also established that the figure of £12.4m discussed at previous Scrutiny 
Committees included the costs associated with contractors. For the purposes of this review, the 
group have concluded that the amount spent on consultancy by Peterborough City Council was 
£6.6m over the same time period, April 2009 - December 2009. The total spending on 
consultancy, as per the group’s agreed definition for the financial year 2009-10 was £8.2m. 
 
Contextual information that outlines the spending on consultancy will be submitted with the 
group’s final report. 
 
The group will also report its findings with regard to whether consultants are improving 
outcomes for Peterborough citizens and delivering real value for money in terms of cashable 
and non-cashable savings. 
 

5.2 The group accept that expert impartial advice is sometimes required for specialist project work, 
however one of the recommendations from the 2006 review was ‘when there is the need to 
appoint someone for a time limited piece of work the Council’s policy should be to look within 
existing staff first to see if anyone has the required skills’.  
 
The group is committed to ensuring that managers are making efficient use of the skills of 
existing staff and will be reporting on this in its final report. 
 

5.3 It is clear from officer interviews that Council departments are taking steps to become more 
business like and efficient and that there is a corporate drive to achieve this. The group has 
heard from a number of sources that private sector expertise is required to deliver reform. The 
group is in the process of undertaking a cost and quality comparison exercise to satisfy itself 
that the council is getting value for money from consultants. 
 

6. IMPLICATIONS 
 

6.1 It is proposed that, once completed, the review group’s report might inform the Cabinet Member 
for Resources on how the council can increase the value for money from the use of consultants 
and improve outcomes for staff and Peterborough citizens. 
 
 
 

94



7. EXPECTED OUTCOMES 
 

7.1 That the panel acknowledge the progress made by the review group. 
 

8. NEXT STEPS 
 

8.1 The review group is subject to regular meetings and will report back to Scrutiny on 1 February 
2011 with full details of its findings. 
 

9. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 
 

9.1 None 
 

10. APPENDICES 
 

10.1 Appendix 1 - 2006 Summary of Recommendations 
Appendix 2 - 2006 Review of Recommendations 
Appendix 3 - Councillor Fletcher’s questions 
Appendix 4 - Terms of Reference and consultancy definition 

 

95



96

This page is intentionally left blank



BEST VALUE AND CORPORATE RESOURCES POLICY OVERVIEW COMMITTEE 

REVIEW OF THE USE OF AGENCY STAFF AND CONSULTANTS 

RESPONSE OF THE EXECUTIVE 

The Cabinet considered the recommendations from the Review at their meeting on 3 April 2006. 

Rec
No.

Recommendation Response of the 
Executive

1. That a centralised list of consultants used by the Council should be 
maintained.

2. That when there is a need to appoint someone for a time limited piece of 
work, the Council’s policy should be to look within existing staff first to see if 
anyone has the required skills. 

3. When the use of consultants is being considered, a full assessment on the 
risks of not undertaking the work should be carried out. 

4. When a contract comes to an end, a full review of the work and a view on 
the value for money should be undertaken.  These should be kept centrally 
so that there is a corporate record of the suitability of consultants. 

5. There should be a clear process and procedure in place for deciding 
whether or not to appoint a consultant and this should form part of the 
Council’s Constitution.  This should include levels of authorisation e.g. 
Cabinet Member, Director, Head of Service, Senior Manager and when the 
tender process should be used for obtaining the services of a consultant.
This will ensure that there is a clear audit trail for the whole appointment 
process.

6. Each project should be assessed individually and a reasoned decision 
made as to whether or not to appoint a consultant.  No additional pieces of 
work should be given to a consultant without this process having been gone 
through. 

7. Full terms of reference for each appointment should be drawn up and 
approved by the relevant Director or Head of Service. 

8. The relevant committee should monitor the work of the Programme Boards 
to ensure that the new project management processes are being 
implemented in all areas of the Council’s work. 

9. Guidance on the use of agency and temporary staff, including the full 
implications of employing such staff, should be developed and provided to 
all managers. 

10. That all managers are made aware of the proposed changes to the 
legislation regarding agency employees and that its impact should be 
considered before employing such staff, if the changes are introduced. 

11. The use of agency staff for engagements longer than three months should 
be discouraged. 

12. That the monitoring of the use of agency staff should be centralised so that 
the number of agency staff employed by the Council is known, along with 
how long they have been employed for and which departments use agency 
staff regularly. 

13. That HR progress their work on succession planning and recruitment 
quickly to enable the Council to move forward as an employer of choice. 

All recommendations 
were approved by the 

Cabinet with the proviso 
that any new procedures 

be delegated to the 
Director of Strategic 

Resources and must be 
sufficiently flexible and 
responsive to allow for 

prompt hiring when 
necessary.

97



98

This page is intentionally left blank



BEST VALUE AND CORPORATE RESOURCES POLICY OVERVIEW COMMITTEE 
 

REVIEW OF THE USE OF AGENCY STAFF AND CONSULTANTS 
 

MONITORING OF RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

(These recommendations were approved by the Cabinet with the proviso that any new procedures be delegated to the Director of 
Strategic Resources and must be sufficiently flexible and responsive to allow for prompt hiring when necessary) 

 
Reported to Committee on 20 November 2006 

 

Rec No. 
 

Recommendation Progress 

1. 
 
 
 

That a centralised list of consultants used by the 
Council should be maintained. 
 

As part of the implementation of the Business Change Programme, the Council is 
implementing a new version of the Oracle IT system. This includes new improved and 
tighter central procedures in respect of approved contracts. As part of this, work only 
contracts that exist with approved suppliers will be maintained on the system. Any 
changes must be approved in advance and therefore appropriate Contract Standing 
Orders procedures must be followed to add a new supplier e.g. consultant to the list. 

2. That when there is a need to appoint someone for 
a time limited piece of work, the Council’s policy 
should be to look within existing staff first to see if 
anyone has the required skills. 

 

The proposal is actively considered by departments and is a necessary requirement of 
ensuring that the Council maintains spending within the approved cash limits. This has 
been particularly useful in areas such as preparation for CPA corporate assessment 
where members of the “Futures Group” were seconded to the Assistant Chief 
Executive’s department to support the work. The development of a skills database of 
all employees is part of the business plan for the Human Resources division. 
 

3. When the use of consultants is being considered, a 
full assessment on the risks of not undertaking the 
work should be carried out. 
 

As part of the Council’s business planning process each department has an agreed set 
of objectives to deliver within the overall resources allocated to it as part of the budget 
process. These are reported to Cabinet and Scrutiny Committee on a quarterly basis.  
 
To ensure that these are delivered and key performance indicators are achieved each 
service must ensure the most appropriate form of delivering the work to be considered. 
As recognised in the original Policy Overview Committee report this will have regard to 
legislative matters. In particular the Council’s programme management arrangements 
will consider business cases for specific projects. This includes the proposed 
resources (and forum) for delivery. 

 

4. When a contract comes to an end, a full review of 
the work and a view on the value for money should 
be undertaken. These should be kept centrally so 
that there is a corporate record of the suitability of 
consultants. 

These are kept by individual departments but will be centralised in 2007/08 as part of 
the Oracle implementation and construction of the new contract management system. 

A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
 2
 

9
9



Rec No. 
 

Recommendation Progress 

5. There should be a clear process and procedure in 
place for deciding whether or not to appoint a 
consultant and this should form part of the 
Council’s Constitution. This should include levels of 
authorisation e.g. Cabinet Member, Director, Head 
of Service, Senior Manager and when the tender 
process should be used for obtaining the services 
of a consultant. This will ensure that there is a clear 
audit trail for the whole appointment process. 
 

6. Each project should be assessed individually and a 
reasoned decision made as to whether or not to 
appoint a consultant. No additional pieces of work 
should be given to a consultant without this 
process having been gone through. 
 

7. Full terms of reference for each appointment 
should be drawn up and approved by the relevant 
Director or Head of Service. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
There is currently a review of Contract Standing Orders being undertaken which will be 
reported to Council in December 2006. These recommendations have been 
incorporated within this review. 
 

8. The relevant committee should monitor the work of 
the Programme Boards to ensure that the new 
project management processes are being 
implemented in all areas of the Council’s work. 
 

The effectiveness of the Council’s programme management arrangements is 
monitored and reviewed by the Corporate Programme Board of which the Leader is a 
member. An All Party Policy briefing on arrangements was given in October 2006. 
 

9. Guidance on the use of agency and temporary 
staff, including the full implications of employing 
such staff, should be developed and provided to all 
managers. 
 

10. That all managers are made aware of the proposed 
changes to the legislation regarding agency 
employees and that its impact should be 
considered before employing such staff, if the 
changes are introduced. 
 

11. The use of agency staff for engagements longer 
than three 
months should be discouraged. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
A draft policy has been produced covering temporary labour and agency staff. The 
next step is for the policy to be agreed and communicated to line managers with 
guidance notes. 
 

1
0
0



Rec No. 
 

Recommendation Progress 

12. That the monitoring of the use of agency staff 
should be centralised so that the number of agency 
staff employed by the Council is known, along with 
how long they have been employed for and which 
departments use agency staff regularly. 
 

The moratorium on recruitment has raised issues concerning temporary agency staff 
and controls will be put in place through this project. 
 

13. That HR progress their work on succession 
planning and recruitment quickly to enable the 
Council to move forward as an employer of choice. 
 

The job evaluation projects will drive out generic job roles which is an essential 
building block to the achievement of succession planning. 
 

 

 

1
0
1



1
0
2

T
h

is
 p

a
g

e
 is

 in
te

n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n
k



APPENDIX 3 
 
Sustainable Growth Scrutiny Committee 
 
Councillor Fletcher’s Questions 
 
 

1) Identify all consultancy companies 
 
2) Identify any company which may be sub-contracting to the main consultancy 

company 
 

3) Identify the employees of the sub-contracting company who may be actually 
working for PCC 

 
4) Are the employees of the sub-contracting company directors of that company 

 
5) Identify any other individuals who may be operating on a self employed basis 

and are engaged by PCC 
 

6) Identify the service period of any and all individuals who have been employed 
by PCC, on a consultancy basis, either directly or indirectly 

 
7) Clarify the actual reason for the engagement of all consultants and 

companies, the areas of work undertaken and the financial benefits derived 
from that employment 

 
8) Clarify the status of Amtec PLC in relation to V4 Ltd and method of 

remuneration 
 

9) Who actually makes the decision to engage a consultant and how is this 
decision actually authorised 

 
10) Who determines what rate is paid 

 
11) Exactly what rate is paid, plus any other fees which may be involved 

 
12) And 13) Provide documented evidence by way of a copy invoice as proof of 

all monthly payments. Provide documented evidence of the actual yearly cost 
of all consultancy fees 

 
14) What action is being taken to reduce the reliance on consultants 

 
15) What recommendations, if any, were implemented following on from an 

enquiry held some five or six years ago into the use of consultants 
 
 
 
 

103



104

This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 4 

 
Consultancy Review: Terms of Reference  
 
 

(i) Define consultant, consultancy, interim manager, and contractor 
(ii) Review of expenditure codes to ensure that departments are able to keep 

track of consultancy spend. 
(iii) How are consultants engaged – officers’ or director’s discretion? 

Ascertain when the Executive would be involved in the appointment of a 
Consultant 

(iv) Review the procurement process, i.e. the measure in place for deciding 
what contracts are issued, how rates are decided, the rationale for how 
long companies and/or individuals are engaged and the cost and 
frequency of those engagements. 

(v) Review a snapshot of how many consultants are engaged at the present 
time.  Provide a detailed register – what are they doing, how long for, and 
at what rate (daily/weekly/monthly/fixed price) 

(vi) Scrutinise a selection of major contracts that have been awarded on the 
past 2 years. 

(vii) Review the measures being implemented to reduce the reliance on 
consultants, including a review of the process as per Recommendation 2, 
2006, which was included to ensure that PCC’s employees with the 
relevant skills set are not overlooked in favour of consultants.  

(viii) Investigate and take a view on whether consultants should be engaged 
through the Employment Committee. 

(ix) Request and review a comprehensive update on the 2006 review’s 
recommendations. 

(x) Gain answers to the questions posed by Cllr Fletcher as laid out below*. 
 

1. Identify all consultancy companies; 
2. Identify any consultancy company which may be sub-contracting to 

the main consultancy company; 
3. With regard to question 2, identify the employees of the sub-

contracting company who may actually be working for PCC; 
4. With regard to question 3, are the employees of the sub-contracting 

company Directors of that company; 
5. Identify any other individuals who may be operating on a self 

employed basis and are engaged by PCC (where they have been paid 
over £50,000); 

6. Identify the service period of any and all individuals who have been 
employed by PCC, on a consultancy basis, either directly or indirectly; 

7. Clarify the actual reason for the engagement of all consultants and 
companies, the areas of work they have undertaken and the financial 
benefits derived from that employment; 

8. Clarify the status of Amtec Ltd in relation to V4 Ltd and the method of 
remuneration; 

9. Who makes the decision to engage a consultant and how is this 
decision actually authorised; 

10. Who determines what rate is paid; 
11. Exactly what rate is paid, plus any other fees which may be involved; 
12. Proved documented evidence by way of copy invoice as proof of all 

monthly payments; 

105



NB. The review group have elected to dip sample copy invoices 
where there has been an interim manager or consultant engaged 
on a minimum 6-month basis. 

13. Provide documented evidence of the actual yearly cost of all 
consultancy fees; 

14. What action is being taken to reduce the reliance on consultants; 
15. What recommendations, if any were implemented following on from an 

enquiry held some five or six years ago into the use of consultants. 
 
*insertions in blue are revisions/ point of clarification agreed by the Review Group 
 
 
Consultancy definition 

 

 
The definition agreed by the group for use during this review is the Management 
Consultancies Association’s (MCA) definition, supported by the National Audit Office 
(NAO) statement. 
  
The MCA defines consulting as: 
  
‘…the creation of value for organisations through the application of knowledge, 
techniques, and assets to improve performance. 
  
This is achieved through the rendering of objective advice and/or the implementation 
of business solutions. 
  
Consultants are distinct from contractors, in that the latter fill permanent vacancies or 
temporary increases in operational workload. Contractors are therefore used as day-
to-day operational resources to maintain departmental function, and are managed by 
client staff.’  
  
The National Audit Office defines consultants as: 
  
‘…external third parties, with expertise that is typically not available internally. Clients 
employ consultants for short projects, and usually specify an end point to their 
involvement in the project.  
  
Although a project manager from the consulting firm generally manages the 
consultant, responsibility for the final outcome of the project rests with the client. This 
means that consulting is distinct from outsourcing or staff substitution.’ 

106



SUSTAINABLE GROWTH SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 
 

Agenda Item No. 7 

9 NOVEMBER 2010 
 

Public Report 

 

Report of the Solicitor to the Council 
 
Report Author – Louise Tyers, Scrutiny Manager 
Contact Details – 01733 452284 or email louise.tyers@peterborough.gov.uk 
 

FORWARD PLAN – NOVEMBER 2010 TO FEBRUARY 2011 

 

1. PURPOSE 

 

1.1 This is a regular report to the Sustainable Growth Scrutiny Committee outlining the content of the 
Council’s Forward Plan. 
 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 

 

2.1 That the Committee identifies any relevant items for inclusion within their work programme. 
 

3. BACKGROUND 

 

3.1 The latest version of the Forward Plan is attached at Appendix 1.  The Plan contains those key 
decisions, which the Leader of the Council believes that the Cabinet or individual Cabinet 
Member(s) will be making over the next four months. 
 

3.2 The information in the Forward Plan provides the Committee with the opportunity of considering 
whether it wishes to seek to influence any of these key decisions, or to request further 
information. 
 

3.3 If the Committee wished to examine any of the key decisions, consideration would need to be 
given as to how this could be accommodated within the work programme. 
 

4. CONSULTATION 

 
4.1 Details of any consultation on individual decisions are contained within the Forward Plan. 

 

5. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 

Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 

 
 None 

 
6. APPENDICES 

 

 Appendix 1 – Forward Plan of Executive Decisions 
 

 

107



108

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 

PETERBOROUGH CITY  
COUNCIL’S FORWARD PLAN 
1 NOVEMBER 2010 TO 28 FEBRUARY 2011 

 

A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
 1
 

1
0
9



 

FORWARD PLAN OF KEY DECISIONS - 1 NOVEMBER 2010 TO 28 FEBRUARY 2011 AB 
 

During the period from 1 November 2010 To 28 February 2011 Peterborough City Council's Executive intends to take 'key decisions' on the issues set 
out below.  Key decisions relate to those executive decisions which are likely to result in the Council spending or saving money in excess of £500,000 
and/or have a significant impact on two or more wards in Peterborough. 
 
This Forward Plan should be seen as an outline of the proposed decisions and it will be updated on a monthly basis.  The dates detailed within the Plan 
are subject to change and those items amended or identified for decision more than one month in advance will be carried over to forthcoming plans.  
Each new plan supersedes the previous plan.  Any questions on specific issues included on the Plan should be included on the form which appears at 
the back of the Plan and submitted to Alex Daynes, Senior Governance Officer, Chief Executive’s Department, Town Hall, Bridge Street, PE1 1HG (fax 
01733 452483). Alternatively, you can submit your views via e-mail to alexander.daynes@peterborough.gov.uk or by telephone on 01733 452447. 
 
The Council invites members of the public to attend any of the meetings at which these decisions will be discussed and the papers listed on the Plan can 
be viewed free of charge although there will be a postage and photocopying charge for any copies made. All decisions will be posted on the Council's 
website: www.peterborough.gov.uk.   If you wish to make comments or representations regarding the 'key decisions' outlined in this Plan, please submit 
them to the Governance Support Officer using the form attached.  For your information, the contact details for the Council's various service departments 
are incorporated within this plan. 
 

NEW ITEMS THIS MONTH: 
 
Traffic Signals Maintenance Contract 
Budget and Medium Term Financial Strategy (November and December) 
Council Tax Base 2011/12 
Museum Redevelopment Project 
Award of Contract for Extension at Leighton Primary School 
Award of Contract for Extension at the Beeches Primary School 
Termination of Transitions Service Contract with YMCA 
 

 
 

1
1
0



 
 
 

NOVEMBER 
 

KEY DECISION 
REQUIRED 

DATE OF 
DECISION 

DECISION MAKER RELEVANT  
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHORS 

REPORTS 

Delivery of the Council's 
Capital Receipt 
Programme through the 
Sale of Coneygree Lodge, 
Coneygree Road - 
KEY/01NOV/10 
To authorise the Chief 
Executive, in consultation 
with the Solicitor to the 
Council, Executive Director 
– Strategic Resources, the 
Corporate Property Officer 
and the Cabinet Member 
Resources, to negotiate 
and conclude the sale of 
Coneygree Lodge at 
Coneygree Road. 
 

November 
2010 
 

Cabinet Member for 
Resources 
 

Sustainable 
Growth Scrutiny 
Committee 

Consultation will 
take place with 
the Cabinet 
Member, Ward 
councillors, 
relevant internal 
departments & 
external 
stakeholders as 
appropriate 
 
 

Richard Hodgson 
Head of Strategic Projects 
Tel: 01733 384535 
richard.hodgson@peterborou
gh.gov.uk 
 

Public report 
will be available 
from the 
Governance 
team one week 
before the 
decision is 
made 
 

1
1
1



 

Delivery of the Council's 
Capital Receipt 
Programme through the 
Sale of land adjacent to 
Pupil Referral Unit 
(former Honeyhill School) 
Paston Ridings - 
KEY/02NOV/10 
To authorise the Chief 
Executive, in consultation 
with the Solicitor to the 
Council, Executive Director 
– Strategic Resources, the 
Corporate Property Officer 
and the Cabinet Member 
Resources, to negotiate 
and conclude the sale of 
land adjacent to the former 
Honeyhill School. 
 

November 
2010 
 

Cabinet Member for 
Resources 
 

Sustainable 
Growth Scrutiny 
Committee 

Consultation will 
take place with 
the Cabinet 
Member, Ward 
councillors, 
relevant internal 
departments & 
external 
stakeholders as 
appropriate. 
 
 

Richard Hodgson 
Head of Strategic Projects 
Tel: 01733 384535 
richard.hodgson@peterborou
gh.gov.uk 
 

Public report 
will be available 
from the 
Governance 
Team one week 
before the 
decision is 
made. 
 

The Future of 
Peterborough Community 
Services (the provider 
arm of the Primary Care 
Trust) - KEY/03NOV/10 
For Cabinet to approve 
proposals from the Primary 
Care Trust regarding the 
future of Peterborough 
Community Services, 
including adult social care. 
 

November 
2010 
 

Cabinet 
 

Scrutiny 
Commission for 
Health Issues 

Internal 
Departments and 
Relevant 
Stakeholders as 
appropriate. 

 
 
 

Denise Radley 
Executive Director of Adult 
Social Services & 
Performance 
Tel: 01733 758444 
denise.radley@peterborough.
gov.uk 
 

Public report 
will be available 
from the 
Governance 
Team one week 
before the 
decision is 
made. 
 

1
1
2



 

Drug and alcohol misuse 
services for children and 
young people - 
KEY/04NOV/10 
Provide an integrated drug 
and alcohol misuse service 
offering early intervention, 
prevention, targeted and 
specialist interventions to 
targeted groups of young 
people in Peterborough.   

 
 

November 
2010 
 

Cabinet Member for 
Children's Services, 
Cabinet Member for 
Community 
Cohesion, Safety 
and Women’s 
Enterprise 
 

Health Issues Relevant Internal 
Stakeholders 

 
 

Pam Setterfield 
Assistant Head of Children & 
Families Services (0-13) 
Tel: 01733 863897 
pam.setterfield@peterboroug
h.gov.uk 
 

A public report 
will be available 
from the 
governance 
team one week 
before the 
decision is 
taken. 
 

Traffic Signals 
Maintenance Contract - 
KEY/05NOV/10 
Novation of contract from 
Traffic Signals UK Limited to 
Telent Technologies Services 
Limited 
 

November 
2010 
 

Cabinet Member for 
Housing, 
Neighbourhoods 
and Planning 
 

Environment 
Capital Scrutiny 
Committee 

Relevant internal 
departments 

 
 

Susan Fitzwilliam 
ITS Development Officer 
Tel: 01733 452441 
susan.fitzwilliam@peterborou
gh.gov.uk 
 

A public report 
will be available 
from the 
governance 
team one week 
before the 
decision is 
taken 
 

Scheme of works at  the 
Triangle, New England - 
Award of Contract - 
KEY/06NOV/10 
Award of contract to construct 
Triangle Safety Scheme 
through Midlands Highways 
Alliance (MHA) – Medium 
Schemes Framework 1 (MSF) 
contract. 
 

November 
2010 
 

Cabinet Member for 
Housing, 
Neighbourhoods 
and Planning 
 

Environment 
Capital 

Internal and 
external 
stakeholders as 
appropriate. 
 
 

Stuart Mounfield 
Senior Engineer 
Tel: 01733 453598 
stuart.mounfield@peterborou
gh.gov.uk 
 

Public Report 
will be available 
from the 
governance 
team one week 
before the 
decision is 
taken. 
 

1
1
3



 

Budget and Medium Term 
Financial Strategy - 
KEY/07NOV/10 
Agree actions for dealing with 
grant reductions in 2010-11 
financial year. Draft budget 
proposals and Medium Term 
Financial Strategy to 2015/16 
to be agreed as a basis for 
consultation. 
 

November 
2010 
 

Cabinet 
 

Sustainable 
Growth 

Report forms the 
basis of 
consultation with 
stakeholders, prior 
to further 
consideration by 
Cabinet in 
February 2011 and 
subsequent 
endorsement at full 
Council. 

 
 
 

Steven Pilsworth 
Head of Strategic Finance 
Tel: 01733 384564 
Steven.Pilsworth@peterborou
gh.gov.uk 
 

A public report 
will be available 
from the 
governance 
team one week 
before the 
decision is 
taken. 
 

Review of Charges for 
Allotments - 
KEY/08NOV/10 
To agree the charges for 
the use of Allotments for 
the forthcoming year. 
 

November 
2010 
 

Cabinet Member for 
Resources 
 

Sustainable 
Growth Scrutiny 
Committee 

Relevant ward 
members, 
internal 
Departments and 
external 
stakeholders as 
appropriate. 
 
 

Commercial Services Director 
 
 
 
 

Public Report to 
be available 
from the 
Governance 
team one week 
before the 
decision is 
made 
 

Award of Contract for 
Extension at the Beeches 
Primary School - 
KEY/09NOV/10 
Award of Contract for 
Extension to increase pupil 
numbers at the Beeches 
Primary School, following 
competitive tendering process. 

 

November 
2010 
 

Cabinet Member for 
Education, Skills 
and University 
 

Creating 
Opportunities and 
Tackling 
Inequalities 

Internal 
departments and 
external 
stakeholders. 

 
 

Alison Chambers 
Asset Development Officer 
 
alison.chambers@peterborou
gh.gov.uk 
 

A public report 
will be available 
from the 
governance 
team one week 
before the 
decision is 
taken. 
 

1
1
4



 

Award of Contract for 
Extension at Leighton 
Primary School - 
KEY/10NOV/10 
Award of Contract for 
Extension to increase pupil 
numbers at Leighton Primary 
School, following competitive 
tendering process. 
 

November 
2010 
 

Cabinet Member for 
Education, Skills 
and University 
 

Creating 
Opportunities and 
Tackling 
Inequalities 

Internal 
departments and 
relevant 
stakeholders. 
 
 

Alison Chambers 
Asset Development Officer 
 
alison.chambers@peterborou
gh.gov.uk 
 

A public report 
will be available 
from the 
governance 
team one week 
before the 
decision is 
taken 
 

Contract Award - Adult 
Drug Treatment Services 
- KEY/11NOV/10 
To award the contracts for the 
delivery of Adult Drug 
Treatment Services 
 

 
 

November 
2010 
 

Cabinet Member for 
Community 
Cohesion, Safety 
and Women’s 
Enterprise 
 

Strong and 
Supportive 
Communities 

Internal 
departments as 
appropriate 
Safer Peterborough 
Partnership 

 
 

Gary Goose 
Community Safety Strategic 
Manager 
Tel: 01733 863780 
gary.goose@peterborough.go
v.uk 
 

A public report 
will be available 
from the 
governance 
team one week 
before the 
decision is 
taken. 
 

Termination of 
Transitions Service 
Contract with YMCA - 
KEY/12NOV/10 
To authorise termination of the 
contract due to reduction in 
funding. 

 

November 
2010 
 

Cabinet Member for 
Children's Services 
 

Creating 
Opportunities and 
Tackling 
Inequalities 

Internal 
departments and 
external 
stakeholders. 

 
 

Oliver Hayward 
Commissioning Officer - 
Aiming High 
Tel: 01733 863910 
oliver.hayward@peterboroug
h.gov.uk 
 

A public report 
will be available 
from the 
governance 
team one week 
before the 
decision is 
taken. 
 

1
1
5



 

Floating Support 
Contract: Cross Keys 
Homes Extension of 
Contract – KEY/13NOV/10 
Extension of contract to 
provide a generic floating 
support service for clients 
with housing support 
needs. 
 

November 
2010 
 

Cabinet Member for 
Housing, 
Neighbourhoods 
and Planning 
 

Strong and 
Supportive 
Communities 

Internal 
Departments and 
Relevant 
Stakeholders as 
appropriate. 

 
 
 

Belinda Child 
Housing Strategic Manager 
 
belinda.child@peterborough.g
ov.uk 
 

Public report 
will be available 
from the 
Governance 
Team one week 
before the 
decision is 
made. 
 

Passenger Transport 
Framework Tender – 
KEY/14NOV/10 
Requirements for special 
educational needs and 
mainstream school 
contract. 
 

November 
2010 
 

Cabinet Member for 
Education, Skills 
and University 
 

Creating 
Opportunities and 
Tackling 
Inequalities 

Internal 
stakeholders. 
 
 

Cathy Summers 
Team Manager - Passenger 
Transport Contracts and 
Planning 
 
cathy.summers@peterboroug
h.gov.uk 
 

Public report 
will be available 
from the 
Governance 
Team one week 
before the 
decision is 
made. 
 

Security Framework 
Contract – KEY/15NOV/10 
Award of framework 
contract split into two lots: 
security services such as 
manned security guarding, 
patrolling, key holding and 
alarm response for PCC 
sites; and cash collection 
and cash in transit services, 
delivering services for the 
council such as collecting 
cash from parking meters 
and banking it securely. 
 

November 
2010 
 

Cabinet Member for 
Resources 
 

Sustainable 
Growth 

Internal and 
external 
stakeholders as 
appropriate 
 
 

Matthew Rains 
P2P Manager 
Tel: 01733 317996 
matthew.rains@peterborough
.gov.uk 
 

A public report 
will be available 
from the 
governance 
team one week 
before the 
decision is 
taken 
 

 

1
1
6



 
 

DECEMBER 
 

KEY DECISION 
REQUIRED 

DATE OF 
DECISION 

DECISION MAKER RELEVANT  
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHORS 

REPORTS 

Peterborough Planning 
Policies DPD – ‘Preferred 
Options’ version - 
KEY/01DEC/10 
To agree draft planning 
policies, for subsequent public 
consultation 
 

December 
2010 
 

Cabinet 
 

Sustainable 
Growth 

Internal and 

External as 

appropriate. 

 
 
 

Richard Kay 
Strategic Planning Manager 
 
richard.kay@peterborough.go
v.uk 
 

A public report 
will be available 
from the 
governance 
team one week 
before the 
decision is 
made. 
 

Village Design 
Supplementary Planning 
Document (Draft version 
for consultation) - 
KEY/02DEC/10 
To agree a draft SPD, for 
subsequent public 
consultation. 
 

December 
2010 
 

Cabinet 
 

Sustainable 
Growth / Rural 
Communities 

Internal and 
External as 
appropriate 
 
 

Richard Kay 
Strategic Planning Manager 
 
richard.kay@peterborough.go
v.uk 
 

A public report 
will be made 
available from 
the governance 
team one week 
before the 
decision is 
made. 
 

Museum Redevelopment 
Project - KEY/03DEC/10 
To authorise the award of the 
contract for the Museum 
Redevelopment project. 
 

December 
2010 
 

Deputy Leader and 
Cabinet Member for 
Culture, Recreation 
and Strategic 
Commissioning 
 

Strong and 
Supportive 
Communities 

Consultation will 
take place with 
relevant internal 
stakeholders as 
appropriate 
 
 

Steven Pilsworth 
Head of Strategic Finance 
Tel: 01733 384564 
Steven.Pilsworth@peterborou
gh.gov.uk 
 

A public report 
will be available 
from the 
governance 
team one week 
before the 
decision is 
taken. 
 

1
1
7



 

Delivery of the Council's 
Capital Receipt 
Programme through the 
Sale of Land and 
Buildings - Vawser Lodge 
Thorpe Road - 
KEY/04DEC/10 
To authorise the Chief 
Executive, in consultation with 
the Solicitor to the Council, 
Executive Director – Strategic 
Resources, the Corporate 
Property Officer and the 
Cabinet Member Resources, 
to negotiate and conclude the 
sale of Vawser Lodge 

 

December 
2010 
 

Cabinet Member for 
Resources 
 

Sustainable 
Growth 

Consultation will 
take place with 
the Cabinet 
Member, Ward 
councillors, 
relevant internal 
departments & 
external 
stakeholders as 
appropriate 
 
 

Richard Hodgson 
Head of Strategic Projects 
Tel: 01733 384535 
richard.hodgson@peterborou
gh.gov.uk 
 

A public report 
will be available 
from the 
governance 
team one week 
before the 
decision is 
taken 
 

Council Tax Base 2011/12 
- KEY/05DEC/10 
To agree the calculation of the 
council tax base for 2010/11  

 
 

December 
2010 
 

Cabinet 
 

Sustainable 
Growth 

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders 

 
 

Steven Pilsworth 
Head of Strategic Finance 
Tel: 01733 384564 
Steven.Pilsworth@peterborou
gh.gov.uk 
 

A public report 
will be available 
from the 
governance 
team one week 
before the 
decision is 
taken 
 

Budget and Medium Term 
Financial Strategy - 
KEY/06DEC/10 
Consider Local Government 
Finance settlement and agree 
updates to draft budget 
proposals and Medium Term 
Financial Strategy to 2015/16 
if necessary 
 

December 
2010 
 

Cabinet 
 

Sustainable 
Growth 

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders 

 
 

Steven Pilsworth 
Head of Strategic Finance 
Tel: 01733 384564 
Steven.Pilsworth@peterborou
gh.gov.uk 
 

A public report 
will be available 
from the 
governance 
team one week 
before the 
decision is 
taken. 
 

1
1
8



 

Peterborough Local 
Investment Plan - 
KEY/07DEC/10 
Document for submission 
to the Homes and 
Communities Agency, 
drawn largely from the 
Integrated Development 
Programme (Adopted 
December 2009). The LIP 
is the first stage towards 
applying for funding from 
the HCA for primarily 
housing-related project 
aspirations in the City. 
 

December 
2010 
 

Leader of the 
Council and 
Cabinet Member for 
Growth, Strategic 
Planning and 
Economic 
Development 
 

Sustainable 
Growth 

Internal and 
External 
stakeholders as 
appropriate. 
 
 

Andrew Edwards 
Head of Peterborough 
Delivery Partnership 
Tel: 01733 384530 
andrew.edwards@peterborou
gh.gov.uk 
 

A public report 
will be available 
from the 
governance 
team one week 
before the 
decision is 
taken. 
 

 
 

      

JANUARY 

THERE ARE CURRENTLY NO KEY DECISIONS SCHEDULED FOR JANUARY. 

 
 

FEBRUARY 

THERE ARE CURRENTLY NO KEY DECISIONS SCHEDULED FOR FEBRUARY. 

1
1
9



1
2
0

T
h

is
 p

a
g

e
 is

 in
te

n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n
k



SUSTAINABLE GROWTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
WORK PROGRAMME 2010/11 

 

Meeting Date 
 

Item Progress 

6 January 2011 

(Papers to be 
despatched on 24 
December 2010) 

Scrutiny of the Medium Term Financial Plan 2011/12 to 2015/16 

To further scrutinise the Executive’s proposals for Medium Term Financial Plan 
to 2015/16. 

Contact Officer:  John Harrison/Steven Pilsworth 

 

 

13 January 2011 

(Papers to be 
despatched on 5 
January 2011) 

Scrutiny of the Medium Term Financial Plan 2011/12 to 2015/16 

To further scrutinise the Executive’s proposals for Medium Term Financial Plan 
to 2015/16. 

Contact Officer:  John Harrison/Steven Pilsworth 

 

 

Peterborough City Services – Update on Lot 3: Various Operational 
Services 

To scrutinise the progress to date on the future of PCS and what the 
implications are for the City Council. 

Contact Officer:  Mike Heath 

 

Annual Human Resources Monitoring Report 

To scrutinise the annual HR Monitoring Report. 

Contact Officer:  Mike Kealey 

 

1 February 2011 

(Papers to be 
despatched on 24 
January 2011) 

Update on the ICT Managed Service  

To scrutinise the implementation of the ICT Managed Service contract.  

Contact Officer:  Paul Tonks 

 

 

15 March 2011 

(Papers to be 
despatched on 7 
March 2011) 

Progress on the Growth and Resources Portfolios (Councillors Cereste 
and Seaton) 

To scrutinise the progress of the Growth and Resources Portfolios. 

Contact Officer:  Louise Tyers 

 

1
2
1



Building of Executive Family Homes 

To receive an update on the provision of executive family homes. 

Contact Officer:  Andrew Edwards 

 

Update on the Local Plan and Site Allocations Documents 

To scrutinise the Local Plan and Site Allocations Documents following the 
Governments relaxation on targets. 

Contact Officer:  Richard Kay 

Requested at the meeting on 14 September 2010 

 

ITEMS TO BE SCHEDULED 

• Peterborough Integrated Development Programme - to further scrutinise the draft Integrated Development Programme which sets out the priorities for 
infrastructure provision to facilitate growth and regeneration of the City. 

• Complaints Monitoring Report 2009/10 - to scrutinise the annual complaints report 2009/10 and identify any areas of concern. 

• Responsibilities under the Flood and Water Management Act – to consider Peterborough’s responsibilities under the Flood and Water Management 
Act, particularly changes to the planning system relating to sustainable drainage systems. 

1
2
2


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Meeting held on 14 September 2010
	5 Medium Term Financial Strategy 2011/12 to 2015/16
	101109 - Sustainable Growth - Medium Term Financial Plan 2011-12 to 2015-16 - Appendix 1

	6 Scrutiny Review - Use of Consultancy
	101109 - Sustainable Growth - Scrutiny Review Use of Consultancy - Appendix 1
	101109 - Sustainable Growth - Scrutiny Review Use of Consultancy - Appendix 2
	101109 - Sustainable Growth - Scrutiny Review Use of Consultancy - Appendix 3
	101109 - Sustainable Growth - Scrutiny Review Use of Consultancy - Appendix 4

	7 Forward Plan of Key Decisions
	101109 - Sustainable Growth - Forward Plan - Appendix 1

	8 Work Programme

